South Cambridgeshire Hall
Cambourne Business Park
Cambourne

Cambridge

CB23 6EA

t. 03450 450 500

South
Cambridgeshire
District Council

f. 01954713149
dx: DX 729500 Cambridge 15
minicom: 01480 376743

www.scambs.gov.uk

5 December 2012

To: Councillor Pippa Corney, Portfolio Holder
Douglas de Lacey Scrutiny and Overview Committee
Janet Lockwood Opposition Spokesman
Bridget Smith Scrutiny and Overview Committee
John Williams Opposition Spokesman

Dear Sir / Madam

You are invited to attend the next meeting of PLANNING POLICY AND LOCALISM

PORTFOLIO HOLDER'S MEETING, which will be held in COUNCIL CHAMBER, FIRST
FLOOR at South Cambridgeshire Hall on THURSDAY, 13 DECEMBER 2012 at 10.00 a.m.

Yours faithfully
JEAN HUNTER
Chief Executive

Requests for a large print agenda must be received at least 48 hours before the meeting.

AGENDA
PROCEDURAL ITEMS
1. Declarations of Interest
2. Minutes of Previous Meeting
The Portfolio Holder is asked to sign the minutes of the joint meeting held
with the Planning & Economic Development Portfolio holder on 19
October 2012 as a correct record.
DECISION ITEMS
3. South Cambs Local Plan: Issues and Options 2 for Consultation

The covering report and Appendices A and H are attached, the remaining
appendices are available on the website at www.scambs.gov.uk

4. Local Development Framework Annual Monitoring Report 2011-12
The covering report and Appendix 1 is attached; Appendix 2 is available
on the website at www.scambs.gov.uk

STANDING ITEMS

5. Date of Next Meeting
A date will be confirmed if required.

Democratic Services Contact Officer: lan Senior 03450 450 500

PAGES

3-172

173 -
182




OUR VISION
South Cambridgeshire will continue to be the best place to live and work in the country. Our
district will demonstrate impressive and sustainable economic growth. Our residents will have a
superb quality of life in an exceptionally beautiful, rural and green environment. The Council will
be recognised as consistently innovative and a high performer with a track record of delivering
value for money by focussing on the priorities, needs and aspirations of our residents, parishes
and businesses.

OUR VALUES
We will demonstrate our corporate values in all our actions. These are:
. Trust
. Mutual respect
. A commitment to improving services
. Customer service




GUIDANCE NOTES FOR VISITORS TO SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE HALL

While the District Council endeavours to ensure that visitors come to no harm when visiting South
Cambridgeshire Hall, those visitors also have a responsibility to make sure that they do not risk their own
or others’ safety.

Security

Members of the public attending meetings in non-public areas of the Council offices must report to
Reception, sign in, and at all times wear the Visitor badges issued. Before leaving the building, such
visitors must sign out and return their Visitor badges to Reception.

Emergency and Evacuation

In the event of a fire, a continuous alarm will sound. Evacuate the building using the nearest escape

route; from the Council Chamber or Mezzanine viewing gallery this would be via the staircase just outside

the door. Go to the assembly point at the far side of the staff car park.

. Do not use the lifts to exit the building. If you are unable to negotiate stairs by yourself, the
emergency staircase landings are provided with fire refuge areas, which afford protection for a
minimum of 1.5 hours. Press the alarm button and wait for assistance from the Council fire
wardens or the fire brigade.

. Do not re-enter the building until the officer in charge or the fire brigade confirms that it is safe to
do so.

First Aid
If someone feels unwell or needs first aid, please alert a member of staff.

Access for People with Disabilities

The Council is committed to improving, for all members of the community, access to its agendas and
minutes. We try to take all circumstances into account but, if you have any specific needs, please let us
know, and we will do what we can to help you. All meeting rooms are accessible to wheelchair users.
There are disabled toilet facilities on each floor of the building. Infra-red hearing assistance systems are
available in the Council Chamber and viewing gallery. To use these, you must sit in sight of the infra-red
transmitter and wear a ‘neck loop’, which can be used with a hearing aid switched to the ‘T’ position. If
your hearing aid does not have the ‘T’ position facility then earphones are also available and can be used
independently. You can obtain both neck loops and earphones from Reception.

Toilets
Public toilets are available on each floor of the building next to the lifts.

Recording of Business and Use of Mobile Phones

The Council is committed to openness and transparency. The Council and all its committees, sub-
committees or any other sub-group of the Council or the Executive have the ability to formally suspend
Standing Order 21.4 (prohibition of recording of business) upon request to enable the recording of
business, including any audio / visual or photographic recording in any format.

Use of social media during meetings is permitted to bring Council issues to a wider audience. To
minimise disturbance to others attending the meeting, all attendees and visitors are asked to make sure
that their phones and other mobile devices are set on silent / vibrate mode during meetings.

Banners, Placards and similar items
No member of the public shall be allowed to bring into or display at any Council meeting any banner,
placard, poster or other similar item. The Chairman may require any such item to be removed.

Disturbance by Public

If a member of the public interrupts proceedings, the Chairman will warn the person concerned. If they
continue to interrupt, the Chairman will order their removal from the meeting room. If there is a general
disturbance in any part of the meeting room open to the public, the Chairman may call for that part to be
cleared.

Smoking
Since 1 July 2008, the Council has operated a Smoke Free Policy. Visitors are not allowed to smoke at
any time within the Council offices, or in the car park or other grounds forming part of those offices.

Food and Drink
Vending machines and a water dispenser are available on the ground floor near the lifts at the front of the
building. Visitors are not allowed to bring food or drink into the meeting room.



This page is left blank intentionally.



Page 1 Agenda ltem 2

SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Minutes of the Planning Policy and Localism Portfolio Holder's Meeting held on
Friday, 19 October 2012 at 10.00 a.m.

Portfolio Holder: Pippa Corney
Councillors in attendance:
Scrutiny and Overview Committee monitors: Douglas de Lacey and Bridget Smith
Opposition spokesmen: Janet Lockwood
Also in attendance: Tumi Hawkins, Mervyn Loynes and Nick Wright
Officers:
Patrick Adams Senior Democratic Services Officer
Jane Green Head of New Communities
Jo Mills Planning and New Communities Director
Sarah Stevens Head of Planning and Economic Development
8. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None.
9. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the meeting held on 3 July 2012 were agreed as a correct record.
10. PLANNING AND NEW COMMUNITIES: SERVICE PLAN PRIORITIES FOR 2013-14

The Planning and New Communities Director presented this report, which invited the
Planning Policy and Localism Portfolio Holder to approve the parts of the Service Plan for
Planning and New Communities, which were relevant to her portfolio.

Priority 12: Supporting localism

It was noted that in response to the Localism Act, and through a review of its internal
organisation, the service would be dividing the district into three areas, each with its own
lead officer. It was understood that this reflected arrangements that were in place or
proposed in Housing and Health & Environmental Services departments. It was noted that
this proposal was at an early stage. Members requested that there be effective
engagement with district councillors before this proposal was implemented.

Priority 13: Delivery of new communities
It was agreed that the County Council should be referred to in the proposal.

Priority 14: Develop solutions to deliver co-ordinated community transport

It was agreed that the words “improve community transport provision” should be replaced
with “Develop solutions to deliver co-ordinated community transport”, which would retain
the wording in the 2012/13 plan. It was suggested that communication with the County
Council could be improved with regard to community transport.

Priority 16: Participation in sports
It was agreed that whilst it was important to encourage sports development, other keep fit
activities should also be promoted.



Page 2

Planning Policy and Localism Portfolio Holder's Meeting Friday, 19 October 2012

1.

Consultation on the Local Plan

It was noted that over half the responses received from the public with regard to the Local
Plan were made online. A further series of Member workshops would be held on the Local
Plan from January. The Planning Policy and Localism Portfolio Holder expressed her
support for sustainable development, but explained that she would not take any decisions
with regard to the Local Plan until after the consultation exercise was concluded.

The Planning Policy and Localism Portfolio Holder ENDORSED the service plan priorities
relevant to her Portfolio, as identified in Appendix 1 of the report, subject to the following
amendments:
e In Priority 13, add the words “and County Council” after the words “City Council”.
e In Priority 14, replace the words “improve community transport provision” with
“Develop solutions to deliver co-ordinated community transport.”
e In Priority 16, add the words “and activities” after the words “Sports Development”.

DATES OF NEXT MEETINGS

The following meetings dates were noted:
e Thursday 13 December 10am
e Thursday 21% March 2013 10am
e Thursday 11 April 2013 10am

The Meeting ended at 11.55 a.m.




Page 3 Agenda ltem 3

SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

REPORT TO: Planning Policy & Localism Portfolio Holder 13 December 2012
AUTHORI/S: Director of Planning and New Communities

SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE LOCAL PLAN
ISSUES AND OPTIONS 2 REPORT FOR CONSULTATION

e PART 1 -JOINT CONSULTATION ON DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY
AND SITE OPTIONS ON THE EDGE OF CAMBRIDGE
e PART 2 -SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE FURTHER SITE OPTIONS

Purpose

1. The Portfolio Holder is invited to approve the two parts of the South Cambridgeshire
Local Plan Issues and Options 2 Consultation Reports for public consultation from 7
January to 18 February 2013 and to agree to publish new evidence base documents
supporting the plan, having considered the recommendation made from the Joint
Strategic Transport and Spatial Planning Group (JSTSPG) in respect of the Part 1
joint consultation document produced with Cambridge City Council.

Executive summary

2. The Council has started the process of updating the current Local Development
Framework documents that were adopted between January 2007 and January 2010
with a new Local Plan covering the period to 2031. The Local Plan is a key document
for South Cambridgeshire. Following on from consultation on the first Issues and
Options Report, which took place between July and September 2012, this
consultation will include:

e Part 1 - Joint consultation on Development Strategy and Site Options on
the Edge of Cambridge;

e Part 2 — Further Site Options in South Cambridgeshire arising from the
first Issues and Options consultation.

3. The Issues and Options 2 consultation has been split into two parts. The Part 1
document is a joint consultation between South Cambridgeshire District Council and
Cambridge City Council on options for the development strategy for the wider
Cambridge area and for site options for housing or employment development on the
edge of Cambridge on land currently in the Green Belt. It also includes options on
sub-regional sporting, cultural and community facilities including site options for a
community stadium. It builds upon the Issues and Options consultations that the
Councils have already consulted on and provides updated information in relation to
the housing and employment needs for the area as a whole, as well as outlining what
that means for the future development strategy. The Part 2 document includes
further site options and designations for other parts of the district that were put
forward through the 2012 consultation.



Page 4

. This report provides the draft Part 1 and Part 2 consultation documents for

consideration, and sets out the broad arrangements for consultation, which will take
place for 6 weeks between 7 January to 18 February 2013.

Recommendations

. The Portfolio Holder is recommended to:

e agree the joint Part 1 document (Appendix A) and supporting evidence base
(Appendices B, C, D, E and F) for consultation;

e agree the Sustainability Appraisal of the Part 1 document for consultation
(Appendix G);

e agree the Part 2 document (Appendix H) and supporting evidence base
(Appendix I) for consultation;

e agree the Sustainability Appraisal of the Part 2 document for consultation
(Appendix J);

e agree the consultation arrangements sets out in paragraphs 32 to 35; and

e agree that any minor amendments and editing changes, including to make more
publicly accessible documents, that need to be made should be agreed in
consultation with the Portfolio Holder.

Background

. The current Local Development Framework (LDF) suite of documents was adopted

between January 2007 and January 2010. They set out a vision, policies and
proposals for development and land use in South Cambridgeshire to 2016 and
beyond for some longer term proposals, e.g. Northstowe. The LDF gives effect to a
sustainable development strategy taken from the last Structure Plan and East of
England Plan, and proposes a sequence of development in South Cambridgeshire
with:

(a) development on the edge of Cambridge on land removed from
the Green Belt

(b) the new town of Northstowe

(c) development in the larger and better served villages designated
as Rural Centres and Minor Rural Centres.

. The primary objective of this strategy is to locate more new homes close to the main
concentration of jobs and jobs growth in and close to Cambridge. This approach
involved a review of the inner boundary of the Cambridge Green Belt. This included
Cambridge Airport where 12,000 new homes (7,500 in South Cambridgeshire) were
expected to be built, most after 2016. This strategy is a reversal of previous plans
which constrained the growth of Cambridge and dispersed housing development to
the villages and market towns.

. Whilst the current Local Development Framework is an effective set of documents
and good progress is being made in terms of the delivery of its proposals, a number
of factors come together to mean that an update is timely. Planning policies need to



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Page 5

be kept up to date and the Council agreed in 2011 to review its plans, with adoption
of a new Local Plan by early 2015.

The Localism Act received royal assent in November 2011 providing for the abolition
of Regional Spatial Strategies (RSS) and the introduction of Neighbourhood Planning.
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) came into effect on 27 March 2012.
The NPPF gives a 12 month period for Councils to update their plans to ensure
consistency with the framework. Weight can be given to policies in emerging plans as
they progress through the review process, and but for the supply of immediately
deliverable housing land the current LDF is considered to be in general conformity
with the NPPF. The Council will have a draft Local Plan by summer 2013.

2012 Issues and Options consultation

The 2012 Issues and Options consultation documents were agreed by the Portfolio
Holder at the meeting of 3 July. Consultation on the Issues and Options Report took
place over ten weeks between 12 July and 28 September 2012 on 116 issues and
questions in the consultation document with an accompanying 10 question leaflet to
encourage participation, which was included in the South Cambs Magazine. A total
of almost 20,100 comments were made, of which over 6,600 were to the
questionnaire.

Duty to Co-operate

The NPPF places a duty to cooperate on planning authorities for issues that cross
administrative boundaries. This is one of the tests of ‘soundness’ that the Planning
Inspector will apply at the Examination of the Local Plan. Councils are required to
work collaboratively to ensure that strategic priorities across local boundaries are
properly co-ordinated and clearly reflected in individual Local Plans, although the
NPPF is not prescriptive about how Councils work together or how evidence of
co-operation should be presented.

At a County level, arrangements have been put in place to facilitate the duty to co-
operate with the establishment of a Joint Strategic Planning Unit and a joint Member
Group to consider cross strategic planning and transport issues.

The close relationship with Cambridge means that joint working with the City Council
and the County Council is also well established. The City Council and South
Cambridgeshire have jointly commissioned much of the evidence base to support
Local Plan preparation. The Cambridge City, South Cambridgeshire and County
Council Strategic Transport and Spatial Planning Group was established earlier this
year to provide a senior member sounding board throughout the Local Plan review
process.

Whilst Cambridge City Council and South Cambridgeshire District Council are
preparing separate plans, this does not prevent a comprehensive approach being
developed and sound arrangements have been put in place in order to ensure this.
Given the close functional relationship between Cambridge and South
Cambridgeshire, the Councils are working jointly to ensure that cross boundary
issues and relevant wider matters are addressed in a consistent and joined up



15.

16.

17.

18.

Page 6

manner. The Councils have been working together throughout the preparation of the
Issues and Options consultations on the Local Plans, and also the parallel
consultation on issues for a new Transport Strategy for Cambridge and South
Cambridgeshire.

The Councils took a co-ordinated approach to joint issues in the recent Issues and
Options consultations (summer 2012). Each of the Issues and Options consultation
documents took a common approach to the questions asked about the Green Belt on
the edge of Cambridge, the future planning of Cambridge East and Northern Fringe
East, and to sub-regional sporting, cultural and community facilities. Each document
also highlighted the corresponding consultation by the other Council.

Part 1 — Joint Consultation on Development Strategy and Site Options on the
Edge of Cambridge

The Councils continue to work jointly as plan preparation progresses. Part 1 of the
second stage of Issues and Options consultation is a joint consultation on options for
the development strategy for the wider Cambridge area and for site options on the
edge of Cambridge on land currently in the Green Belt. It builds on the Issues and
Options consultations that the Councils have already undertaken this summer and
provides background information in relation to the housing and employment needs for
the area as a whole as well as outlining what that means for the future development
strategy.

Appendix A includes the Part 1 document for consultation. The document includes
the following:

Chapter 1:Introduction

Chapter 2:Joint Working and Duty to Co-operate

Chapter 3: The Current Development Strategy

Chapter 4: Sustainable Development

Chapter 5: Development Needs in Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire
Chapter 6: Continuing a Sustainable Development Strategy

Chapter 7: Green Belt

Chapter 8: A Sustainable Development Strategy for Cambridge and South
Cambridgeshire to 2031

Chapter 9: Site Options

e Chapter 10. Sub Regional Sporting, Cultural and Community Facilities

In order to assist with the preparation of this document, the following evidence based
work has been undertaken:

Review of the Inner Green Belt Boundary Study November 2012 (Appendix B)
Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire Sustainable Development Strategy Review
November 2012 (Appendix C)

o Site Assessments for Edge of Cambridge Sites November 2012 (Appendix D)

e Cambridge Sub Regional Facilities Review (Appendix E)

Sustainable Development Strategy



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Page 7

The current development strategy for Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire marked
a step change in the way housing development took place in and on the edge of
Cambridge, by looking to provide homes as close as possible to the jobs, in a move
away from the previous dispersed village development strategy to help reduce
commuting and the congestion and emissions it causes. The change in position of
Cambridge East as a development site for up to 12,000 homes on the edge of
Cambridge in the period to 2031, means that the current development strategy for
Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire will not be fully implemented. However, good
progress in relation to the current strategy must be recognised, with development on
the fringe sites underway and progress being made in relation to Northstowe.

The Councils have worked with the Joint Strategic Planning Unit to undertake a
review of the current Sustainable Development Strategy to explore how the new
Local Plans can continue to provide for sustainable development whilst also
protecting what is special about Cambridge, including the purpose of the Cambridge
Green Belt. The Review concludes that the current strategy remains the most
sustainable, subject to striking the right balance between meeting the needs for new
homes and jobs, with other environmental infrastructure and quality of life factors.
However, the work in the new plans must consider what a sustainable development
strategy could look like now, given the changes in circumstances since 2003 when
the current strategy was put in place.

Given this context, it is important that the review of the Local Plan explores whether
there are further sites on the edge of Cambridge that could be released from the
Green Belt for development without fundamental harm to its purposes. A review of
the inner boundary of the Green Belt has therefore been undertaken, which has
identified a small number of sites that could be released for development of
approximately 680 homes without fundamental harm to Green Belt purposes. Those
sites have been considered as part of a comprehensive assessment process (see
site options section below).

Site Options for consultation

A technical assessment of a range of sites on the edge of Cambridge has been
undertaken to inform the selection of the site options for consultation, including sites
submitted to the Councils as part of their Strategic Housing Land Availability
Assessments and sites coming through the Green Belt review. The assessments
have had regard to the comments submitted in response to the summer 2012
consultation on ten broad locations in the Green Belt on the edge of Cambridge (see
Appendix F). A wide range of constraints, policy designations and matters important
to sustainability have been taken into account in the technical assessments including
flood risk, Green Belt significance, site access, deliverability, Cambridge Airport
safety zones, distance to services and facilities, open space, transport accessibility,
air quality, noise, and biodiversity. The technical assessment process involved
completion of a standard site pro-forma, which looked at the impact and significance
of development. The full technical assessments are contained in Appendix D.

The results of the assessments are summarised in an appendix to the Part 1
consultation document. The traffic light assessment highlights those sites that may
have potential for development as green or amber, where negative impacts are



24.

25.

Page 8

considered capable of mitigation in an appropriate scheme. Those sites have been
identified as site options for consultation. 6 sites in 3 locations have been identified,
as illustrated in the table below.

Site Number Location Development type

Site option GB1 Land North of Worts’ 250 dwellings
Causeway

Site option GB2 Land South of Worts’ 230 dwellings
Causeway

Site option GB3 Fulbourn Road West (1) 75 dwellings. Alternatively, this
could be considered for

employment.
Site option GB4 Fulbourn Road West (2) Employment development
Site option GB5 Fulbourn Road East Employment development
Site option GB6 Land between Huntingdon | Up to 130 dwellings with
Road and Histon Road employment (see also Site
(NIAB3) Option CS4 for a Community
Stadium)

Sub regional Sporting, Cultural and Community Facilities

Through the previous Issues and Options consultations, both Councils sought views
on whether there is need for major new cultural and sporting facilities in the
Cambridge sub-region. Previous studies had identified gaps in provision for some
types of major sub-regional facilities, including a community stadium, ice rink and
concert hall. Further work has now been undertaken to review the evidence for such
facilities and consider options for dealing with them in the new Local Plans in the
Cambridge Sub-Regional Facilities Review (Nov 2012) (see Appendix E).

The Review concludes that no specific objective need can be quantified requiring the
provision of a community stadium. However, the Review identifies that the right
package of uses in a suitable location could deliver benefits for the wider sub-region.
In the light of the latest work, the consultation asks whether there is considered to be
a need to plan for a community stadium. 9 site options have been identified for
consultation, which are either within the urban area of Cambridge, in the Green Belt
on the edge of Cambridge, or to provide a facility as part of a new settlement. None
of the site options are perfect and there are issues which may mean that some of the
sites may not be capable of being delivered in a satisfactory way. The consultation
document highlights the advantages and disadvantages of each option to inform
comment. The site options are:

SITE NUMBER LOCATION

Site Option CS1 The Abbey Stadium and adjoining Allotment Land,
Newmarket Road, Cambridge

Site Option CS2 Cowley Road Cambridge (former Park and Ride and Golf
Driving Range)

Site Option CS3 North of Newmarket Road, Cambridge East

Site Option CS4 South of the A14 and west of Cambridge Road




26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

Page 9

Site Option CS5 Land south of Trumpington Meadows, Hauxton Road

Site Option CS6 Land between Milton and Impington, north of A14 (Union
Place)

Site Option CS7 Northstowe

Site Option CS8 Waterbeach New Town Option

Site Option CS9 Bourn Airfield New Settlement Option

The Part 1 document was considered at the Joint Strategic Transport and Spatial

Planning Group on 30 November. The Group agreed to advise Cambridge City
Council and South Cambridgeshire District Council to:

Support the joint Part 1 document for consultation;

Endorse the supporting evidence base;

Support the consultation arrangements; and

Endorse that any minor amendments and editing changes that need to be made
prior to publications be agreed by both Executive Councillors.

Amendments to the report in relation to NIAB 3 and the question relating to the
sustainable development strategy were also agreed. In addition, the Group asked for
further clarification in the Part 1 document to be made in relation to why the sites
relating to the community stadium were being consulted on. This included
Trumpington Meadows and land North of Newmarket Road. Further clarification has
therefore been provided in paragraph 10.9 of the Part 1 document as well as in the
site descriptions for Trumpington Meadows and North of Newmarket Road.

Part 2 — Further Site Options in South Cambridgeshire arising from the first
Issues and Options consultation

The Council will be considering all the representations made to the 2012 consultation
as work progresses on a draft Local Plan over the coming months. However, a
number of representations have been made putting forward new sites for either
development or to be protected. In these cases, assessments have been carried out
in a similar way as for the summer consultation and it is advisable that public
consultation on any reasonable options is undertaken before the draft Local Plan is
prepared.

In addition to the main Local Plan work, the District Council has also been exploring
with Parish Councils how best to bring forward community aspirations in light of the
new localism approach to planning and many Parish Councils are indicating to us that
they would find preparing neighbourhood plans too much of a burden for them. The
District Council has therefore offered the opportunity to include community-led
proposals in the Local Plan where possible.

A number of proposals have been put to us by Parish Councils during the 2012
consultation. Where they are consistent with the approach being taken in the Local
Plan, they are included with the District Council’s options for consultation. However,
a number of proposals from Parish Councils are not consistent with the detailed
approach for the Local Plan. Nevertheless they are likely to be proposals that are
capable of being included in a neighbourhood plan where the test is that they must




31.

32.

33.

34.

Page 10

generally conform with the strategic policies of the Local Plan. The consultation
document therefore includes Parish Council proposals separately under each topic
for those proposals not consistent with the normal Local Plan approach. These have
not all been tested in any detail by the District Council but are put out for consultation
and will help parish councils to gauge public opinion and develop their proposals
further. This will help those communities that prefer not to prepare their own
neighbourhood plans to still be able to deliver their local aspirations.

Further site options in addition to those already consulted on are included in Part 2 for
a range of issues. The site options cover a range of types of built development,
potential changes to village frameworks that affect where development might be
permitted, and areas to be protected from development such as important open areas
at villages under the following chapter headings:

Housing

Employment

Mixed Uses

Village Frameworks

Community Facilities and Infrastructure
Recreation and Open Space
Protecting Village Character

Parishes affected by site options for development for housing, employment, mixed
use development and a marina option and options for changes to village frameworks
where there could be implications for development are as follows: Bourn, Caldecote,
Cambourne, Comberton, Cottenham, Great Abington, Guilden Morden, Hardwick,
Histon & Impington, Little Gransden, Melbourn, Meldreth, Pampisford, Sawston, Toft,
Waterbeach (including Chittering) and Whaddon. A number of other parishes are
also affected by options relating to village protection policies. All the site options are
shown on maps by village in Chapter 9, in alphabetical order.

Sustainability Appraisal and Other Assessments

Sustainability Appraisal (SA) has been carried out for both Part 1 and Part 2
documents. For the Part 1 document, a joint SA has been prepared with Cambridge
City Council. This considers the impact of the site options on the sustainability
objectives identified in the Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Reports of both Councils.
For Part 2, an Initial Sustainability Report has also been prepared. It also includes
within it technical annexes that provide additional information to support the issues
and options contained in the Part 2 consultation report. The Sustainability Appraisal
of the Part 1 document is included at Appendix G while the Appraisal of the Part 2
document is included at Appendix J.

Consultation Arrangements

In accordance with the Council’s adopted Statement of Community Involvement,
consultation arrangements for the Issues and Options 2 reports include:

e Consultation for 6 weeks from 7 January to 18 February 2013.



Page 11

e Letters and emails informing consultees of consultation dates and how to view
and respond to the consultation material.

¢ A public advert.

¢ All documents available on the Council’'s website and an exhibition in the foyer
of the Cambourne offices (the joint Part 1 document to be hosted on the City
Council’'s website with a link from the South Cambridgeshire website).

e Libraries to receive electronic or hard copies as agreed.

e An article has already been placed in the winter edition of South
Cambridgeshire News which goes to every household in the district
advertising the forthcoming consultation;

e Publicity through the Council’s Facebook page and Twitter as well as blog

o Posters for distribution to Parishes with new development site options.

35. A series of exhibitions will be held across South Cambridgeshire focussing on those

locations where there are options for development. Some of these will be joint exhibitions
with the City Council for the Part 1 site options on the edge of Cambridge, which have
already been advertised in each Council’'s magazine and will be attended by officers of both
Councils. Additional exhibitions will be arranged in South Cambridgeshire to cover
the Part 2 sites and will be advertised on the website and in the local area. Dates and
venues of the confirmed joint exhibitions are shown below:

Day | Date Venue Exhibition Time
Mon | 7th January Grantchester — Village Hall 2.30pm — 7.30pm
Wed | 9th January Fulbourn, The Swifts 2.30pm — 7.30pm
Thurs | 10th January The Hub, Camborne — Main Hall 2.30pm — 7.30pm
Sat 12th January Trumpington Village Hall — Jubilee 12— 4pm
Room
Wed | 16th January Great Shelford — Memorial Hall 2.30pm — 7.30pm
Fri 18th January Meadows Community Centre, 2.30pm — 7.30pm
Cambridge — Room 2
Tue 22nd January Histon & Impington Recreation 2.30pm — 7.30pm
Ground

36. Officers have also made contact with Parish Councils that have put forward
development proposals to explore those in more detail with them. There are also a
small number of parish councils that were not able to respond in time for the summer
consultation but are working up local proposals and we will explore with them whether
their proposals can be subject to local consultation in parallel with the Issues and
Options 2 consultation so that we can bring them into a community-led part of the
Local Plan over the coming months.

37.

Next Steps

This Issues and Options 2 consultation is the second phase in developing the new
Local Plan for South Cambridgeshire. Once consultation has finished, the




38.

39.

40.

Page 12

representations received will be considered by the Council together with those for the
2012 consultation, using them to refine site options and policies that will be included

in the new Local Plan.

The Council, will then draft the new Local Plan, which will be subject to a further
round of public consultation in summer 2013 prior to being submitted to the Secretary
of State for examination around the end of 2013. During the final stage, an
independent planning inspector will consider the ‘soundness’ of the Local Plan at a
public examination. This will involve the inspector considering whether the plan has
been positively prepared, and that policies are justified, effective and are in conformity
with the NPPF. Following this, the inspector will produce a report of findings, and if
found to be sound, potentially with modifications, the Council can formally adopt the
Local Plan. The Cambridge Local Plan will proceed through an identical process and
allowing for any dependencies between the two plans to be considered.

Implications

Financial

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report,
the cost of preparing a Local Plan is significant but is included in
the Medium term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and has been
budgeted for over the duration of its preparation. Preparing one
single Local Plan rather than three separate Development Plan
Documents (Core Strategy, Development Control Policies and
Site Allocations) and a separate Gypsy and Traveller DPD will
mean that cost and time savings can be achieved.

Legal

There are no direct legal implications of this report.

Staffing

There are no direct staffing implications arising from this report.

Risk Management

The preparation of the Local Plan is a major project for the
Council. Full project and risk management procedures are
being employed.

Equality and There are no direct equal opportunities arising from this report.
Diversity

Equality Impact Yes

Assessment An Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken as part
completed of preparing the Issues & options report.

Climate Change

The SA of the Issues & Options report considers the
implications of the options for climate change.

Consultation

Consultations undertaken and arrangements for the forthcoming public consultation
are set out in the report.

Effect on Strategic Aims

Aim 1:”We will listen to and engage with residents, parishes and businesses to

ensure that we deliver first class services and value for money”. The Issues and
Options Consultation provides the opportunity for all stakeholders in the future of
South Cambridgeshire to influence the policies and proposals for new Local Plan




Page 13

before the Council makes any decisions and specifically includes a number of parish
council proposals.

41. Aim 2:”We will work with partners to create and sustain opportunities for
employment, enterprise and world leading innovation.” The Issues and Options
Report considers forecasts for the growth of the local economy and possible
additional employment site options.

42. Aim 3: “We will make sure that South Cambridgeshire continues to offer an
outstanding and sustainable quality of life for our residents.” The Council has a duty
to secure sustainable development. This lies at the heart of the options set out in the
Issues and Options Report and covers all three aspects of sustainability — economic,
social and environment. The options have a focus on sustaining and enhancing the
qualities of South Cambridgeshire that in national surveys consistently identify the
District as one of the best places to live in the UK.

Conclusions/Summary

43. See Executive Summary paragraphs 2-4.

Background papers

Local Plan Issues and Options Consultation documents July 2012
Localism Act 2011

National Planning Policy Framework 2012

Appendices

PART 1 DOCUMENT:

o Appendix A: Issues and Options 2, Part 1 — Joint consultation on Development
Strategy and Site Options on the Edge of Cambridge;

e Appendix B: Review of the Inner Green Belt Boundary Study November 2012

o Appendix C: Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire Sustainable Development
Strategy Review November 2012
Appendix D: Site Assessments for Edge of Cambridge Sites November 2012

e Appendix E: Cambridge Sub Regional Facilities Review, November 2012

e Appendix F: Summary of Issues and Options 2012 comments on Broad Locations
in the Green Belt

o Appendix G: Sustainability Appraisal of Part 1 document

PART 2 DOCUMENT:

o Appendix H: Issues and Options 2, Part 2 — Further Site Options in South
Cambridgeshire;

o Appendix I: South Cambridgeshire Strategic Housing Land Availability
Assessment — December 2012 Update



Page 14

e Appendix J: Initial Sustainability Report — Supplement to Accompany Issues and
Options 2 (Part 2)

Inspection of papers: To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the
report please contact:

Contact Officer: Keith Miles (Planning Policy Manager)
Telephone: 01954 713181
E-mail: keith.miles@scambs.gov.uk




Page 15

Appendix A. Issues & Options 2, Part 1 — Joint Consultation of
Development Strategy & Site Options on the Edge of
Cambridge (December 2012)



Page 16



Page 17

Cambridge Local Plan and South Cambridgeshire Local
Plan

Issues and Options 2

Part 1 — Joint Consultation on Development Strategy and
Site Options on the Edge of Cambridge

Draft to:

South Cambridgeshire Localism and Planning Policy Portfolio
Holder

Cambridge Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate Change
and Development Plan Scrutiny Sub Committee

13 December 2012



Page 18

Contents

1. Introduction

2. Joint Working and Duty to Co-operate

3. The Current Development Strategy

4, Sustainable Development

5. Development needs in Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire

6. Continuing a sustainable development strategy

7. Green Belt

8. A Sustainable Development Strategy for Cambridge and South
Cambridgeshire to 2031

9. Site Options

10.  Sub-Regional Sporting, Cultural and Community Facilities

Maps

Map 1 Towards a Sustainable Development Strategy for Cambridge and South

Cambridgeshire to 2013

Map 2  Key to Site Options in the Green Belt

Map 3  Key to Site Options for a Community Stadium

Appendices

Appendix 1 Key Map of Rejected Green Belt Sites

Appendix 2 Summary Assessment of Green Belt Sites

Appendix 3 Rejected Green Belt Sites

Page

13
14
17
22

26

29

39

28

30

42

58
59

75



1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

Page 19

Introduction

Cambridge City Council and South Cambridgeshire District Council are preparing
new Local Plans for the Cambridge area for the period up to 2031. The existing
development plans for the area are the Cambridge Local Plan (adopted 2006) and
the South Cambridgeshire Local Development Framework (adopted between 2007
and 2010). Both Plans set out a series of policies and proposals to guide future
development up to 2016, and are used to determine planning applications in
Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire.

The Councils have been working closely on progressing the review of each Local
Plan as well as working with the County Council on the preparation of a Transport
Strategy for Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire.

Both Councils carried out consultation on Issues and Options for their Local Plans in
Summer 2012. For Cambridge City Council, consultation ran for six weeks between
15 June to 27 July 2012 and for South Cambridgeshire District Council, consultation
started on 12 July and ran for 11 weeks to 28 September 2012. Consultation on the
first stage of the Transport Strategy for Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire took
place in parallel with both District Councils’ consultations. Consultation on the
Transport Strategy started on 15 June and ran until 28 September 2012.

The Councils took a co-ordinated approach to joint issues in the recent Issues and
Options consultations. Each of the Issues and Options consultation documents took
a common approach to the Green Belt on the edge of Cambridge, the future planning
of Cambridge East and Northern Fringe East and sub-regional sporting, cultural and
community facilities. Each document also highlighted the corresponding consultation
by the other Council.

The Councils continue to work jointly as plan preparation continues. Part 1 of this
second stage of Issues and Options consultation is a joint consultation on options for
the development strategy for the wider Cambridge area and for site options for
housing or employment development on the edge of Cambridge on land currently in
the Green Belt. It also includes options on sub-regional sporting, cultural and
community facilities and site options for a community stadium. It builds on the Issues
and Options consultations that the Councils have already consulted on this Summer
and provides background information in relation to the housing and employment
needs for the area as a whole, as well as outlining what that means for the future
development strategy.

In addition to the joint elements of this consultation, each Council is carrying out
consultation on other matters for their own areas in their respective Part 2
consultation documents. The City Council is consulting on site options for the urban
area of Cambridge, including a range of uses for possible site allocations as well as
picking up more detailed matters such as consultation on space standards and car
and cycle parking standards. South Cambridgeshire District Council is consulting on
new issues arising from the Summer’s consultation that would be reasonable
additional options for the new Local Plan, including possible new site options for



1.7

1.8

1.9

Page 20

allocation for development as well as matters such as possible changes to village
frameworks and designations to protect village character.

The document sets out how the Councils are responding to the duty to cooperate on
plan making, considers the current development strategy and progress being made
and considers the national requirement to deliver sustainable development. Within
this context, the document then looks at development needs for jobs and homes
across the two Councils’ areas and latest evidence of level of needs over the plan
period to 2031. It then explores how the Councils can best continue the sustainable
development strategy in their new Local Plans. This leads to a consideration of the
approach to the Green Belt in the new plans and brings this together to look at the
sustainable development strategy to 2031 and seek views on the most appropriate
approach. The document then sets out the approach to testing of a range of sites on
the edge of Cambridge and set out the site options for consultation that performed
best in the technical assessment process. The document moves on to look at
evidence of a need for sub-regional sporting, cultural and community facilities and
sets out site options for a community stadium for consultation.

Both Councils' Local Plans will be accompanied by Sustainability Appraisals, which
test the sustainability credentials of the plans and alternative options considered. A
joint initial sustainability appraisal has been prepared to accompany this consultation
document, which considers the impact of options on the sustainability objectives
identified in the Scoping Reports of both Councils.

How to have your say

Once you have looked through this joint consultation document, please send us your
comments. There are a number of ways in which you can do this:

e Using the Councils’ online consultation system - This is the Councils’
preferred means of receiving representations because it is the fastest and most
accurate method and it will help us to manage your representations quickly and
efficiently. Separate instructions on how to use the electronic system are
provided on the Councils’ websites and officers in the planning policy teams are
always available to help if you have any queries. Please go to the following link:
http://cambridge.jdi-consult.net/Idf or http://scambs.jdi-consult.net/Idf/

e By email at policysurveys@cambridge.gov.uk or Idf@scambs.gov.uk using the
electronic response form on the Councils’ websites.

o Using a response form - If you do not have access to a computer, a paper form
can be completed and sent to the Councils. Copies of the response form are
available from the Planning Policy teams.

We’re here to help

Your views are important to us, and we recognise that the planning system is not
always easy to understand and find your way around. We want to make sure that as
many people as possible have an opportunity to have their say as the new Local
Plans are prepared. You can contact us using one of the following methods:



Page 21

Cambridge City Council:

e You can phone us on 01223 457000 (ask to speak to someone in the Planning
Policy team);

¢ You can email us at policysurveys@cambridge.gov.uk

South Cambridgeshire District Council:

e You can phone us on 03450 450 500 (ask to speak to someone in the Planning
Policy team);

e You can email us at |[df@scambs.gov.uk

There will also be opportunities for you to meet officers face-to-face through
exhibitions that have been organised. Details of these events, together with up to
date information on the Local Plan review can be found on the Councils’ Local Plan
websites:

e http://www.cambridge.gov.uk/localplanreview

e http://www.scambs.gov.uk/Idf/localplan

For those who use social media, we shall also be providing regular updates on the
Councils’ Facebook pages, Twitter feeds and the City Council’s Local Plan blog.

What happens next?

This Issues and Options 2 consultation is the second phase in developing new Local
Plans for Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire. Once consultation on this report
has finished, we will consider all of the representations received to both rounds of
consultation, using them to refine site options and policies that will be included in the
new Local Plans.

We will then draft the new Local Plans, which will be subject to a further round of
public consultation prior to being submitted to the Secretary of State for examination.
At that stage, independent Government inspectors will consider the ‘soundness’ of
the Local Plans at public examinations. In other words, the inspectors will consider
whether the plans have been positively prepared, and that policies are justified,
effective and are in conformity with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).
Following this, the inspectors will produce reports of their findings, and then the
Councils can formally adopt the Local Plans.



2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

Page 22

Joint working and Duty to Co-operate

The Councils have a long history of joint working and have worked closely together
on a variety of planning matters over many years reflecting the close functional
relationship between the tightly drawn city boundary and its rural surroundings. This
includes working together on key strategic and joint issues at both officer and
Member level through the preparation of Structure Plans, input to Regional Plans, the
preparation of existing development plans, joint Area Action Plans for major
developments, the preparation of joint evidence base documents on a wide variety of
topics, and other planning matters including various transport strategy documents.

The Localism Act and the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) have
introduced a requirement for Councils to work together on planning issues that cross
administrative boundaries. This requirement is known as the ‘Duty to Cooperate’ and
also involves a number of other public bodies such as Local Enterprise Partnerships
(LEPs), Highways Agency, Environment Agency, English Heritage, Natural England
and Primary Care Trusts. The duty requires Councils to engage constructively,
actively and on an ongoing basis on ‘strategic matters’ regarding sustainable
development or use of land that has or would have a significant impact on at least
two planning areas. The NPPF says that Councils should work collaboratively with
other bodies to ensure that strategic priorities across local boundaries are properly
coordinated and clearly reflected in individual Local Plans. It says that Councils
should consider producing joint planning policies on strategic matters, but there is no
requirement to do so.

The Councils have decided to prepare separate Local Plans for Cambridge and
South Cambridgeshire, but are fully aware of the need to work effectively together
and that they will need to demonstrate how they have cooperated effectively, both
with each other and other key public bodies including the County Council, on the
preparation of their respective new Local Plans. The Councils’ ongoing approach to
joint working is therefore now a specific legal requirement and it will be necessary to
provide formal evidence of the cooperation as part of the plan making process.

Some respondents to the Issues and Options (Summer 2012) consultations
questioned why the Councils were not preparing a single joint strategic plan covering
the Cambridge area as a whole and whether anything less than this satisfied the duty
to co-operate.

The Councils believe that cooperation while preparing separate plans allows a
comprehensive approach to the planning of the wider area to be developed and
sound arrangements have been put in place in order to ensure this. Given the close
functional relationship between Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire, the Councils
are working jointly to ensure that cross boundary issues and relevant wider matters
are addressed in a consistent and joined up manner. It is not a requirement of the
NPPF that a single plan is produced in these circumstances, rather that the Duty to
Co-operate is effectively discharged.

Joint working arrangements have already been established. At a member level,
previous joint working groups have been replaced by two new member groups: the

6



2.7

2.8

29

Page 23

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Joint Strategic Planning and Transport Member
Group which is a County wide group and the Joint Strategic Transport and Spatial
Planning Group specifically to address issues affecting Cambridge and South
Cambridgeshire. Work is ongoing at an officer level, steered by regular meetings of
senior officers: Chief Planning Officers group for county-wide issues and officers from
the three Councils for more Cambridge-focused issues. The Cambridgeshire
Councils have already established and then commissioned the Joint Strategic
Planning Unit to prepare a strategic spatial framework for Cambridgeshire and
Peterborough, which will also help demonstrate the coordinated approach to planning
for the long term needs of the wider area and the Unit has also assisted with the
preparation of the evidence base for this consultation.

The Councils have been working together throughout the preparation of the Issues
and Options consultations on the Cambridge Local Plan and the South
Cambridgeshire Local Plan, and also the parallel consultation on issues for a new
Transport Strategy for Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire. The Councils took the
same approach to joint issues in the recent Issues and Options consultation. Each of
the Issues and Options consultation documents took a common approach to the
Green Belt on the edge of Cambridge, the future planning of Cambridge East and
Northern Fringe East and sub-regional sporting, cultural and community facilities.
Each document also highlighted the corresponding consultation by the other Council.

The Councils have agreed to continue to work jointly as plan preparation continues.
In terms of timetables, the Councils’ Local Plan programmes have been very similar,
although it did not prove possible to align them completely for the Issues and Options
(Summer 2012) consultation. The consultations did however overlap in July 2012.

The Local Plan timetables have recently been reviewed and the aim has been to
align the Councils’ timetables as far as possible. An updated timetable is shown
below:

Key Stages in
preparing the new | Cambridge South Cambridgeshire
Local Plan

Issues and Options 12 July to 28 September

public consultation 15 June to 27 July 2012 2012
Issues and Options 2 | 7 January to 7 January to
(CLE HECE) 18 February 2013 18 February 2013

Part 1 :

Joint consultation on
the site options for the
fringe sites including
development strategy
context

Part 2 :
For the City Council,




2.10

Page 24

site options for the
urban area of the City
and other matters.

For South
Cambridgeshire, new
issues arising from the
2012 Issues and
Options consultation.

Public consultation on

Draft Local Plan Summer 2013 Summer 2013
Submit the Local Plans
to the Secretary of | Winter 2013/2014 Winter 2013/2014

State

The timetable after Submission of the Local Plans will be largely determined by the
Planning Inspectorate and will be affected by availability of inspectors (having regard
to the demand from the many authorities currently preparing new plans) and the way
the Inspectorate wishes to run the two examinations, given the close functional

relationship between Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire.




3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Page 25

The Current Development Strategy

Cambridge is an acknowledged world leader in higher education, research and
knowledge-based industries and has a prosperous and dynamic economy. It also
has a renowned landscape setting with a network of open spaces linking into a
thriving and accessible historic centre. The success of Cambridge means there are
also many competing development needs and pressures on what is a small, compact
city. There is, in addition to a high demand for housing, a need for more affordable
housing to: maintain the economy; provide more jobs; support the continued success
of the University of Cambridge, the colleges, and Anglia Ruskin University (ARU); to
provide essential services and facilities to meet the day to day needs of residents;
and to maintain the city as a sub-regional centre for shopping, leisure and cultural
activities.

South Cambridgeshire is a prosperous area with high levels of economic activity and
low levels of unemployment and the area close to Cambridge forms an important part
of the Cambridge Cluster of research and knowledge-based industries and has
experienced significant jobs growth. Its 350 square miles of countryside provide a
high quality setting for its 105 settlements. In recent decades, the district has
experienced significant growth, reflecting the success of the local economy and the
need for new homes.

There is a close functional relationship between the city of Cambridge and
surrounding South Cambridgeshire, which provides most of the setting to Cambridge,
but also a rural hinterland to the city and includes a number of significant and world
leading business parks that contribute to the national as well as the Cambridge
economy.

The current development strategy for the Cambridge area stems from as far back as
1999, from the work undertaken by Cambridge Futures, which influenced the 1999
Regional Plan for East Anglia and the 2003 Cambridgeshire Structure Plan. Prior to
that date, development in Cambridge had been constrained by the Green Belt. One
of the effects of this constraint was that housing development which would have
taken place in Cambridge was dispersed to towns and villages beyond the outer
boundary of the Green Belt, with people commuting back to jobs in Cambridge
contributing to congestion, greenhouse gas emissions, air quality problems and other
quality of life issues. The change in strategy introduced in the 2003 Cambridgeshire
Structure Plan recognised that a significant change in the approach to the planning of
the city was required in order to redress the imbalance between homes and jobs in,
and close to, Cambridge. It also needed to, provide for the long-term growth of the
University of Cambridge and Addenbrooke’s Hospital, whilst minimising increases in
congestion on radial routes into the city.

The existing Cambridge Local Plan (2006) and South Cambridgeshire Local
Development Framework (2007-2010) introduced a step change in levels of planned
growth, unmatched since the interwar years. This was consistent with the agreed
development strategy for the Cambridge area set out in the 2003 Cambridgeshire
and Peterborough Structure Plan. The Plans released significant land from the
Cambridge Green Belt and allocated a number of urban extensions to the city in the
south, north west, north east and east of the city.



3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

Page 26

The strategy in the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan 2003 and
carried into the two Councils’ current plans aims to focus development according to
the sequence:

1. Within the urban area of Cambridge;
2. On the edge of Cambridge;

3. In the new town of Northstowe;

4

In the market towns and the better served villages in South Cambridgeshire.

The 2003 Structure Plan identified broad locations to be released from the Green
Belt on the edge of Cambridge and the strategy was put into effect through the
Cambridge Local Plan, the South Cambridgeshire Local Development Framework,
and the joint Area Action Plans for North West Cambridge and Cambridge East. All
of these plans were subject to extensive periods of public consultation and
examination by planning inspectors. The strategy was endorsed and included in the
East of England Plan 2008.

Significant progress is being made on the growth sites identified in the Councils’
current plans, although progress was slowed just as sites were coming forward due
to the effects of the recession when it took hold in 2008. Development slowed on the
major sites but over the last year housing development has got underway on the
large sites on the edge of Cambridge at Clay Farm, Glebe Farm and Trumpington
Meadows in the Southern Fringe, and on Huntingdon Road as part of the larger NIAB
site. Progress is also being made in relation to the Station area, Addenbrooke’s and
the University site at North West Cambridge. A resolution to grant permission for a
first phase of development at Northstowe has also recently been made and, whilst
development is planned to start as soon as possible, it will take a number of years for
development at the new town to deliver large volumes of new homes.

At the heart of the strategy established in 2003 was the review of the Cambridge
Green Belt which released land for a total of around 22,000 homes, of which some
10,000 to 12,000 were to be built at Cambridge Airport in both Cambridge and South
Cambridgeshire. In 2009, the landowner - Marshalls of Cambridge - indicated that
their land would not be made available in this plan period. This means that there will
be a delay in delivering the major development opportunities at Cambridge East, and
so the full implementation of the current development strategy cannot take place in
the plan period to 2031.

Notwithstanding this, at the base date of the new Local Plan period of end March
2011, the Councils had an identified housing supply in their current plans of 24,800
homes that will contribute to meeting development needs to 2031, as set out in the
table overleaf.

10



3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

Page 27

HOUSING Cambridge South Cambridge and South
SUPPLY Cambridgeshire Cambridgeshire
Planning 9,065 2,897 11,962

permissions

Allocations 1,547 11,300 12,847

Total 10,612 14,197 24,809

Throughout the preparation of the current plans, there was strong local
acknowledgement of the growing need for the most sustainable form of development
and delivery of new affordable homes in the Cambridge area to address commuting
by car to jobs in and close to Cambridge and the congestion and emissions that
causes.

As part of the review of the Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS) for the east of England,
the Cambridgeshire authorities commissioned consultants to prepare the
Cambridgeshire Development Study. The study was completed in 2009 and looked
at how well the existing development strategy was working, forecasts for economic
growth, and how the strategy could be developed if further growth was needed.

The study identified a range of challenges for growth beyond the current
development strategy. These included that significant additional expansion to
Cambridge (where the economy is stronger) would impact on the integrity of the
Green Belt and the concept of Cambridge as a compact city. The study also
concluded that without deliverable solutions for transport and land supply, Cambridge
centred growth would be difficult to achieve, and would require a fundamental step
change in traffic management and travel behaviour.

The study recommended a spatial strategy for Cambridgeshire that is based on
delivering the current strategy with further balanced expansion through regeneration
in selected market towns, and focussed on making best use of existing infrastructure.
However, it did indicate that some additional growth could be located on the edge of
Cambridge incorporating a limited review of the Green Belt boundary, in the long
term. The key objective of the strategy was to locate homes close to Cambridge or
other main employment centres, avoiding dispersed development, and ensuring that
travel by sustainable modes is maximised through connections focussing on
improved public transport and reducing the need to travel.

The Cambridgeshire local authorities endorsed the findings of the study, which were
included in the draft version of the revised East of England Plan that planned for the
period 2011 to 2031. The review suggested 14,000 homes and 20,000 jobs for
Cambridge over the plan period, and for South Cambridgeshire, it suggested 21,500
homes and 21,200 jobs. This was based on rolling forward the current development
strategy for Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire. The draft regional plan was
submitted to the previous Government in March 2010, but was not ultimately

11



3.16

3.17

Page 28

progressed due to the Coalition Government’s statement soon after coming into
power in May 2010 that it intended to abolish regional plans.

An issue for the Councils now is whether the current strategy remains the most
appropriate development strategy to 2031, or whether an alternative would be more
suitable as a result of current circumstances. The interrelationship between the two
areas means that decisions cannot be taken in isolation and the future approach
needs to be joined up, as it has been in the past. On the whole, South
Cambridgeshire looks towards Cambridge in functional terms whilst Cambridge is
affected by a tight administrative boundary and surrounding Green Belt, and
therefore any decision relating to the spatial strategy in South Cambridgeshire is
likely to have an impact on Cambridge and vice versa.

This stage of plan making needs to review jointly how far the current sustainable
development strategy has progressed, what evidence there is that it is achieving its
original objectives and what a new sustainable development strategy looks like in
view of changes in economic and other circumstances since the current strategy was
adopted.

12



4.2

4.3

4.4

Page 29

Sustainable Development

National planning policy sets sustainable development at the heart of the planning
system. The 2004 Planning Act and the recently adopted National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) continue to place the delivery of sustainable development as a
key national objective. To address the three strands of sustainability, the NPPF
requires the planning system to fulfil jointly and simultaneously:

e An economic role — contributing to building a strong responsive and competitive
economy;

e A social role — supporting strong, vibrant and healthy communities by providing
the supply of housing required to meet the needs of present and future
generations;

e An environmental role — contributing to protecting and enhancing our natural, built
and historic environment, using natural resources prudently, minimising pollution
and mitigating and adapting to climate change including moving to a low carbon
economy.

For plan making, Councils are required to positively seek opportunities to meet the
objectively assessed development needs of their area in a flexible way, unless any
adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits.

Where Green Belts are defined, they should only be altered in exceptional
circumstances when preparing a Local Plan. When reviewing Green Belt
boundaries, Councils are required to take account of the need to promote sustainable
development and consider the consequences for sustainable development of
channelling development towards urban areas within Green Belts, to villages inset
within the Green Belt and to locations beyond the Green Belt.

This sets a considerable challenge for the Cambridge area, in the context of:
e a strong and growing economy;

e the need for new homes to support the jobs and the aim to provide as many of
those new homes as close to the new jobs as possible to minimise commuting
and the harmful effects for the environment, climate change and quality of life
that it brings; and

e a tightly drawn Green Belt to protect the special characteristics of historic
Cambridge that help make it attractive to business and residents.

Achieving an appropriate balance between these competing arms of sustainable
development is a key objective of the development strategy for the new Local Plans.
These issues are explored over the following three chapters on development needs,
how these affect the development strategy, and findings of a review of the Green
Belt, before being drawn together in a chapter on the implications for the
development strategy for the period to 2031, and then site options for consultation.

13



5.2

5.3

5.4

Page 30

Development Needs in Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire

The Councils must set targets in their Local Plans for levels of housing and
employment development in their areas up to 2031. The National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) makes clear that Councils must use their evidence base to set
targets that meet the full, objectively assessed needs for market and affordable
housing in the housing market area, as far as is consistent with the policies set out in
the NPPF. We must make sure that we plan for a mix of housing based on current
and future demographic trends, market trends and the needs of different groups in
the community. Given the strong relationship between Cambridge and South
Cambridgeshire, the Councils are using this second Issues and Options consultation
to draw together the development needs of each area and consider the implications
they have for achieving a sustainable development strategy and to review
development needs in the context of the latest evidence.

The successful Cambridge economy, with its focus on high tech and bio-tech
industries, is a strong driver for growth in the area, with key employment locations in
and close to Cambridge in both Councils’ areas. To remain successful and maintain
the high quality of life, our Local Plans need to continue to provide positively for
economic growth and for those jobs to be supported by provision of new homes in
locations accessible to the new jobs. At the same time, it is important to achieve the
right balance and protect what makes the area so special to ensure that the current
high quality of life is maintained for existing and future residents.

The predicted rate of jobs growth is such that people will move to the area to take up
work. If the jobs come without new homes, there will be longer commuting and more
congestion on our roads. To make sure we plan for sustainable development, those
homes need to be located as close as possible to the new jobs and in areas where
there is good access to the jobs without having to rely on the private car so that
congestion and emissions are minimised. Those are key objectives of both Councils
and also a requirement of the NPPF.

The Councils consulted in Summer 2012 in their respective Issues and Options
consultations on options for the housing and jobs targets for their Local Plans. These
consultations recognised the strong functional relationship between Cambridge and
South Cambridgeshire and the need for the Councils to work closely together to plan
for the needs of the wider Cambridge area.

e For new jobs, we each looked at the evidence available to identify high, medium
and low options for jobs and both Councils drew on forecasts from the Local
Economy Forecasting Model (LEFM) prepared jointly for the Cambridgeshire
Councils. The model is preferred by the Councils to the East of England
Forecasting Model prepared for the County Council on the basis that it is an
economic led model that looks at a wide range of individual industries and the
different relationships that exist between them and takes local circumstances
more directly into account. As a result, the forecasts are considered to be more
realistic. The medium options are those most likely to be delivered according to
the forecasts, whilst the low and high options allow for the effects of the national
economy performing better or worse than expected.

14



Page 31

For new homes, South Cambridgeshire consulted on the number of new homes
that the forecasts and other evidence suggest would need to be provided to
support the new jobs target options, so there is a close relationship between the
medium jobs target option and the medium housing target options for example.
Cambridge drew on its Housing and Employment Technical Paper which outlined
a range of sources that look at development needs, which indicated a range of
figures between 9,000 and 14,000 homes. In view of the tightly drawn
administrative boundary, consideration was also given to the physical capacity of
the city and compared with the range of needs identified. The City Council
consulted on target options based on capacity in the urban area of Cambridge,
the draft regional plan figure that the City Council had previously supported (and
had undertaken to consider as part of the Local Plan review), a higher option
based on the lower end of capacity in the broad locations in the Green Belt being
consulted on, and a high option which was the maximum capacity in the broad
locations in the Green Belt (essentially building on all of the land in the Green
Belt within the administrative area of Cambridge).

5.5 The targets options we have already consulted on for jobs and homes are set out in
the tables below, and the total across both areas is included:
OPTIONS | Cambridge South Cambridgeshire Cambridge and
SSBRS South Cambridgeshire
Low 10,000 14,000 24,000
Medium 15,000 23,100 38,100
High 20,000 29,200 49,200
OPTIONS | Cambridge South Cambridgeshire Cambridge and
EI%?/IES South Cambridgeshire
Low 12,700 18,500 31,200
Medium 14,000 21,500 35,500
High 21,000 23,500 44,500
Very High | 25,000 - -
5.6 Since the Issues and Options consultations (Summer 2012) a new technical report

has been prepared by Cambridgeshire County Council Research and Performance

Team for the Strategic Planning Unit on behalf of the Cambridgeshire Councils that

looked in detail at population, housing and employment forecasts. It looked at the

available evidence from official statistics, local data and sub-regional forecasting

models and took account of the 2011 Census population figures. It analysed all the

15



Page 32

data and reached conclusions on the most reasonable levels of need for new jobs
and new homes, recognising that forecasting is not an exact science and whilst
analysis and models are complex and technical, that they should only be regarded as
a view on the local economy that should be considered in the light of local knowledge
and circumstances. The Technical Report has informed an update to the Strategic
Housing Market Assessment (SHMA), to which the Government now requires
Councils to look when setting their housing targets, which includes guidance on the
development needs to 2031 across the housing market area.

(Note: The draft SHMA and final technical report are in preparation and will be
reported to Members as soon as they are available and included in the consultation
document. Once the needs findings are available, a view will be reached whether it
is appropriate to consult on any further options or whether the new evidence supports
the options already consulted on.)

16



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Page 33

Continuing a sustainable development strategy

Given that the current Local Plans introduced a step change in growth, the question
now is how best to deliver a sustainable development strategy that is right for the
next 20 years, in light of the growth already committed to on the fringe sites, and
material changes in circumstances since the current sustainable development
strategy was agreed, in particular the loss of the major urban extension at Cambridge
East at least for the plan period to 2031.

Issues & Options Consultations (Summer 2012)

Over Summer 2012, the two Councils carried out Issues and Options consultations
that sought comments on whether the current development strategy remains the
soundest basis for development in Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire for the
period to 2031.

Cambridge

The Cambridge Issues & Options report focussed on the City Council’s area by
assessing options for continued development within the urban area as well as
exploring whether there should be further development on the edge of Cambridge in
the Green Belt. This included:

1. Whether there should there be more development than is already committed in
the 2006 Local Plan on the edge of Cambridge?

Should more land be released from the Green Belt?

If so, where should this be? Ten broad locations around Cambridge were
included in the consultation document.

4. Whether there were any other approaches that should be considered at this
stage?

There was also strong acknowledgement of the good progress that is being made
towards implementing the current strategy, with development progressing on fringe
sites on the edge of Cambridge.

South Cambridgeshire

The South Cambridgeshire Issues & Options consultation included a question on
how the sustainable development strategy should be taken forward.

It explained that the new development strategy for South Cambridgeshire needs to
recognise the links with Cambridge, particularly in terms of providing employment to
support the successful economy of Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire, and
housing to provide opportunities for the workforce, both existing and new, to live
close to where they work. As with the current strategy, the new Local Plan is likely to
need to be a combination of sites at different stages in the sequence in order to meet
housing targets and in particular some village housing developments to provide a
5-year supply, given the long lead in time for new major developments which will
realistically only start to deliver later in the plan period.

17



6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

Page 34

The options for the development strategy consulted on that lie within South
Cambridgeshire were to:

1. Focus on providing more development on the edge of Cambridge, in part to
replace Cambridge East, through a further review of the Green Belt.

2. Focus on providing more development through one or more new settlements, of
sufficient size to provide sustainable development, including provision of a
secondary school, and with good public transport links to Cambridge.

3.  Focus on providing development at the more sustainable villages that have the
best levels of services and facilities and accessibility by public transport and
cycle to Cambridge or, to a lesser extent, a market town.

4. A combination of the above.

The Councils have taken account of relevant planning issues arising from the
summer consultation on the Green Belt ‘Broad Locations’ in preparing the technical
assessments of sites in the Green Belt. The full results of both consultations will be
considered as the Councils prepare their draft Local Plans and decisions are made
on the appropriate development strategy for the Cambridge area as a whole and site
allocations to deliver that strategy.

Sustainable Development Strategy Review

The current sustainable development strategy was extensively scrutinised and
challenged during its evolution through the regional plan and structure plan into the
Cambridge Local Plan and South Cambridgeshire Local Development Framework
(LDF). Independent planning inspectors confirmed that it as the most sustainable
development strategy for the two Districts to 2016 and beyond.

Moving forward into the new Local Plans and having regard to the new Duty to
Co-operate, the recently established Cambridgeshire Joint Strategy Unit has worked
with the Councils to carry out a further review of the sustainable development
strategy for the two Councils’ areas. Overall, the Cambridge and South
Cambridgeshire Sustainable Development Strategy Review document concludes that
the development strategy in the Cambridge Local Plan and the South
Cambridgeshire LDF remains the most sustainable for the two Districts, subject to
striking the right balance between meeting the needs and demands for new homes
and jobs, with environmental, infrastructure and quality of life factors. The most
sustainable locations for development are within and on the edge of Cambridge and
then in one or more new settlements close to Cambridge, which are connected to the
city by high quality public transport and other non car modes. Development in
market towns (outside Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire) scores broadly similar
to new settlements although travel distances are much further making non-car modes
less attractive. Development in villages is the least sustainable option and only
appropriate in the larger better served villages with good quality public transport.

The Review concluded that in addition to the key sustainability considerations of
proximity to employment, services and facilities and access to good public transport,
the central themes that emerge from this broad assessment are:

18



6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

Page 35

¢ the need to have regard to the scale of development that is planned at different
locations, not least to ensure that development allocations do not undermine the
delivery of the existing sustainable development strategy and lead to a return to
unsustainable patterns of development;

e its ability to deliver the necessary infrastructure to create sustainable
communities; and

e overall delivery implications and timescales.

Whilst the new Local Plans need to add to the supply of housing, planning
permission already exists for more employment development than is forecasted by
2031. Whatever decisions are made on supplying additional houses, jobs growth will
continue. The challenge will be to develop Local Plans that deliver a sustainable
development strategy that balances employment growth with good quality and
deliverable travel options with short journey times from the key locations for new and
existing homes. Consideration also needs to be given to the special character of
Cambridge and quality of life for existing and future residents.

Towards a new sustainable development strategy

The Local Plan reviews that the two Councils are undertaking need to consider how
best to evolve the current sustainable development strategy for the period to 2031,
and what this looks like under current circumstances as well as taking a range of
important factors into account.

It is appropriate now to look at each stage in the development sequence in turn to
identify the commitments in the current strategy and the options being consulted on
that could provide additional development to meet the identified needs of the
Cambridge area and consider how well they compare with the objective of providing
as many homes as close as possible to the jobs that exist or are planned in and
close to Cambridge.

Within Cambridge

The urban area of Cambridge is the most sustainable location for development
across the two districts. As set out in Chapter 3, at the end of March 2011 there was
planning permission for 9,065 homes in Cambridge and outstanding allocations for
1,547 dwellings. This gave a total existing supply of 10,612 homes.

Cambridge City Council has undertaken an extensive search for additional housing
sites within the built-up area. This involved a Strategic Housing Land Availability
Assessment (SHLAA) whereby the Council issued a general ‘call for sites’ to identify
all possible sites that could accommodate housing development in the city as well as
undertaking an extensive search for sites. Sites that were put forward were subject
to a rigorous assessment leading to a shortlist of sites which could deliver an
additional 2,060 homes. These sites were subject to public consultation in
September 2011 in order to seek public involvement at an early stage. Whilst the
Issues and Options report did not include any site options for consultation in the
summer, it was always the intention to consult on site options for allocations as part
of a second Issues and Options consultation. The Issues and Options report did

19



6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

Page 36

identify the capacity coming through the SHLAA, giving an additional supply of
suitable sites for residential development within the urban area of 2,060 homes. This
gave a total potential supply within the urban area of Cambridge of approximately
12,700 homes as of June 2012.

On the edge of Cambridge

Land on the edge of Cambridge is the second stage in the development sequence,
and the most sustainable in South Cambridgeshire. The key to the delivery of the
current sustainable development strategy has been the review of the Cambridge
Green Belt undertaken in the current Local Plan and LDF, which released land for
22,000 homes at this stage of the sequence. New homes on the edge of Cambridge
would be closer to the main sources of jobs and services than development in the
rural area or market towns, and provides good public transport and cycle access to
the services, facilities and jobs in Cambridge. As identified earlier, the loss of 10,000
to 12,000 homes at Cambridge East means that the current development strategy
will not be fully implemented in the period to 2031. However, around 11,000 new
homes are will be delivered on the combined land released from the Green Belt in
the Cambridge Local Plan 2006 and South Cambridgeshire LDF 2007-2010, and
good progress in relation to the development of the fringe sites has been made in
recent years.

Both Councils included questions in the summer 2012 consultation on the merits of
ten broad locations in the Green Belt on the edge of Cambridge to inform this second
round of consultation on any further releases of land from the Green Belt. A
summary of the views received are contained in the technical assessment of the
Green Belt (Note: for the Joint Member meeting they are contained in Appendix F to
the covering report).

New settlements

The new town of Northstowe is a key part of the current strategy. The town will
comprise 9,500 dwellings in total, of which 7,500 are anticipated to come forward by
2031. Northstowe is located on the Guided Busway and will have good public
transport links to Cambridge but at present the guided buses often get caught along
with all other traffic on congested roads once they reach Cambridge.

During the Summer’s Issues & Options consultation, South Cambridgeshire District
Council consulted on options for a new town based on Waterbeach Barracks
delivering up to 10,500 new homes, and a new village at Bourn Airfield which could
deliver up to 3,500 new homes. New settlement options could deliver significant
numbers of new homes but they have major infrastructure requirements, particularly
in terms of transport measures, and are not as sustainable as locations in and on the
edge of Cambridge. High quality, sustainable transport solutions would be essential
to minimise commuting by private car. New settlements also require long lead in
times before they can deliver homes on the ground and therefore could only provide
homes for the second half of the plan period, although they would continue to provide
housing beyond the plan period. It is therefore considered that a new town at
Waterbeach could deliver 4,500 dwellings in the plan period, whilst all of Bourn
Airfield could potentially be delivered. This stage in the sequence could therefore

20



6.21

6.22

Page 37

deliver up to a maximum of 15,500 new homes in the plan period if both Waterbeach
and Bourn Airfield were allocated alongside Northstowe.

Larger, better served villages

This is the least sustainable stage in the sequence for new development, with only
the many small villages in South Cambridgeshire being less sustainable. There are
outstanding commitments for a total of 3,743 homes in the rural area as a whole as
at July 2012. South Cambridgeshire District Council consulted in the summer on site
options that could deliver a total of 5,850 new homes on village sites. As part of the
Council’'s Part 2 Issues and Options consultation, it is consulting on additional site
options at larger villages that could deliver an additional x,xxx new homes. This
gives options for a total of xxxx new homes at this lowest stage in the development
sequence and a total supply of xxxx homes in the rural area. (Note: work is still in
progress as part of preparing for Part 2 consultation).

Implications for a sustainable development strategy

In its National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), the Government carries forward
the advice from earlier Planning Policy Statements that, when drawing up or
reviewing Green Belt boundaries, local planning authorities should take account of
the need to promote sustainable patterns of development. They should consider the
consequences for sustainable development of channelling development towards
urban areas inside the Green Belt boundary, towards towns and villages inset within
the Green Belt or towards locations beyond the outer Green Belt boundary. As part
of preparing new Local Plans and given the change in circumstances since the
current development strategy was agreed, it is therefore considered appropriate to
carry out a new review of the Cambridge Green Belt in order to establish whether
there are new site options for development that should be consulted on.

21



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Page 38

Green Belt

The Green Belt surrounding Cambridge has been in place since the 1950s. Green
Belt policy has maintained the setting and special character of Cambridge, avoided
coalescence with the ring of villages closest to the city, protected the countryside
from development and prevented urban sprawl. The result is that Cambridge
remains a compact city, surrounded by attractive countryside and a ring of attractive
villages to which there is easy access by foot and bicycle. The city centre is
unusually close to open countryside, particularly to the west and south-west.

These characteristics are valued assets and significantly contribute to the character
and attractiveness of the city and the wider Cambridge area, and the quality of life
enjoyed here. The Green Belt around Cambridge has an inextricable relationship
with the preservation of the character of the city, which is derived from the interplay
between the historic centre, the suburbs around it and the rural setting that encircles
it.

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that the Government
attaches great importance to Green Belts, with the fundamental aim of Green Belt
policy being to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open. The
essential characteristics of Green Belts are their openness and their permanence.

The NPPF continues the five long established national purposes of including land
within Green Belts as being to:

1.  to check the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas;
to prevent neighbouring towns merging into one another;
to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment;

to preserve the setting and special character of historic towns; and

a bk 0N

to assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict and
other urban land.

At the local level, the following purposes of the Cambridge Green Belt have been
established in previous Local Plans:

1. to preserve the unique character of Cambridge as a compact, dynamic city with
a thriving historic centre;

to maintain and enhance the quality of its setting; and

to prevent communities in the environs of Cambridge from merging into one
another and with the city.

Green Belt boundaries can only be established in Local Plans and according to the
NPPF, once established they can only be altered in exceptional circumstances. The
current inner Green Belt boundaries have been established through the Cambridge
Local Plan (2006) and South Cambridgeshire Local Development Framework (2007-
2010), including the Cambridge East Area Action Plan (2008) and North West
Cambridge Area Action Plan (2009). The exceptional circumstances for establishing
the Green Belt boundaries set out in existing plans came through the Cambridgeshire

22



7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

Page 39

and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003), which sought to focus more growth close to
Cambridge to increase the sustainability of development. The Structure Plan agreed
broad locations where land should be released from the Green Belt.

In order to inform the selection of the current detailed Green Belt boundaries, two
important studies were undertaken. The first was the Inner Green Belt Boundary
Study undertaken by Cambridge City Council in 2002 and the second was the
Cambridge Green Belt Study by LDA for South Cambridgeshire District Council in
September 2002.

The study for South Cambridgeshire District Council took a detailed look at the Green
Belt around the east of Cambridge and a wider, more strategic look at the Green Belt
elsewhere around the city, whilst the Inner Green Belt Boundary Study prepared by
Cambridge City Council was carried out to specifically assist with identifying sites that
could be released from the Green Belt for development close to Cambridge without
harm to the purposes of the Green Belt including the setting of the city.

The City Council also commissioned a specific Green Belt study in relation to land
West of Trumpington Road. This was a requirement of the Structure Plan (2003).
This study concluded that there was no case for a Green Belt release within the land
West of Trumpington Road, in that the land provides a rural setting of arable
farmland and water meadows close to the historic core, which is not found elsewhere
around Cambridge. A smaller area of land including school playing fields and the
golf course was assessed for development within this broad location and it was
concluded that these were attractive features in their own right which contribute
positively to the quality of the landscape setting of Cambridge, and the quality of life
for people within the city.

The current Green Belt boundary around the city was established with the
expectation that its boundaries could endure to the end of the plan period of 2016
and beyond. However, circumstances have changed, and whilst good progress has
been made towards achieving the current development strategy, with development of
the fringes all underway with the exception of Cambridge East, the Councils do need
to consider as part of preparing their new Local Plans whether there are exceptional
circumstances for reviewing Green Belt boundaries again. In reviewing Green Belt
boundaries, the NPPF requires local planning authorities to take account of the need
to promote sustainable patterns of development, and with consideration given to the
consequences for sustainable development of channelling development outwards
urban areas inside the Green Belt boundary, towards towns and villages inset within
the Green Belt or towards locations beyond the outer Green Belt boundary.

Both Councils took a joined up approach in the Issues and Options consultations in
Summer 2012 and asked whether there should be more development on the edge of
Cambridge, if there should be more land released from the Green Belt, and if so,
where should this be. 10 Broad Locations around the edge of Cambridge were
consulted on. A summary of the views received are contained in the technical
assessment of the Green Belt (Note: for the Joint Member meeting they are
contained in Appendix F to the covering report).

23



712

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

Page 40

To help inform the process in moving forward, the Councils have since undertaken a
joint review of the Inner Green Belt boundary. The purpose of the review was to
provide an up to date evidence base for Councils’ new Local Plans, and help the
Councils reach a view on whether there are specific areas of land that could be
considered for release from the Green Belt and allocated for development to meet
their identified needs without significant harm to Green Belt purposes.

The Inner Green Belt Study Review 2012 builds on the studies that were undertaken
in 2002 and 2003 as well as the broad updated appraisal of the Inner Green Belt
boundary that the City Council undertook in March 2012 to sit alongside its Issues
and Options consultation (Summer 2012). The broad appraisal of the inner Green
Belt boundary areas was undertaken against the backdrop of the most recent land
releases and how those releases have affected the revised inner Green Belt
boundary. The appraisal specifically reconsidered zones of land immediately
adjacent to the city in terms of the principles and function of the Green Belt. It did not
identify specific areas with potential for further release.

In summary, both steps have found that releases of land on the edge of the city
through the current Local Plans are sound. However, as a consequence of the
releases, the adjacent rural land surrounding these sites does now have increased
value for Green Belt purposes and to the setting of the city. This increase in value for
Green Belt purposes comes from three considerations:

1. new developed edges are being created on land released from the Green Belt
by previous plans and these edges are moving the city further into its rural
surroundings and therefore lessening the extent of the Green Belt;

2. the new edges are different from those previously seen on the edge of the city
being more densely developed and usually higher and not so easily softened by
vegetation; and

3. views of the city will be foreshortened as the edge advances into the rural
surroundings sometimes making the foreground noticeably more important for
the setting of the city.

The work has concluded that areas where the city is viewed from higher ground or
generally has open aspects, or where the urban edge is close to the city centre are
more sensitive and cannot accommodate change1 easily. Areas of the city that have
level views and where the edge has mixed foreground can sometimes accommodate
change more easily. On a comparative basis these areas have a lesser importance
to the setting of the city and to the purposes of Green Belt.

Given that the inner Green Belt boundary was looked at very closely only a decade
ago it should not be unexpected that the new review has found that most of the inner
Green Belt continues to be important for Green Belt purposes and specifically
important to protect the setting and special character of Cambridge as a historic city.

! ‘Change’ means the introduction of a different feature into the rural/agricultural landscape. This could be an electricity pylon,
built development or even a bio-mass crop, but in this instance it is built development.

24



717

7.18

7.19

Page 41

The work has also confirmed that in areas where changes to the city edge are
currently envisaged and are adjacent to important view-points such as motorways or
elevated vantage points, there needs to be an appropriately sized area of land
retained as Green Belt between any future urban edge and the view/vantage point to
still provide a green foreground setting to the city. This green foreground should be
retained as Green Belt. This need is vital because development requires a minimum
distance between it and the viewpoint to avoid a harmful effect on the setting of the
city. This can be demonstrated on the northern edge of the city where development
now abuts the A14 with no foreground between the viewpoint and the development.
As a result, the development cannot be viewed in any sort of landscape context or
setting making it appear severe and discordant.

Having thoroughly tested the inner Green Belt boundary, the Inner Green Belt Study
Review 2012 finds that there are a limited number of small sites, which are of lesser
importance to Green Belt purposes. The findings of the study have been
incorporated into the technical assessments of sites. The site options both proposed
and rejected are considered further in Chapter 9.

Furthermore, the Inner Green Belt Boundary Review 2012 has also concluded that
the significant majority of the remaining Green Belt is fundamentally important to the
purpose of the Cambridge Green Belt and should not be developed. This is
considered to be the tipping point, at which if you extend beyond this point for
development, the Green Belt purposes and setting of the city is compromised. Any
further significant development on the inner edge of the Green Belt would have
significant implications for Green Belt purposes and fundamentally change
Cambridge as a place. The conclusions of the Green Belt Study 2002 by LDA
remain that despite extensive development to the south-east, east and north of the
historic core, the scale of the core relative to the whole is such that Cambridge still
retains the character of a city focussed on its historic core.

25



8.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

Page 42

A Sustainable Development Strategy for Cambridge and
South Cambridgeshire to 2031

The review of the Green Belt and technical assessment of sites (see Chapters 7 and
9) have identified site options with capacity for only up to 680 dwellings on 4 sites
with a further 2 site options for employment use. These are sites that could be
developed without significant harm to the purposes for including land in the Green
Belt (see Chapter 7). This gives a total supply of around 12,000 new homes on the
edge of Cambridge.

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) places an emphasis on achieving
sustainable development. Looking at the three arms of sustainability, the issue
facing the Councils is how best to balance the forecast number of jobs that will be
created over the plan period to 2031, for which permissions already exist or land is
already allocated, with the new homes that need to be provided to support local
needs and the growing economy. Whilst sufficient employment land is already
committed for the forecast new jobs, employment studies suggest it is not all in the
best locations and that there is an outstanding demand for high quality employment
sites in and on the edge of Cambridge. The aim is to locate the homes to support the
jobs in places that minimise commuting and congestion and the environmental harm
that causes. Congestion also impacts on a successful economy and quality of life for
existing and future residents. These factors must be balanced against the need to
protect the special qualities of Cambridge as a compact historic city with an attractive
setting.

The work in the new Local Plans must consider what a sustainable development
strategy looks like today, given the circumstances that currently exist as opposed to
those that existed in 2003 when the previous strategy was devised. This could mean
that a much higher proportion of new housing will have to be delivered at the lower
stages in the sequence with the negative impacts this will have on sustainable
development. However, the alternative would be to consider allocating further large
sites on the edge of Cambridge where the evidence is clear that there would be very
significant harm to the purposes of the Green Belt, although they would have the
benefit of being more sustainable in other respects.

The Transport Strategy for Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire is a key factor in
this process. This will also consider what measures and enhancements might be put
in place to help mitigate impacts of development, enhance accessibility and promote
sustainable modes of transport.

On balance, the Councils have concluded that it is not appropriate at this time to
consider large Green Belt releases on the edge of Cambridge that would cause
significant harm to the Green Belt, but will work together to seek to maximise the
delivery of housing in and on the edge of Cambridge that maintains Green Belt
purposes. Notwithstanding this, the Councils acknowledge that this will have
implications for the amount of housing that will need to be allocated at the lower
stages of the development sequence in order to meet identified housing needs.

26



8.6

Page 43

Map 1 shows the major sites forming the current development strategy and the site
options consulted on by South Cambridgeshire in its summer 2012 Issues and
Options consultation. It highlights the site options on the edge of Cambridge forming
part of this consultation as set out in Chapter 9. It also shows sites options within
Cambridge and additional sites at villages forming part of the Councils’ Part 2
consultations alongside this joint consultation document.

Question 1: Development Strategy

Where do you think the appropriate balance lies between protecting land on
the edge of Cambridge that is of high significance to Green Belt purposes and
delivering development away from Cambridge in new settlements and better
served villages?

Please provide any comments.

27



Pana 44

(z102) 005220001 29usar] D09S Asnng saueupiQ ‘WBukdoD umoiD @

uyu T

‘pappe aq ||Im Suoleynsuod z Jed s|1punod
ay} jo ped Bunwuoy says abejn [euonippe
Aue pue abpuqwen uiyym suondo ays (g

‘8)Is a8y} Jo azIs
ay} 0} sajejal joquiAs auyy jo azis ayy (|
‘S3LON

aurjutell +—

Aemsng paping e

(uoneynsuog £10z ga4-uer

Z suondp g senss| ue|d [e207)
uopejNsuo) syl
:suondQ 91 }j2g uaain

(uoneynsuog z10zg 1des-Aine
| suondQ g senss| ueld |e207)
Z10Z suondp ajs - |19uno) .
o181 da1ysabplque) yinog
SMOJSYHON
JjusWBl}as MaN
uue4 ags|9 "y

smopeajy uoybuidwniy
wued Lepo |

(Le0z Aq ajqelanap sabuoj ou)

1se3 ebpuqued ‘H

abpuque) 1sep ‘9

Yled pieyoiQ 4

avIN ‘3

abpuqued 1sapn YUoN ‘a
sbpuquie) Jo ebpg

saxooIquappy ‘D
180 ‘g

Jseg ebuu4 uisypoN abpuque) y

SbpHqued

ABajeng juswdojaaa(g Jusaning

]

jjog uaalig ay} Jo Juaxg |elauan)

Aay)

€102 03 aaysabpuquwen
yinog pue abpuque)d
1o} ABajenys Juswdojanag

a|qeule)sng e spiemo] :| depy

000°012:} :9JBOS

SI218WIO|IY JYIHSAYO4dLY3IH \
HLI40ON /
™
A\
3
-
ol 0 P 7
” /
/
/
-\
gyOods3TLLN _____!I!L
/
!
o I
wnogbuisseg

uojury

JHYIHS3IOaQld8WVY D

%

JYIHsayo4a3g
{ TVYLNTO

Aebuljwes 0
o o

B UOISIH
1Sv3 o

weyuenod Gy
o

weybulim @
@ FJYIHSNOQONILNNH

INOZ 3SIddH31NT
AdNEGNOD TV

2 A




9.2

9.3

9.4

Page 45

Site Options

A technical assessment of a range of sites on the edge of Cambridge has been
undertaken. This has had regard to the comments submitted in response to the
summer 2012 consultation on ten broad locations in the Green Belt on the edge of
Cambridge (Note: for the Member meeting, see Appendix F of the report). The sites
assessed are those that were submitted to the Councils as part of their ‘call for sites’
when preparing our respective Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessments
(SHLAA) and any land identified through the new Green Belt review as fulfilling
Green Belt purposes to a lesser degree.

A wide range of constraints, policy designations and matters important to
sustainability have been taken into account in the technical assessments that inform
the selection of the site options for consultation, including flood risk, Green Belt
significance, site access, deliverability, Cambridge Airport safety zones, distance to
services and facilities, open space, transport accessibility, air quality, noise, and
biodiversity. The process involved completion of a standard site pro-forma, which
looked at the impact and significance of development. The full technical
assessments are contained in the Site Assessments for Edge of Cambridge Sites
document supporting this consultation.

The outcome of the technical assessments of all sites in each broad location have
been brought together in a summary format which can be found at Appendix 2.
These use a traffic light system where Green (G/GG) indicates low impact/low
significance; Amber (A) indicates medium impact/medium significance; and Red
(R/RR) indicates high impact/high significance. These enable a quick visual
comparison to be made between the merits of all the different sites assessed.

The following 6 site options have been identified on the edge of Cambridge as having
potential for housing or employment development. They are shown on Map 2. The
remaining sites assessed have been rejected as options for development, due to
either their significance to Green Belt purposes and/or for other factors including
planning constraints such as archaeological merit. The rejected sites are shown on
Appendix 1 and listed for information in Appendix 3.

Question 2: Which of the site options do you support or object to and why?

Please provide any comments.

Question 3: Are there other sites we should consider? (These could be sites
already assessed and rejected or new sites.)

Please provide any comments.

29



< , Page 46
Map 2: Key to Site Options in the Green Belt

N
\ I\-I\ISTON & W+E
IMPINGTON

MILTON S

peoy UOISIH ]

CHESI'ERTON

SHELFORD
& STAPLEFORD

S \ Green Belt Site Option
o
Q— ‘ 0 — e
S l District Boundary
%‘ LN ]
3
Z Green Belt
0__ § e Guided Busway
kilometers © Crown Copyright, Ordnance Survey - Current Major
Scale: 1:50,000 SCDC Licence 100022500 (2012) Developments




Page 47

Site Option GB1: Land North of Worts’ Causeway

District: Cambridge

Ward/Parish: Queen Edith’s

Area: 7.33ha

Potential Capacity: 250 dwellings

SHLAA Reference(s): CC930 (overlaps part of CC911 and SC111)
Map:

[7 [

@ .-

Sl 'o"'i??' ='
SeNi iy
,‘.:&"*fe/?l/f

Qs

—
Al

s [
E__l District Boundary

Xl

© Crown Copyright, Ordnance Survey SCDC Licence 100022500 (2012)

Description:

The site comprises locally listed farm buildings, a paddock and part of an open arable field.
The field rises to the east beyond the boundary of the site towards Limekiln Hill. The site
boundary encompasses the lowest part of the land and its northern boundary is anchored at
the point where the field boundary starts to curve away to the north-east. Existing hedges
and trees could be retained and a new landscaped boundary created to the east. Traffic on
Worts’ Causeway is currently controlled by a bus-gate which would need to be relocated.

Pros:

e Close to Addenbrooke’s Hospital,

e Highly accessible by public transport and bicycle;
e Limited visual impact if well landscaped;

o Ability to integrate with existing communities.
31



Page 48

Cons:

e Minimal Impact on Green Belt purposes;

e Potential adverse impact on Netherhall Farm Meadow County Wildlife site but capable of
mitigation;

e Small part of the site may not be available for development.

Site Option GB2: Land South of Worts’ Causeway

District: Cambridge

Ward/Parish: Queen Edith’s

Area: 6.8ha

Potential Capacity: 230 dwellings

SHLAA Reference(s): CC929 (overlaps part of CC911, SC284, and SC111)
Map:

m———

/ On
W\ /
Park and'Ride
«.  ‘CarPark f_-=
-~ e e 1
I ,QJ { ‘I‘\) i
<= Iz, |

S [—
E__' District Boundary

BY HINTOM BOAD

@ Crown Copyright, Ordnance Survey SCPC Licence 100022500 (2012)

Description:

The site comprises part of a flat open arable field bounded by hedgerows. Existing hedges
and trees could be retained and a new landscaped boundary created to the east. The site
boundary lines up with that of GB1 to the north, and is partly masked by the existing
Newbury Farm to Babraham Road. Traffic on Worts’ Causeway is currently controlled by a
bus-gate which would need to be relocated.

32



Page 49

Pros:

Close to Addenbrooke’s Hospital;
Highly accessible by public transport and bicycle;
Limited visual impact if well landscaped;

Ability to integrate with existing communities.

Cons:

Minimal impact on Green Belt purposes;
Beyond 800m of local services and facilities;

Beyond 800m of nearest primary school.

Site Option GB3: Fulbourn Road West (1)

District: Cambridge
Ward/Parish: Cherry Hinton
Area: 2.3ha

Potential Capacity:

75 dwellings. Alternatively, this site could be considered for

employment to help to meet demand for quality employment

development close to Cambridge.

SHLAA Reference(s): CC931, CC933 (overlaps part of CC911, and SC111)
Map:

33



SO T LETS] &7 s === >
(S f (7 Y-y, Z@ :

MALLETTS ROAD

S
(A Limekiln Close 18m 4
(Nature Reserve
i .
T
hhhhhhhhh - I{I
0O
il
fims
! a.'::]
________ ik
Peterhouse

Chalk Pit Technology Park

(disused)

Tumulus 3
aravan
Park

o
i

5 ( rown Copyright, Ordnance Survey SCDC Licence 100022500 {2012)

¢f

Description:

Land adjoining Peterhouse Technology Park, residential and woodland. The Technology
Park is cut into rising ground and cannot be seen from the higher ground to the south. A
similar treatment would be needed for this site if developed for employment. The site forms
part of an open arable field. Itis bounded by hedgerows, which could be retained and a new
landscaped boundary created to the south.

Pros:
¢ Highly accessible by public transport and bicycle;
¢ Highly accessible to local facilities;

e Limited visual impact if well landscaped and any employment buildings are sunk into the
ground;

e Ability to integrate with existing communities.

Cons:
¢ Minimal impact on Green Belt purposes;

e Abuts residential to the north which could constrain the form of development and the
type of uses possible on site;

e Vehicular access to the residential development would depend either upon the existing
access to Fulbourn Road through the Technology Park, or through the residential estate
to the north.

34



Page 51

Site Option GB4: Fulbourn Road West (2)

District: Cambridge
Ward/Parish: Cherry Hinton
Area: 1.4ha
Potential Capacity: Employment development
SHLAA Reference(s): CC932, (overlaps part of CC911, and SC111)
Map:
e L5 =
x DRAYTON ROAD vc‘ N
5 @ & A
) B
Z
g ALLETTS ROAD b
regs ) I p: coLY
FULBOUAN ROAD BS I} / 7 3
i Sl LI (- e ——
TWEEDALF/
- :Q' 1 s 2
P 'I g : T i i
= A Y NV :I‘
GB q | g |
:fm”)
] e ,b e
/] '__‘——--———-___________
2am ! Peterhouse -
Chalk Pit H Technology Park -
- (disused) i S
P2, ! o
i ®
Tumulus i Q
!
‘& * g
i =3
A ]
J';' I
T
\ﬂér?.h\lm Copyright, Ordnance Survey SCOC Licence 1&)022]5{)0 {2012) - e Boundary
Description:

Land adjoining Peterhouse Technology Park, and residential. The Technology Park is cut
into rising ground and cannot be seen from the higher ground to the south. A similar
treatment would be needed for this site. The site forms part of an open arable field. It is

bounded by hedgerows, which could be retained and a new landscaped boundary created to
the south.

Pros:

Could extend existing employment area to help to meet demand for quality employment
development close to Cambridge;

e Highly accessible by public transport and bicycle;

e Limited visual impact if well landscaped and sunk into the ground.

35



Page 52

Cons:

e Minimal impact on Green Belt purposes;

e Partly abuts residential to the north which could constrain the form of development and

the type of employment uses possible on site;

Would depend upon the existing access to Fulbourn Road through the Peterhouse
Technology Park.

Site Option GB5: Fulbourn Road East

District: South Cambridgeshire

Ward/Parish: Fulbourn

Area: 6.92ha

Potential Capacity: Employment development

SHLAA Reference(s): SC300 (overlaps part of SC283 and SC111)
Map:

=8

—

Peterhouse

o
Technology Park o
[+
]
4
=
)
N
w
2
Westbourne
Farm

h H ™™ 1 pistrict Boundary
© Crown Copyright, Ordnance Survey SCDC Licence 100022509 {2012) -

Description:

Land adjoining Peterhouse Technology Park. The Technology Park is cut into rising ground
and cannot be seen from the higher ground to the south. A similar treatment would be
needed for this site. The site forms part of an open arable field. It is bounded by hedgerows,
which could be retained and a new landscaped boundary created to the south and east.

36



Page 53

Pros:
e Could help to meet demand for quality employment development close to Cambridge;
e Highly accessible by public transport and bicycle;

e Limited visual impact if well landscaped and sunk into the ground.

Cons:
e Some impact on Green Belt purposes;
e Loss of good quality agricultural land;

o Detailed surveys may reveal that only part of the site should be developed if visual
impact is to be limited.

Site Option GB6: Land south of the A14 and west of Cambridge Road

District: South Cambridgeshire

Ward/Parish: Impington

Area: 12.6 ha

Potential Capacity: Up to 130 dwellings, employment development and with the

wider area of open countryside to the west wrapping round
NIAB2 to become public open space. See also Site Option
CS4 in Chapter 10 which identifies the eastern part of the site
for a community stadium as an alternative.

SHLAA Reference(s): Not applicable, submitted at Issues and Options 1 stage
Map:

37



Page 54

1

T e e ol

District Boundary

Description:

Agricultural fields south of the A14 and west of Histon Road including hedges and small
areas of woodland. The site adjoins the planned developments of NIAB1 and NIAB2 to the
south and south west. Histon Road and the A14 slip roads are elevated on embankments
close to the roundabout above the A14, which would partly shield development on the site
from wider views. An Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) runs along the A14 to address
an area of poor air quality and this proposed allocation assumes that all residential
development is located on the southern part of the site outside the AQMA in the interest of
public health. It also assumes the retention of hedges and woodland and a set back of the
development from Histon Road to provide effective visual separation between Cambridge
and Impington.

Pros:
e Opportunity to masterplan with the NIAB2 site;
e Highly accessible by public transport and bicycle;

e Limited visual impact if well landscaped.

Cons:
e Some impact on Green Belt purposes
¢ Significant noise and air quality issues, no residential development possible in the AQMA

e Pylons cross the site.

38



10.
10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

Page 55

Sub-Regional Sporting, Cultural and Community Facilities

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) requires Councils to plan positively
for the provision of social, recreational and cultural facilities and services. Studies
exploring the cultural and sporting needs of the Cambridge Sub-Region identified
gaps in provision for some types of major sub regional facilities, including a
community stadium, ice rink and concert hall. Through the previous Issues and
Options consultations, both Councils sought views on whether there is need for these
facilities, and if there is, where they should be located. Further work has now been
undertaken to review the evidence for such facilities and consider options for dealing
with them in the new Local Plans in the Cambridge Sub-Regional Facilities Review
supporting this consultation.

Community Stadium

The term ‘community stadium’ is used to describe a sports stadium facility that
delivers amenities and services to local communities beyond its core operations.
These may include health, leisure and general community provisions and/or sports
and education facilities, as well as local retail and other local businesses. A
community stadium also aims to be accessible to the local community at all times
during the day and evening, on weekdays and weekends.

The Councils have reviewed the evidence available, to explore whether there is a
need for a community stadium and what a community stadium would encompass.

The Cambridge Sub-Regional Facilities Review looked at previous studies that have
identified the potential benefit to the Cambridge Sub-Region of a community stadium,
meeting the needs of one or more of its major sports clubs and providing supporting
facilities to local communities. A community stadium could raise the sporting profile
of the area, whilst delivering a community hub through, for example, the provision of
sports participation and other community accessible activities and/or local business
engagement opportunities.

Previous studies also suggest that Cambridge United FC would likely be the anchor
tenant for a stadium of the scale envisaged (circa 10,000 seats). The existing Abbey
Stadium site on Newmarket Road meets the current needs of Cambridge United,
although the current facilities are not ideal for the club. The facilities at this site do
not currently contribute to the broader range of activities that would be found in a
community stadium facility.

Given this situation, no specific need has been identified in the Cambridge Sub-
Regional Facilities Review requiring the provision of a community stadium, and it
concludes that whether there is considered to be a need for a community stadium to
serve the Cambridge Sub-Region is a subjective issue. However, the Review
identifies that the right package of uses in a suitable location could deliver benefits
for the wider sub-region.

In summary, drawing on factors identified in the Review, the following principles for a
community stadium have been identified. It should:

39



10.8

10.9

Page 56

o Meet the needs of at least one, but ideally more than one locally significant sports
club;

e Be at the centre of the local community, through for example, the provision of
sports participation and other community accessible activities and/ or local
business engagement opportunities;

e Deliver amenities and services to local communities beyond its core operations;

e Be accessible to the communities it serves throughout the day and evening, on
weekdays and weekends;

e Help provide a critical mass of services, and increased awareness of services
available;

e Increase participation in sporting activity;

e Play a community hub role, supporting community engagement and
development;

¢ Include a mix of health, leisure, education, general community provision, sports,
retail, and business - the success of these facilities will determine whether the
facility is embraced by the local community;

o Reflect the key requirements and priorities of the sub-region’s new and existing
communities;

¢ Be financially sustainable.

To deliver a standalone stadium would require around 3 hectares but, for a
community stadium with additional community and sporting facilities, a much larger
site would be needed. Site options have been explored within Cambridge, on the
edge of Cambridge and elsewhere. There are few sites of this scale available within
the built up area of Cambridge. Outside Cambridge much of the land is in the Green
Belt, which would preclude this type of development unless the need and benefit was
such that it provided an exceptional circumstance to justify a review of the Green Belt
through the Local Plan review.

Question 4: Do you consider there is a need for a community stadium?

Question 5: Do you agree with the principles identified for the vision for a
community stadium?

Question 6: If a suitable site cannot be found elsewhere, do you think the need
is sufficient to provide exceptional circumstances for a review of the Green
Belt to accommodate a community stadium?

Please provide any comments.

Potential Community Stadium Site Options

Following the first Issues and Options consultation, the Councils have explored the
potential of a range of site options to provide a community stadium as part of the
Cambridge Sub-Regional Facilities Review, including a number of sites that were
suggested in responses to the consultation. There are major issues associated with
all site options and this may mean that some sites may not be capable of being
delivered. However, it is considered appropriate to consult on these options at this

40



10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

Page 57

stage in the process before any decisions are taken on whether a community
stadium should be provided and if so where. The view of the local community is an
important step in the process. It is also recognised that for some site options,
landowners may have different aspirations and we would encourage these to be
made clear through the consultation before any decisions are taken. The sites are
shown on Map 3. The consultation document highlights the advantages and
disadvantages of each option to inform comment.

The Councils have not yet made a decision regarding the need for a site, and is not
promoting a specific option, but is seeking views on potential options in order to
inform decision making.

Three potential sites have been identified, within or on the edge of the city, which are
outside the Green Belt:

o Abbey Stadium - including allotment land;
e Cowley Road, Cambridge — Former Park and Ride site;

e Cambridge East — North of Newmarket Road.

Three options have been identified on the edge of Cambridge. They would require a
review of the Green Belt:

e West of Cambridge Road South of the A14, Impington (adjoining the existing NIAB
sites) (see also Site Option GB6 in Chapter 9);

e Land south of Trumpington Meadows, Hauxton Road, Cambridge;

e Land between Milton and Histon, north of A14 (Union Place).

A further option would be to locate a community stadium outside Cambridge, at a
new town or village. Northstowe is already planned, and it was recently resolved to
grant planning permission to the first phase. The first South Cambridgeshire Local
Plan Issues and Options Report consulted on two further potential new settlement
options, at Waterbeach Barracks and Bourn Airfield.

¢ Northstowe;
e \Waterbeach - New Town Option;

e Bourn Airfield - New Village Option.

Question 7: Which of the following site options for a community stadium do
you support or object to, and why?

Please provide any comments.

41



(z102) 005220001 20user D095 Aswng saueupip 'WBukdod umoiD @

aury urel] —

Aemsng paping e

uondp umo] meN yoeaqialep) - 850

B SMOJSYUON - £SO
(s9eld UOIUN) #1 Y JO YuoU

‘UOJSIH pue UojIly Usamiag pueT - 959

smopeajy ucjbuidwniy Jo Yyinos pue - GSO

D
D
) uondo Juswemes MaN plaIulY UInog - SO
D)
V]

Panna £EQ

uobuidwi ‘v
8y} Jo yinos ‘peoy sbpuquied Jo 1Sep - $S0
abpuque) ‘peoy 1BBWMSN JO YUON - €80
abpuque) ‘peoy Aemog - 2SO

abpuque) ‘pueT jusuwioliy
Buuiolpy g wnipels Asqqy eyl - 15O

uondo aus wnipejs Ajunwwon
}|8g uaalis) ay} Jo JuUsX3g |elauan)

Aoy

wnipe}s AJlunwwo) e 1oy
suondQ 9y 03 Aoy :¢ depy

8SD

2y

6SD

&gz Pty




Page 59

Site Option CS1: The Abbey Stadium and Adjoining Allotment Land,
Newmarket Road, Cambridge

District: Cambridge
Ward/Parish: Abbey

Area: 7.1 ha

Potential Capacity: Community Stadium
Reference(s):

Map:

s““Cambridge

E}""'rﬁ ‘

Description:

The existing Abbey Stadium site is not sufficient size to accommodate a Community
Stadium. The stadium owners are seeking an alternative site. Inclusion of allotment land to
the south would make a larger site. The stadium itself is set back from the Newmarket Road
frontage, by an area of hardstanding used for car and cycle parking, and a number of single
storey buildings which includes a car and van hire firm. To the east and north, the site is
surrounded by residential development. To the south is the Abbey Leisure Centre. To the
west, there is open space, consisting of grass and scrub, linking to Coldham’s Common.

Pros:
e Established football club location;

e Part of an established residential community;

43



Page 60

Near to existing sports facilities, with potential to form a sports hub with the Abbey sports
complex;

With the incorporation of further land around the existing stadium, this would offer
greater scope to have a wider community purpose;

Nearest available site to the City Centre;

Site is at least 1.5km from the nearest railway station (existing or proposed) but within
400m of High Quality Public Transport bus routes.

Cons:

Loss of existing allotments (Protected Open Space, would require appropriate
replacement elsewhere);

The site is located off Newmarket Road, which can suffer from congestion particularly at
the weekends. he impact on both local and strategic transport networks would need to
be investigated further;

Grosvenor have indicated they are pursuing the existing stadium site for housing
development.

Site Option CS2: Cowley Road Cambridge (former Park and Ride and Golf
Driving Range)

District: Cambridge
Ward/Parish: East Chesterton
Area: 6.5 ha

Potential Capacity: Community Stadium
Reference(s):

44



Page 61

C

S2
Golf Driving Range

Description:

Former Park and Ride site and golf driving range. Related to the development of a new
railway station on the nearby railway sidings, the area is identified as having potential for
employment development in the Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire Local Plans’ Issues
and Options reports. The area is surrounded by existing employment development on three
sides, with the Waste Water Treatment Works to the north. The land is owned by
Cambridge City Council, who have previously indicated the land is not available for this use,
due to its employment potential as part of the wider Cambridge Northern Fringe East area.

Pros:

o Area will be subject to significant public transport improvement with new railway station
and links to guided bus;

e Previously developed vacant site, providing an opportunity as part of wider Cambridge
Northern Fringe East development.

Cons:

e Capable of accommodating a stadium, but limited size to accommodate much beyond
core Community Stadium facilities;

e Identified as an opportunity for employment development in Local Plan Issues and
Options Reports, would reduce land available for this use;

e Isolated from existing or planned residential area;

45



Page 62

e Access along single lane road;

e Cambridge City Council, the landowner has previously indicated land not available for
this use.

Site Option CS3: North of Newmarket Road, Cambridge East

District: South Cambridgeshire
Ward/Parish: Fen Ditton

Area: 40 ha

Potential Capacity: Community Stadium
Reference(s):

Map:

.

_____ = . — 1 District Boundary

= b
—— T z i ——

Description:

The site was identified in the Cambridge East Area Action Plan for development of 1,500 to
2,000 homes, that could come forward whilst the airport remains operational. The
Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire Local Plan Issues and Options Reports sought views
on how the area should be addressed in future development plans.

Marshall has recently announced a renewed intention to submit a planning application for
commercial and residential development on this land. This is an early stage in the process.
The Councils will continue to work with Marshall to bring forward an appropriate form of
development on this site to meet the development needs of Cambridge and the surrounding
area.

46



Page 63

Pros:

e Potential to integrate new facilities with wider development, including a residential
community (if the site comes forward for residential development);

e Near to existing Abbey Stadium site;
e (Good access to public transport and Park and Ride;
e Opportunities for open space / Green infrastructure in wider site;

e Land already removed from the Green Belt for development.

Cons:
o Airport safety zones could impact on building height, or influence location of facilities;
e Would reduce land available for housing;

e Marshalls have previously indicated land is not available for this use.

Site Option CS4: West of Cambridge Road and South of the A14, Impington

District: South Cambridgeshire
Ward/Parish: Impington

Area: 9 ha

Potential Capacity: Community Stadium
Reference(s):

47



Page 64

Map:

Description:

The existing development plans of South Cambridgeshire and Cambridge City Council have
allocated two sites for housing development between Huntingdon Road and Histon Road,
totalling 2,600 homes (referred to as NIAB 1 and 2). A further site was identified through the
site assessments for Edge of Cambridge Sites, as having potential for development. It is the
only one of the six site options identified through this process to warrant consideration for a
Community Stadium, due to its scale, location, and lesser impact on the Green Belt than the
two specific proposals received.

Pros:
¢ Adjoins a new community, opportunity to integrate facilities;

e Access to High Quality Public Transport and good cycling routes. Access via guided bus
to planned new railway station.

Cons:

o Green Belt site - development would have negative impacts on the Green Belt purposes
but mitigation possible;

e Within the Air Quality Management Area designated on the A14, would need to address
traffic impacts;

o Site size and shape could limit range of additional facilities or open space that could be
accommodated;

48



Page 65

e Over 3km from the City Centre;

¢ Need to resolve parking and transport issues.

Site Option CS5: Land south of Trumpington Meadows, Hauxton Road
Cambridge

District: Cambridge / South Cambridgeshire
Ward/Parish: Trumpington / Haslingfield

Area: 32 ha

Potential Capacity: Community Stadium

Reference(s):

Map:

s [
E__l District Boundary

Description:

Trumpington Meadows is a cross boundary site, allocated in South Cambridgeshire and
Cambridge City Councils development plans for a development of 1,200 dwellings and
associated facilities, and the create a new distinctive urban edge to Cambridge. Planning
permission has subsequently been granted, and construction is underway.

Through the Issues and Options consultation the development company Grosvenor /
Wrenbridge have submitted a proposal for approximately 15 hectares of Green Belt land
between the M11 and the planning development to accommodate a community stadium, 400

49



Page 66

additional dwellings, and a range of outdoor sports pitches, and an extension to the planned
country park.

This site makes a major contribution to the Green Belt on the edge of Cambridge. Whilst it
has been ruled out for residential development by the Councils, and there would be
significant impacts with a community stadium in this location, it is considered appropriate to
consult on the potential for a community stadium in this location before any decisions are
made.

Pros:

Large site, giving flexibility to accommodate a range of facilities;

Would adjoin planned new community;

Near to existing park and ride facility, and guided bus links to railway stations;
Potential to deliver new pitches and open space on city edge;

Specific proposal received from land owners, in consultation with sport clubs, which
gives greater certainty that site is deliverable.

Cons:

Green Belt — Significant adverse impact on the purposes of Green Belt in terms of setting
of the city;

Opportunity to integrate facilities with a new community limited by adding to existing site
rather than integrating with existing proposals;

Nearly 4km from railway station and the City Centre;

Beyond 400m of Park and Ride site and does not benefit from all aspects of a High
Quality Public Transport service;

Need to resolve parking and transport issues.

Site Option CS6: Land between Milton and Impington, north of A14 (Union

Place)

District: South Cambridgeshire
Ward/Parish: Milton

Area: 24 ha

Potential Capacity: Community Stadium
Reference(s):

50



Page 67

Map:

Farm

b A
N o [ 5 O™

]

ety ]
=, t(‘&fs-‘ﬂ:-

™™~
B E__' District Boundary

Description:

Through representations to the Issues and Options Report, a site has been submitted and
referred to as Union Place, between Milton and Impington north of the A14. Representations
propose that the site could accommodate a community stadium, concert hall and ice rink. It
would also be accompanied by hotel and conferencing facilities. The representation
indicates that road access to the site would be through an existing underpass under the A14
to the rear of the Cambridge Regional College, and a new road built along the Mere Way
from Butt Lane, a public right of way following the route of a roman road. This would be
accompanied by expansion of the Milton Park and Ride, and a new Park and Ride south of
Impington.

Pros:

e Significant scale would give potential for pitches or open space to accompany proposal
(or other sub regional facilities);

¢ Near to Regional College, potential linkages for sports education.

Cons:
e Green Belt — significant impact on the purposes of the Green Belt;

e Access constraints — Currently limited access to site through A14 underpass, unsuitable
for high volumes of traffic. Proposes new road along Mere Way from Butt Lane, a public
right of way;

¢ Need to demonstrate highway capacity on the A14 and local roads;
51



Page 68

o Limited existing walking and cycling access to site. Separated from city by A14 / A10.
Underpass to rear of Regional College a particular constraint;

o Relatively long walk from guided bus and Park and Ride . Due to distance does not meet
definition of High Quality Public Transport;

e Isolated from existing or new community;
e Potential impact on existing Travellers Site;

¢ Adjoins the Air Quality Management Area designated on the A14, would need to address
traffic impacts;

e Potential impacts on Milton A14 junction, need to demonstrate strategic highway
capacity.

Site Option CS7: Northstowe

District: South Cambridgeshire

Ward/Parish: Longstanton / Oakington and Westwick

Area: 432 ha (with additional 60 ha. strategic reserve)
Potential Capacity: Community Stadium

Reference(s):

Map:

S By ol o OAKNGTONAND iy 48
i s f W = Py \\f_éﬁl'\’\'f.l R _» ‘-—“‘8;‘_
& Crown Ccp_yriﬂ Ordnance Survey SCDC Licence 100022500 (2012) :

e

52



Page 69

Description:

The new town of Northstowe is located between Oakington and Longstanton, on the route of
the Guided Busway, and is planned to accommodate up to 9,500 dwellings and a range of
other services, facilities, and employment. The Northstowe Development Framework was
agreed in 2012, and South Cambridgeshire District Council has resolved to grant planning
permission for the first phase of development

Pros:
e Opportunity to integrate facilities into new town;

e Located on route of the Guided Bus (with links to new station), and existing park and ride
facilities;

e Not in the Green Belt.

Cons:

e Development Framework Plan already agreed, and it has been resolved to grant
planning permission for the first phase;

e Tight land budget to accommodate all the uses needed in the town. Inclusion of facilities
could impact on ability to deliver other uses;

¢ 8km from Cambridge City Centre, limiting walking and cycling access from Cambridge;
e Conflict with desire of Cambridge United for a Cambridge location;

e Constraints of the A14 could mean there would only be highway capacity later in the plan
period.

Site Option CS8: Waterbeach New Town Option

District: South Cambridgeshire
Ward/Parish: Waterbeach

Area: 558 or 280 ha
Potential Capacity: Community Stadium
Reference(s):

53



Page 70

P LANDBEACHCP| /iy
g fidf

s
E_ y District Boundary

© Crown Copyright, Orllirla_m:g;SU.rwy SCDC Licence 1000

Description:

The South Cambridgeshire Local Plan Issues and Options Report 2012 identified an option
of a new town at Waterbeach to accommodate future development. Two options were
identified, one utilising the MOD land (dwelling capacity 7,600), one including a larger site
(dwelling capacity 12,750).

Pros:

Opportunities to deliver site as part of town master plan and to integrate stadium to act
as community hub;

Greater flexibility at early planning stage;
Near to a Waterbeach Railway Station as part of the new town;
Not in the Green Belt.

Cons:

9km from Cambridge City Centre, limiting walking and cycling access from Cambridge;
Conflict with desire of Cambridge United for a Cambridge location;

Significant infrastructure requirements could mean only deliverable later in the plan
period;

Uncertainty regarding quality of public transport / cycling facilities at this stage, although
there would need to be significant improvement;

54



Page 71

o Waterbeach new town is only an option at this stage.

Site Option CS9: Bourn Airfield New Settlement Option

District: South Cambridgeshire
Ward/Parish: Bourn

Area: 141 ha.

Potential Capacity: Community Stadium
Reference(s):

Map:

i

C-rowq Copyright, Ordnance Survey S_CDC Licence 104:!022500 (2012)

Description:

The South Cambridgeshire Local Plan Issues and Options Report 2012 identified an option
for a new village on Bourn Airfield, east of Cambourne, with a capacity of 3,000 to 3,500
dwellings.

Pros:

o Opportunity to integrate community stadium into a new settlement, at very early stages
of planning;

e Land not in the Green Belt.

55



Cons:

Page 72

¢ 10km from Cambridge City Centre;

e Poorest non-car access of all sites tested. Limiting walking and cycling access from
Cambridge. Does not have access to high quality public transport. 12km from railway
station;

o Proposal for a new village, conflict with sequential test for major town centre facilities;

e Conflict with desire of Cambridge United for a Cambridge location;

e Bourn Airfield new village is still only an option at this stage.

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

Ice Rink and Concert Hall

The Cambridge Sub-Regional Facilities Review identified that analysis in the
Cambridgeshire Horizons studies showed that there is demand for an ice rink with a
sufficient population catchment similar to a number of other facilities in the country.
The Major Sports Facilities Strategy recommended that an ice rink be developed with
a vision to provide an ice centre that offers a range of ice based activities (ice
hockey, public skating, figure skating, curling etc.) with a focus on providing
opportunities for community, local clubs and the University of Cambridge.

Whilst a group known as Cambridge Leisure Ice Centre (CLIC) looked at various
locations including North West Cambridge, Cambourne and West Cambridge, no firm
proposals have been put forward. A facility would be much smaller than a community
stadium, and there could be more options regarding location.

The Cambridgeshire Horizons Arts and Culture Strategy concluded that although
there is a wide range of music venues at the small and medium scale in and around
Cambridge, there is growing interest in testing the case for a purpose-built auditorium
for a large scale music venue. It would still be necessary to demonstrate a need and
demand for such a facility, and consider the costs and benefits. Given its scale,
Cambridge East was suggested as a possible location for a purpose built concert
hall, but the main airport site is no longer anticipated to come forward for
redevelopment until at least 2031.

Given the limited evidence available at this stage, instead of allocating a specific site,
the Local Plans could include a general policy that would provide a framework for
considering any proposals for sub-regional facilities, so that should proposals come
forward they can be appropriately considered. This would need to be read alongside
other policies of the plan addressing more general planning considerations.
Principles could include:

e Provide evidence of significant cultural and recreational importance to justify the
need for a facility, and that it is viable and deliverable;

e As main town centre uses, a sequential approach to development has been
applied, seeking City Centre locations before considering edge of centre and out
of centre locations;

e Utilise opportunities to create a positive landmark by virtue of high quality design,
56



Page 73

scale and massing of a development, considering relationships with surrounding
buildings and the public realm;

e Consider impact of traffic movement generated at peak times e.g. event days, as
well as at other times;

e Maximise use of public transport and non-motorised modes of transport;

e Consider impact of parking and movement of pedestrians in the surrounding area
with regard to community safety and linkages to transport hubs.

Question x: Rather than identifying specific sites, should the Local Plans include a
general policy to assist the consideration of any proposals for sub regional facilities
such as ice rinks and concert halls, should they come forward?

Are the right principles identified? If not, what should be included?

Please provide any comments.

57



Page 74

APPENDICES

58



Page 75

- 7
Appendix 1: Key Map of Rejected Green Belt Sites N
\ IkI\ISTON& W+E
IMPINGTON MILTON &

SC060/ 5C081

Newmarket Roaglf

(

‘_’/\& TEVERSHAM

S :
23 CC914b 3%
CC914a

o =
- '
GREAT
SHELFORD
& STAPLEFORD
Rejected Green Belt Site
> \ (SHLAA number)
(s)
& L\ .
;5’ District Boundary
)
Z Green Belt
0__ 2 Guided Busway
kilometers © Crown Copyright, Ordnance Survey Current Major
Scale: 1:50,000 SCDC Licence 100022500 (2012) Developments




Page 76

uoISN|2U0Y ||e4dAQ
e e e e e e Ajsianipolg
e [§] e e e 9SION
L LN VINDV Wwolj dduessig
6 6 6 6 e (pou00
sqwe) yinog) podsuel |
e (3x@u09 AN9) wodsues |
[§] [§] [§] [§] 3] uoisinold eoeds uadQ
Sa}lUNWWOD
9 & 9 Bunsixe yyum uonelbayu|
EYINER)
€ € € [B00|/3011SIp O} @due)lsig
SUOIjJeIapISuo0? JaYyjQ Z |2
auoz
fajes poday abpuque)
ss00e 9)IS
juswdolonap Joj swelswl |
1og usalio
3SL poo|4
suoljesapisuo9 2ibajes3s | [9Aa7]
e/u e/u e/u e/u e/u e/u uondo ayis Jjog usalo
) ) ) ) . ) pasodoud/|e}o}
Lee 86 98¥'L-166 ¥ L-0€8 6617 7-666 ¢ 661 7666 ¢ ‘Kioedeo Buljjomp [eUOION
ey yl'g eygle ey g0o'ee-s0'¢e By G9'/Z-v1'8l ey 1L9'0l-L0L BY 8y'ZLL-86'v. [elqedojanap Ajjenusiod/|ejoy
/989 /ey0e'c /ey 0¥y /By L8'9¢ /eyvlyl /By Le'6Yl (ey) ease ayg
Z YLON peoy uoueg peoy uoileg wJue abuels peoy uoned peoy uoned cotmm_wwﬂ#:om ssalppy
40 YLON pueT 10 YLON pueT 40 YLON pueT puE YLON pue
12620 926090 91622 12600 6620S (47401 :90UBI8j9Y 8IS
peoy uojieg jo Yyjnos B you ayj 0} pueT :| uoijeso] peoiqg

S9}IS }|og udalo Jo sjuswssassy Alewwng
Z Xipuaddy



Page 77

‘uodsuel o1ignd Ajjenb ybiy o1 e|qissasoe jou si ) -
"saljljioe) mau Joy apiaolid o} s|ge aq 0)
A19)1| SS9 SI )1 82IS S)I 0} @np pue ‘jooyos Alewid pue A1abins 4o ‘@Jjuad [Bo0] / JOUISIP SB Yons Saljijioe) [ed0] 0} Jeau jou S| 8)IS -

Z YMON peoy uojieg

'sayis Buluiolpe yym padojaasap ssajun ssadode a)is JejndlyaAa ajenbapeu - 42620
'sasodind }jog usals) uo joedwl 8SIaApY -
"alaymas|a paoe|dal Ajliojoe)siies aq 0} aAey pjnom adeds uado siyl g/
o104 ue|d |e207 8bpuquie) Jepun pajoalold aq Ajenualod pinod ysiym ‘pialy buikeld e jo sso| ay) ul jnsal pjnom juswdojaaaq -
‘podsuely o1gnd Ayjenb ybiy oy a|qissasoe jou si ] - peoy
"saljljloe} mau Jo} apiaold 0} a|ge aq 0} uojieg Jo YON pueT]
Al9Y1] sS9| SI 11 9zIs S)1 0} anp pue ‘jooyds Asewnd pue A1ebins 4o ‘91jusd [B20| / JOISIP SB YyoNns saljijioe) [ed0] 0} Jedu Jou S| 8)IS- 92609

‘diysJaumo awes ayj Ul Sl YdIym g0/ 8)IS paedo|je Yum Jo /ZeDD dls Yyum padojaasp Ssajun ssaooe a)Is JejnolyaA ajenbapeu| -
‘'sas0dind jjog usals) uo 1oedwl 8SIBAPY -

Juswdojensp Jo 8zIs Jo }nsal e se Bulussiom Aljenb iy -
"L LIN @y} Jo Anwixoud ayy 0} anp asiou pue Ajjenb Jie Jood woly siayns alis ay) Jo Led uleysam ay] -
‘8)Is uo sanljioe)

wie4 abueig

yjieay mau Joj apinoid 0} a|qe aq 0} A|9y| SS9 SI JI UBSW PINOM SZIS S} pPuE d9)/843Udd Y}leay e woly woQg Uey} Jayuny si 8)IS - 91602
'sasodind jjog usaln) uo 10edwi ueosyiubis Ao -
jJuswdojanap Jo azIs Jo }nsal e se Buiuasiom Ayenb ary -
‘uodsuely o1ignd Ayenb ybiy oy a|qissesoe jou si | - peoy
SUS U0 SSRIDEN — yoyeq yo ypioN pue
yjieay mau o} apinoid 0} 8|qe aq 0} A|9yI| SS9 SI Jl UBSW PINOM 9ZIS S} puB d9/a43ud2 Yjleay e woly wWoQg Uey} Jayuny si a)Is -
"'916D9D 40 Z€ZOS Yum uonounfuod ui padojanap SSajun SS899. ON - 12620
‘'sasodind jjog usaig) uo 1pedwi uedyiubis -
"JuswdojaAap ay} UIy)Im UoISIAoId Mau JLIBW pinom alIs ay} Jo 8zIs ay} ybnoy) sanijioe} yjeay ssadoe 0} wQQg Ueyy Jayun -
"L LIN @4} Jo Aywixoud ayy 03 anp asiou pue Ajijenb Jie Jood woly siayns a)is ay) Jo Jed uleysam ay] - peoy
‘Jodsued; a1ignd Ayjenb ybiy o) sseooe aAey j0u seop a)Is 8y | - uojlieg jo YMON pueT
"(s1 ybly) € BUOZ POOI4 UIYIM PEOY UOHEY JO YHOU 8)iS 8y} Jo seale abieT - 6620S
‘'sa9sodind jjog usais) uo pedwi uedyiubis -
‘Juswdojonap 8y} UIylm UOISIAOId MaU JLIBW PINOM B)IS By} JO 8IS 8y} ybnoy} sanijioe} yjeay SSaade 0} woQg ueyy Jayun4 -
1 LI @y} Jo Alwixoud ay) 0} anp asiou pue Ajjenb Jie Jood wol) siayns aus ay} Jo Jed uleisam ay| - peoy] uoljeg
‘uodsuel; o1ignd Ayjenb ybiy o) sseooe aAey 1ou seop alis 8y | -| $O Ynos pue YuoN pue]
"(Msu ybiy) ¢ suoz pooj4 UIyIM s|jej peoy uoneg JO YHOU puel Jo Led - (AN A

‘'sasodind jjog usals) uo 1pedwi uesyiubis Ao -

Aewwing

peoy uolieg J0 Ynos @ yuou ay} 0} pueT ;| uoneso peoig




Page 78

uoisn|ouoY |[eldAQ
. - b b AyIS1oAIpOIg
2 J J b aSION
€ = e e . h VIV
| LN 'VINDYV Woyj 8ouejsiqg
(3x@u00
sque) yinog) Jodsued |
(1xeu00 AjD) podsuel |

uoisinoid aoeds uadQ

SalluNWWoD
Bunsixe yum uonelbayu|

EYIVER)
[2D0]/10LI1SIp O] 8oUEe)sIig

e

SuOIjRIaPISUOD JBYJO Z [9A3T]

e e e e auoz
Kajes podary abpuque)
SRR
1uawdolaAap Jo} swelswl |
jjog usalo
3SL poo|
suoljelapisuo) dibajen}s | |99

e/u e/u e/u e/u uondo ayis Jjog usalo
pasodoud/|ejo}
68¢-¢6l 16-19 121-S8 €91-601 ‘Aioedeo Buljjomp [eUonoN
ey L¥'9-8¢'v ey €0¢-s¢’l ey ¢g8c-88’lL ey go'e-¢h'e a|qedojanap Ajjenusijod/|ejo}
/ey Gs'8 /eylLle /ey9le /ey g8y (ey) ease a)g

peoy peoy Jajsaydjuels peoy peoy
Jaysayojuels 04Ny p|oi4 Buikeld Jaysayojuels) pjal4 | Jaisayojuels) pjaiq ssalppy

1neuay SISO\ sauuaye) 1S Buihe|d axoiquad Buihe|q Bulumoq
10620 16800 96809 G6809 :90UDJ9J9Y 9IS
Wweyumap ‘peoy Jajsayojuels) jo spjaly Buihe|d :z uoieso] peoig




Page 79

‘alaymas|a paoejdal Ajluojoejsies

8q 0} 8AeY pinom aoeds uado siy] ‘ededs uado olgnd se pajeubisap pjaly buike|d e Jo sso| ay) ul }nsal pjnom juswdojaaa( -
‘podsuely o1gnd Ayenb ybiy oy 9|qissadoe jou si ] -

"saljlj1oe} Mmau Jo} apiaold 0} a|qe

9q 0} A9y SS9 SI JI 9ZIS S} 0} dnp pue ‘jooyos Atewid pue A1abins 49 ‘943uad |BO0| / JOLISIP SB YONS Sal}|ioe) [BO0| 0} JBdU Jou S| d)IS -
‘dojaAap 0} uonuBUI JBUMOPUE| JO 8DUBPIAS ON -

‘swa|qoud Buipooy Jueoiubig -

'sosod.nd jjog usalo) uo 1oedwi ueodliubis Ao -

peoy Jajsayojuels)
04Ny }Ineusdy sIsspy
10602

‘aIaymas|e paoe|dal Ajiojoejsines

8q 0} aAeY pinom aoeds uado siy] -eoeds uado olgnd se pajeubisap pjal buife|d e Jo sso| ay) ul }nsal pjnom juswdojaaa( -
‘uodsuel o1ignd Ayjenb ybiy o1 a|qissaooe jou si ] -

*9)IS UO Saljl[I0.) Yl|eay mau Jo} apIAoid Jou pjnod I uBaw PINOM 3ZIS [|ewS S} pue d9/aJ41udd y)jeay e wodj woog ueyl Jayuny si a)Is -
"SS9008 JB|NdIYyaA djenbapeu| -

‘dojaAap 0} uonusdlUI JBUMOPUE| JO 9OUBPIAS ON -

'sasodind jjog usalg) uo 1oedwi uesyiubis Ao -

peoy J9)sayojuels pjaiq
Buike|d sauuayies 1S
16800

‘alaymas|a paoejdal Ajluojoejsies

aq 0} 8AeY pinom aoeds uado siy] ‘ededs uado olgnd se pajeubisap pjal buike|d e Jo sso| ay) ul }nsal pjnom juswdojaaa( -
‘uodsuel o1gnd Ayjenb ybiy o1 ajqissasoe jou si ] -

"9}IS UO Sal}l|Io.} Yjjeay mau 1o} apiAoid Jou pinod JI Ueaw piNOM ZIS ||ewsS S} pue 49/aiuad yjeay e wolj woQg Ueyy Jayuny si ajs -
"dojanap 0} uonuUBIUI JBUMOPUE| JO 8OUSPIAS ON -

‘'sa9sodind jjog usals) uo 1edwi uedyiubis Ao -

peoy J9jsayojuels)
pIa14 Buiheld axoiquiad
96899

‘alaymas|a paoejdal Ajluojoejsies

8q 0} 8AeY pinom aoeds uado siy] ‘ededs uado olgnd se pajeubisap pials buike|d e Jo sso| ay) ul }nsal pjnom juswdojaaa( -
‘podsuely o1jgnd Ayenb ybiy oy a|qissasoe jou si ) -

"9}IS UO Sal}|Io.} Yj|eay Mau Jo} apinoid Jou pinod Jl Ueaw piNOM ZIS ||ewsS S} pUB d9/aJiuad yjeay e wolj woQg Ueyy Jayuny si ajs -
"dojoAap 0} UoUBIUI JBUMOPUE| JO 8DUSPIAS ON -

'sasodind jjog usali9 uo joedwl jueoiiubis AIBA -

peoy J9)sayojuein
piai4 Buike|d Buiumoqg
66800

Arewwing

weyumap ‘peoy Jajsayojuels Jo spial Buikeld :Z uoneso peoig




Page 80

‘(ey zg) pue| jednynoube gz apels) Jo SsoT -
‘Baly UOIIBAIBSUOD

9I0BUINOS 8y} JO J8joeleyd ay} 0} S8)NqUIU0d pue peoy
ulyum si siyl se Apejnoiued ‘eoeds uado payosloud Jo ssoT - uojburdwinay
‘sanss| Ajjenb Jy - 1O 1S9\ pue]
‘A18bins 49 ss800E 0} WO Uey} Jayun - ¥2629
"dojaAap 0} uonUBIUI JBUMOPUE| JO 80USPIAS ON -
'sasodind jjog usals) uo 1pedwi uedyiubis -
‘(ey zg) pue| [ednynoube g apels) Jo Sso -
‘Baly UOIIBAIBSUOD
910BUINOS 8y} JO J8joeleyd ayj 0} S8)NqUIU0d pue peoy
ulyum si siyl se Apejnoiued ‘eoeds uado payosioud Jo ssoT - uojbuidwini
‘sanssl| Ayjenb Jiy - JO 1S9\ pueT]
‘A1abins 49 ssadoe 0] WQQg uey} Jayun - Y2609

‘dojoAap 0} uoUBIUI JBUMOPUE| JO 8OUSPIAS ON -
'sasodind }jog usali9 uo joedwl jueolyiubis AIA -

Arewwng

peoy uojbuidwni] Jo }Sam pueT ;¢ uoljeso peoig

uoISn|oU0Y |[eI3AQ
e e Ajisianipolg
e e 9SION
= 6 143%
‘L LN ‘VINOV wouj dduessig
(1xeu00
sqwe) yinog) podsuel |
e e (3x@u09 A9) wodsues |
[§] [§] uoisinold eoeds uadQ
6 6 saljluNWWOoD
Bunsixe yum uonelbayu|
e e EYIVER)
[ED0]/10111SIp 0] daue)siq
SuOoIjeIdPISUOD J13Y)Q Z |9ADT]
e e auoz
Kajes podary abpuque)
e e $S900E ]IS
JuswidolaAap 10} aweljawl |
1og uaalo
e e 3Sl poo|4
suonelapisuo? aibajes}s | [9Aa]
e/u e/u uondo ayis }jog uaal9
) ) . pasodoud/|ejo}
011 625116101 :Aoedes Buljjamp |euoioN
ey 9've BY 86'€£-G9'ZZ  |dlqedojanap Ajlenusiod/|e)o)
/eygze /ey 0€'Si (ey) ease a)g
peoy uolbuidwni] | peoy uoibuidwni | ssaIppy
10 1SO\\ pueT] JO 1S9\ pue]
82600 260D -20ualsjay 8IS

peoy uojbuidwini] jo }sam pue]

:¢ uoneson peo.ig




Page 81

uoISN|2U0) [|BIBAQ

b

[§

Aysionipolg

e

e

suoljeIapISu0) JBYJO Z [9A3]

8SION

1424
‘LLIA 'VINDV woJj souessia

(3x8u09
sque) yinog) podsuel |

(3x®u09 A119) wodsues |

uoisinosd aoeds uadQ

EVIeR)
Bunsixe yym uonelbayu|

EYINER)
|e00|/10L3SIP 0] ®duelsi(

e

auoz
Aejes podiy abpuque)

e

S§S8d0%e 9lIS

Jswdojensp Joj swelyswil |

1jog usalo)

Sl poo|4

suoljelapisuod d16ajens | [9Aa]

e/u e/u e/u e/u uondo ayis }jog usal

ayis Jabue| jnoyym | ays Jebie| inoyum pasodoid;|elo}
a|qedojansp 10U a|qedojansp 10U 00g o1 dn 00 o} dn :Aloedeo Buljjemp |euonoN
a|qedojansp Ajjenuajod/ejo

ey g9’y ey g9y ey 99°'/¢ ey 99'/¢ Iqecolensp AIBHISIOTIEIO)

(ey) eale ayis

uojburdwini
‘peoy uoixneH
10 }S9Mm puen

uojburdwini |
‘peoy uoixneH
10 1soMm puen

uojbuidwni
‘peoy uoixneH
10 1s9M puen

uojburdwni |
‘peoy uoixneH
10 }SaMm puen

:ssalippy

gy1600

V¥1620

69008

89008

:90UBIB)0Y 8)IS

peoy uolxneH jo }sem pue-

:p uonesoT peo.g




Page 82

LN O

Ajwixoud 0y anp ayis Jo Led JBA0 SUIaou09d asiou pue Ajjjenb Jie ‘peoy uoixney pue | ||\ 0} 8So|[) -
“IX8]U0D

aliysabpuquen yinog ul Ajiqissasoe poob AlaA nq 1xa1uod A)D ul Ajjiqissaoaoe podsued) Jood -
‘sal)l|Io.) pue sadlAles Bunsixe wolj uelsiq -

‘sasodind }jog usals) uo 1pedw Juesyiubis Ao -

uojbuidwnu] ‘peoy
uojxneH jJo }sam pue-]
av1609

LLN 9}

Ajwixoud 0y enp a}is Jo Led J8A0 SUIB0U09D 3Siou pue Ajljenb Jie ‘peoy uolxneH pue | LA 0} 8s0|D -
"JX8}U09

aliysabpuquien yinog ul Aljiqissaaoe poob AleA 1nq 1xa1uod A)D ul Ajiqissaoaoe podsued) Jood -
"saljIj10.} pue sadIAIes Bupsixa wody Juelsi( -

‘sasodind }jog usals) uo 1pedwi Juesyiubis Ao -

uojbuidwnu] ‘peoy
uojxneH jJo }sam pue-]
V#1600

LLN 9}

Ajwixoud 0y enp a}is Jo Led J8A0 SUIB0U09 asiou pue Ajljenb Jie ‘peoy uojxneH pue | LA 0} 8s0|D -
"JX81U00

allysabpuque) yinog ul A1jiqissaaoe poob Ao jng 1xa1uod A)D ul Ajiqissaoaoe podsued) 1ood -
"saljIj10.} pue sadIAIes Bupsixa wody juelsi( -

‘sasodind jjag usalg) uo joedw Jueoyiubis AU -

uojbuidwnu] ‘peoy
uolXneH jJo }Sam pue-]
6900S

LLN 9}

Ajiwixoud 0y anp a}is Jo Jed JBA0 SUIBOU0D asiou pue Ajjenb Jie ‘peoy uojxneH pue | LA 0} 8s0|D -
"JX8U00

aliysabpuqwe) yinog ul Aljiqissadoe poob AJaa ng 1xajuod AjD ul Ayjigissedoe Jodsuely Jood -
'saljl|10.} pue sadIAIes Bulsixe wouy juelsiq -

'sasod.ind jjog usaln) uo 10edwi jueoyiubis Alap -

uojbuidwnu] ‘peoy
uojxXneH jJo }sam pue-]
8900S

Arewwing

peoy uolXneH jo }SeM pue- :p uoieso peoig




Page 83

uoISN|2U0) [|BIBAQ

b

Aysionipolg

e

8SION

1424
‘LLIA 'VINDV WwoJj souessia

(3x8u09
sqwe) yinog) podsuel |

(3x®u09 A119) podsues |

uoisinosd aoeds uadp

SuoljeIaPISUOD JBYJO Z [9ADT]

SallluNwwoo
Bunsixe yym uonelbayu|

YINER)
|e00|/10L3SIp 0] ®duelsi(

e

e

auoz
Aejes podiy abpuqued

e

e

§S8d0%e 9lIS

Jswdojensp Joy swelyswil |

1jog usalo)

Sl poo|4

suoljelapiIsuo) 2163je.a)g | [9AdT]

e/u e/ e/u e/u e/ uondo a)Is }jog usalo

) pasodoud;|e1o}

121 oy dn Lyz oy dn ole 005°C 9/, 01 dn Kyioedes Buljomp [EUOTON

BY /2 BYZ9 BY6'9 . . a|qedojanap Ajjenusiody|ejoy
e e

/ey 69§ /eyezs /eyzze Hosvl Hoee (ey) ease ayg

peoy uojxneH

peoy uoixneH

peoy uoixneH

abpuqwe) ‘peoy

peoy uoixneH

S,9004quUBppY :SS8Ippy
JO 1se] pueT Jo 1seg pueT J01seg puen 10 UINOS 8} O} PUE- Jo 1seg pueT
G62¢0S ¥620S 70600 G0LOS 8/800 :90UBI89Y BlS

peoy S,9)00.4quUappy JO YNog pueT :G uoieso peolg




Page 84

“JX81U0d

"IX8JU09 aJlysabpuqwe) Yyinos ul Ajjigissasoe poob 1ng 1xajuod A9 ul Ajjiqissesoe podsuel) Jood -
"S|00YOS pue SaljljIoe) ‘SaOIAIBS UMO apiAold pjnoo -

alysabpuqwe) yinog ul Aljigissadoe poob AJaa Jng 1xajuod AjD ul Ayjiqissadoe Jodsuel; olgnd Jood - peoy
'saljl|10.} pue sadIAIes Bulsixe wody juelsiq - uojxneH jo j}se3 pue]
"SS800E Je|NdIyaA a)enbapeu| - G629S
'sosodind }jog usal) uo jJoedwl 9SISAPY -
“IX8Ju09 aJlysabpuqued Yyinosg ul Ajiqissasde poob Aiaa 1ng 1xajuod A9 ul Ayjiqissesoe podsuel) Jood - peoy
"saljIj10.} pue sadIAIes Bunsixe wody Juelsi( - UOIXNEH 30 JSET pUET
'SS8008 JB|NdIYaA a)enbapeu| -
‘sasodind jjag usals) uo j1oedwl 8SISAPY - v620S
“IX8]U09 aJlysabpuqwe) Yyinosg ul Ajjiqissasoe poob AiaA 1ng 1xajuod A9 ul Aljigissesoe podsuel) Jood - peoy
‘looyos Atewud Bunsixe wodj juelsiq - UOIXNEH JO }SET pUET
"sal)Ij10.} pue sadIAIes Bupsixe wody Juelsi( -
'sasodind }jog usals uo 1pedw Juedsyiubig - ¥0622
"L LIN 01 Awixoud 0} anp a)is Jo Led J9A0 SUI8dU0d 8sIou pue Ajljenb Jie ‘peoy uoixneH pue | LA 0} 8so|D - abpuquwe)

‘peoy s,9joo0iquappy
30 Yyjnos ayj o} puer]

'sasod.ind jjog usaln) uo 10edwi juesyiubis Alap -

‘sasod.nd jjog usals) uo 1pedw Juesyiubis - G0LOS

“LLIN 01 Ajwixoud o} anp a)is Jo ped JoA0 SUI8dU0d 8SIou pue Ajjenb die ‘peoy uojxneH pue | L\ 01 8s0|D - peoy
"IX81U09 aJsysabpuqwe) yinog ul Ajjigissadoe poob AleA 1ng 1xe1uod AlD ul Ajjiqissaooe podsueld) Jood - uoIXNEH 30 JSET pueT
'saljI|10.} pue sadiAIes Bulsixa wody Juelsiq - 81895

Arewwng

peoy S,9)00.4quUappy JO YNog pueT :g uoieso peoig




Page 85

UuoISN|2U0Y [|_IBAQ

e Ajsianipolg
e asIoN
= 1427
‘I LN ‘VINOV woJj adouessi|g
(1xau00
sqwe) yinog) podsuel |
e (3x@u09 A9) wodsues |
[§] uoisinold eoeds uadQ
SalluNWWoD

m T
Bunsixe yyum uonelbaju|
e YR
[B00|A01}SIp 0} 8oue)sIq

SUOIjeIaPISUOD J13Y)Q Z [9ADT]
e auoz
fajes podiary abpuque)
e $S900E 9IS
JuswdojaAap 10} dwelyawl |
jjog usal9
e Sl poo|4

suolelapIsuo) 2163je.)g | [9AdT]

‘(eyoy

Sl yoiym - ayis Jo Ajolew) pue| jeinynoube g apels) Jo ssoT -
‘sanssi Ayjenb ay -

‘A1ebins 4o ssao0e 0] WQQg uey) Jayun4 -

‘dojaAap 0} uonuaul JBUMOpPUE| JO 8DUSPIAS ON -

‘'sasodind jjog usals) uo 1pedwi ueoyiubis AISA -

peoy weyeigeg
JO }samyjnos

pue sa)o0.quappy
J0 ysnog pue-
626290

e/u uondo ayis Jjog usalo

O pasodoud/|eo}

EVE 17968 :Ayoedeo Buljjemp |euoioN
By G8'62-6'6L  [dlqedojanap Ajjenusiodyejol
/ BY 08'6€ (ey) ease a)g

Arewwing

peoy weyeliqeg
O 1S8MUIN0S

peoy

weyeiqeg JO }SOMUINOS pue S,84004qUIPPY JO YINOS pue :9 uoieso peoig

pue sayooiquappy -SSaIppy
0 Yinos pueT
62600 :90ual8jey 8IS

weyeiqeq JO }SOMUINO0S puUe S,9)4004quUappPy
JO Ynos pue- :9 uoijeso] peoig




Page 86

uoISN[2UO0) |[B4dAQ

e e e e e e e e Ayslanipolg
e e e e e e e e e 9sIoN
6 6 6 6 6 B 6 B 6 A 1494
L LN 'VINDV woJj souessig
5 (1xaju0d
sque) ynog) yodsuel
[ [ [} [ e e e (yxe1u09 A1) Hodsuel |
[ [ [ [ [ [ B [ [ uoisinold aoeds uadp
e/u e e/u 6 ] B SOnUNUILLICO
Bunsixa yym uoneibayu|
EXNER]

e 6 e e e e
1220]/1011SIp 0} 8duelsig

SUOI}BIaPISUOD J9YJQ Z [9A3]
auoz
e e e e e e e e
e e e [ e e e e e SS900E 9)IS
eju e e/u e e [ [ [} b juswdo|anap 1o} swelewl |
e e e e e }Jlog uaal
[ [ [ e e 3SU poold
suoljeapisuo) sibajen)g | [9Aa]
Sd9 €49 749 199 [4:3) e/ e/ e/u e/u uopdo ayis }jog usaI
. _ i . pasodoud/|ejo
¥€6°€-229'C 8. Ly §9¢ (0] 492 661l-CcEL 2/8-18G ¥€6°€-229'C -Rioedeo Bulemp [EUOnoN
ey L1'/8-82'8S eygll ey go'l ey g8g's ey L'g 26'v2 ey 96'v-Le'e ey 6.LceS vl ey L¥'/8-82'8G  |elqedojonsp Ajenusiod|eoy
/ey gsallL /eyee /eyl /ey ¥8L /eug9 /BUZ99 /8U 50’62 /eyGgs9lL (ey) eaue ayg
d'8d weyeliqeq
10 }SOM pue|
‘Aemasne) SUOA\ uo
oBpuqED abpuque) abpuqwe) poomyoaag Jo }sem

€ yinos l yinog ¢ yinos UuoN yinog _>m>>mw:mo uinogin4 uinogin4 % yinos Buipusixe :$82UPPY

peoy uinogin4

peoy uinogin4

peoy uinogin4

Aemasne) ,SLOM

Aemasne) SO

SHOAA 4O UIN0S puen

peoy abpuque)
1O yinos pue

peoy abpuqwe)
JO yinos pueT

yled ABojouyos |
asnoylaled
0/4 peoy uinogin4
yinos pue-jseq
ynos abpuqued

00€2S

€€600

¢€600

0€620

62620

¥8¢0S

£€820S

L1108

11620

NS

peoy uinogin4 pue peoy weyeiqeg UsaM}aq pueT :/ UOed0T peoig




Page 87

‘uonoun( Asnqg e BuIssoio ypm sainaip yim Buoje peoy uinoqin4 Asnqg pue jsej ayy uo uolsirold BuljoAd Jo yoe| wouy sieyns a)s -
‘sasodind }jag uaais) uo Joedwi 8SIBAPY -

€ yInog peoy uinogny
00£9S

‘uonoun( Asnq e Buissoio yum sainoiyip yim Buoje peoy uinoging Asng pue isej ay} uo uoisirnoid BuljoAo Jo yoe| wol) siayns a)is -
'sasodind jjag usai9) uo oedw| 8sIBAPY -

I ynog peoy uinoqny
££609

‘uonoun( Asng e Buissoio yum sainoiyip yim Buoje peoy uinoging Asng pue isej ay} uo uoisirnoid BuljoAo Jo yoe| wol) siayns a)is -
'sasodind jjog usai9) uo oedw| 8sIBAPY -

peoy uoyeg Jo YHoN pueT
Z yinos peoy winoqny
2£609

‘BuloAo 0y sysu pappe ul }nsal pjinod Jnoy ysna Buuinp pue Aemasne) spop) uo uoisinoid BuljoAo pajesipap syoeT -

‘eale sIy} }0aye Ajasianpe jou pjnoys juswdojarap Auy ‘sanijenb [ejuswiuolAu

s}l Jo} aoeds uado pajosjold se pajeubisep os|e si eale siy] “AlisiaAlpolq pue pue|sselb |einjeu [was sy Joj Juepodwi SI Yyoiym ‘e)s ajlplIA AlUnoD e suiejuod ayis ay] -
‘looyos Atewind }seieau 8y} wody WQOg UeY} JoYHNy SI 8)IS dU} JO jley uey) Ssa -

'sasodind jjag usai9) uo oedwi 8sIBAPY -

ypioN Aemasnes ,SJOM
0€622

‘Hodsueu; o1ignd Ayjenb ybiy o} a|qissadoe jou si }| -
e} MaU Joj apinoid 0} a|qe aq o} AjoyI| SS9 SI JI 8IS S} 0} anp pue ‘jooyos Alewnd pue Alabins 4o ‘@lyuad |ed0| / 101SIp SE Yons saljijioe} [eJ0] 0} Jeau Jou S| 8)iG -
sasodind }jag usals uo joedw| 8SIaAPY -

yinog Aemasnes ,SHOM
62622

*AySIoAIpOIq puB ainjniseljul usalb ‘e)is ajip|im [e20] B uo A|peq $8100S 0S|y -
"A1abBins 4o % 21)usd [200] / JOUISIP SB YONS Sa)[1o.) [BOO| 0} JeSU Jou S| d)IS -

abpuquwe) ‘Aemasned SHOAA JO Yinos pueT]

'sasodind jjag usaig) uo 1oedu Jueoyiubis AJop - v820S
abpLque)
'SaNSS| $S800. 8[9A) - ; :
'sasodind jjag usai9) uo yedwi Juesyubig - uinoqing peoy ebprquied jo EsoMMMMM
‘(ey X) pue| [eanynoube z apelis) Jo ssoT - oBplLqWes
. . . 100d 51 $59008 9JoAJ - ‘uinoqng peoy abprique) Jo yinos pue
saljl|1oe) Mau Joy apiaold 0} a|qe aq 0} AjaXI| SS9 SI }l 8IS S)i 0} anp pue ‘jooyds Atewid pue Aiebins 49 ‘@1juad 20| / JOUISIP SE YONS saljl|ioe) [BJ0] O} Jeau Jou S| 8)S - S

'sasodind jjag usai9) uo yoedwi Juesiiubis A -

*$$920E 9|0A0 Jood pue ‘podsuely olignd Ayjenb ybiy o) sseooe aaey jou seop 8)is dy] -
-obue| sI 8)Is 8y} asnedaq pajebiiw aq pinod siy} Ing ‘eoeds uado psjosjold Jo SSoT -
yoedwi Ayjenb Jie jueouubig -

‘f1ebins 49 ssedoe 0} wQQg ueyy Jayund -

"auoz Ajajes oljgqnd poduay ebpuque) Aq paulelisuod ayis jo ped ableT -

‘sasodind jjag uaai9) uo yoedwi Juesyiubis Aiap -

Y'2d Weyeigeq Jo }sam pue| ‘Aemasned SO
uo pooMyd9ag JO }SaM B Ynos Buipualxa
yied ABojouydsa] asnoyiajad o/1 peoy
uinogin4 yynos pue--jse3 ynos abpuques
11622

Aewwng

peoy uinoging pue peoy weyeiqeg UadM}ag pue ;. Uoedo] peoig




Page 88

uoISN|2U0) [|BIBAQ

Aysianpolg

9SION

(1xeu00
sqwe) yinog) podsuel |

(3x@u09 A9D) wodsues |

b
1427
‘L LA 'VINDV woJy souessig

uoisinoid aoeds uadQ

SalluNWWoD
Bunsixe yum uonelbayu|

EYVER)
[200]/10LI1SIP O] 8oUEe)sSIg

SUOI}eIaPISU0) I3Y}Q Z |9AdT]
e auoz
Ayajes podiay abpuque)
[§] S$S800e 9IS
[§] JuswdojaAap 10} aweljawl |
1og uaalo
e 3SI poo|4
suoljelapisuo) d16ajen}s | [9Aa]
e/u uondo ayis }jog uaal9
pasodoud/|ejo}
0cy :Ayoedes Buljjamp |euoioN
"sjurelisuod Abojoseyale ueolyiubis Ao - Aepp aj19zen Bu g .or elqedojensp Ajjenusiod/jelol
. /eyole (ey) ease ayg
Sal}|Io.) pue SaoIAIas Bunsixa wod) juelsiq - JO }sea pue
'sas0d.nd }jog usals) uo 1pedwl asIaApY - Ae
yeg O Uuo} ! PV 9620S ol6785 uﬁo\u,wmm ouen :SS8IppY
Arewwing 9620S :90UBla)ey 9)IS
Aepp 919zeo) jo jsea pueT :g uoijed0T] peoiqg Aepp 3)19zeo jo jsea pueT :g Uoijed0] peoig




Page 89

: .+ [+ o+ [ + [ 4 [ ]

uoISn|ouo0 ||e43A0

[§] [§] [§] [§] [§] §] [§] Ayisi1enipoig
e e [§] e e e e 9SION
IV LLIN

‘VINOV WoJj aduelsig

(3xeu090

sque) yjnos) uodsued |

(3x@u09 A39D) podsuel |

uoisinold aoeds uadQ

saljlunwwod
Bunsixa yym uonielbaju|

EYIVER]
|e00|/1011SIp O] aduelsi

e e 6 e e e

SUOIJRIBPISUOY JBY)Q Z [9AST]

auoz
e e e e e e e
Ayojes poduy abpuque)
e B e [§] [§] [§] ¢} $S9008 9)Ig
b6 6 b6 e e 6 6 juswdojansp
10} sweljowl |
e 1og usai9
e 3Sl poo|4
suoljelapisuos dibajes)g | |9Aa]
e/u e/u e/u e/u e/u e/u e/u uondo ayis }jag usalo
pasodoud/|ejoy
14 ot 629 8G¢ ol 142’ oclL Kioedes Bulljomp [eUONON
. . ) ) . ) . 9|qedo|aAsp
ey /y0 eyzgg'l By 86°0C eyog ey zeo eyel¢ ey zovy
. . : . . . . Allenusyody|ejoy
/eu¢so /ey69’L / U v¥'¢S /euelLLl /eycgeo /U909 /ey 9g's

(ey) ease ays

(uonig us4
‘peoy easbuiuioH

uonq ue4 ‘pecy uoy| (sue uoniq Jo 1ses) (sue uonIq ua4 ‘peo uoniq ued 0 }Sea pue yjnos
easbuluioH gz pue ued * ommh_ §] uo _._ cwh_m u‘Em uopI 40 1soM) o) _zh_m_ ¥ % cw_ 9s0[0 spJaydayg & »_cmgv co_o_ ccmw -SS9IPPY
7| UsBMIaq pue 4 1984S YyoiH Hia usd je pueT uomQ Ua4 1e pue yola UbIH o pueT 40 oS puer pue|) uoniqg use

‘peoy easbuiuloH
1O }ses pueT
¥620S 19108 0910S 6510S 1900S 0900S 9€03S -:90UBlI8j9Y S)S

uojIg Ud4 Je pueT :g uolesoT peoig




Page 90

"SJUIeJ}SUOD UOoNBAISSUO)) JuedIUBIS -

‘looyog Asepuooag wolj juelsiq -

"seljl|ioe) pue saolAIes Bunsixe wouy juelsiq -
‘sBuip|ing pajsi uo joedwi aaebau ueoubig -
‘'sasodind jjog usalg) uo oedw juesyiubis Alo -

uoniq

ua4 ‘peoy easbuluioy
8Z pue g| usamjaq pue-]
L4 T4 )

"SJuleJ}SUOD UoneAIasuUo) Jueoliubig -
‘sBulp|ing pajsi uo joedwi aAebau ueoiubig -
‘sasodind jjog usalg) uo 1oedw Juesyiubis Alap -

uopIg ua4 ‘934 YBIH
19108

"SjuleJISUOD UoneAIasuo) Jueoiubig -

‘|looyog Asepuoosg wolj juelsiq -

‘sBuipjing paisi uo joedwi aanebau jueolyiubig -
‘sasodind jjog usalg) uo 1oedw Juesyiubis Alop -

(sue uoniqg j0
jsea) uopiq ua je pue-
0910S

‘sBuipjing paisi uo joedwi aanebau jueoyiubig -
"SJUIBJISUOD UOIIBAIBSUOD JuediubIg -

‘S9l)1|10B) puB S82IAI8S Bunsixa woly juelsiq -
‘'sasodind }jog uaalg) uo 1oedw Juedyiubis Alop -

(sue uopiqg jo
}sam) uoyniq ua4 je pue
65108

"SJUIeJ}SU0D UoeAISSUO) Juedliubig -

‘looyog Asepuooag wolj juelsiq -

"saljl|ioe) pue saolAIes Bunsixe wouy juelsiq -
'sasodind jjog usalg) uo joedwi jueoliubis AJaA -

uopiq ua4 ‘peoy
yaua ubiH yo pue
1900S

‘sBuip|ing pajsi uo joedwi aAnebau ueoiubig -
"SjuleJISUOD uoneAIasuo) jueosiubig -

‘looyog Asepuoosg wolj juelsiq -

'sasodind jjog usalg) uo joedwi jueoliubis AJaA -

uonig

ua ‘@so|) spiaydays
JO Yjnos pue-]

0900S

"SJUIBJISUOD UOIRIGIA PUB BSION -
"SjuleJISUOD UoneAIaSUO) Juediubig -

'sdo)s snqg paAlas ||lom wody juelsiq -

"looyog Aiepuodsag woly juelsiq -

"saljl|ioe) pue saolAIes Bunsixe wouy juelsiq -
'sasodind jjog usalg) uo joedwi jueolyiubis AJaA -

(uonia

ua4 ‘peoy easbujuioH
Z¥ Jo )sea pue yjnos
puej) uopiq ua4 ‘peoy
easbululoH jo )ses pue]
9€00S

fAewwng

uoyIg ua4 je pueT :6 uolyesoT peoig




Page 91

E _

uoISN|2U0) [|BIBAQ

Aysienpolg

9SION

1434
‘L LA 'VINDV woJy souessig

(1xeu00
sqwe) yinog) podsuel |

(3x@u09 A)9) wodsues |

uoisinoid aoeds uadQ

SalluNWWoD
Bunsixe yum uonelbayu|

e

EYINER)
[ED0]/1013SIp 0] ®duelsi(

suoljeIapISUO) JBYJO Z [9Ad]

e

auoz
Avjes podiry abpuque)

§S8d0e 9lIS

JuswidojeAap 10} aweldwl |

©| o) ©

ljog usal9

e

%Sl pooy 4

suolelapiIsuo) 2163je.)g | [9AdT]

YLV 01 Ajjiwixoid 0} anp sjuiesisuod Ajijenb Jie pue asIoN -
‘'sasodind }jog usalg) uo 1oedwl 8SIBAPY -

peoy uojsiH pue
peoy uopbununy
uaamjaq pue-
8620S

949 uondo a)is }jag usaIH
pasodoud/|ejo}

Lyy-09¢ :Aoedeo Buljjamp |euoioN
Byg6'8 a|qedojanap Ajjenusjod,|ejo)
/ey008 (ey) ease ayg

Arewwing

peoy UolsiH pue
peoy uopbununH
usamiaq pue

'ssalppy

aVvIN 0L uoljed0T peo.ag

8620S

:92Ud19)9Y S

dVvIN 0L uoljed0T peo.ag




Appendix 3

Rejected Green Belt Sites

Page 92

In the following schedule reference to a site reference (part) indicates that part of the site as
submitted has not been rejected. In these cases the part of the site that has been taken
forward for consultation will have its own reference number.

SHLAA site Description Score & Reason Overall
references Conclusion
CC = Cambridge
site
SC = South
Cambridgeshire
site
Broad Location | Land to the North and South of Barton Road
1
BL1 SC232 Land North and | Red-Although the site is large Rejected
South of Barton | enough to provide its own
Road facilities it causes very significant
impact on Green Belt purposes.
Part of area north of Barton
Road suffers from significant
flooding problems. The site has
poor public transport facilities
and sections near the M11 suffer
from air quality and noise issues.
BL1 SC299 Land North of Red-Significant impact on Green | Rejected
Barton Road Belt purposes.
The site floods requiring much to
be given over to green
infrastructure. Site is distant from
local facilities and too small to
provide its own.
BL1 CC921 Land North of Red-Significant impact on Green | Rejected
Barton Road Belt purposes.
Difficult access issues unless
developed in conjunction with
other sites. Air quality issues and
poor public transport. Distance
from health facilities
BL1 CC916 Grange Farm Red- Very significant impact on Rejected

Green Belt purposes.

Difficult access issues unless
developed in conjunction with
other sites. Air quality and noise
issues near the M11. Poor public

transport. Distance from health

76




Page 93

SHLAA site Description Score & Reason Overall
references Conclusion
CC = Cambridge
site
SC = South
Cambridgeshire
site
facilities.
BL1 CC926 Barton Road Red- Adverse impact on Green Rejected
North 1 Belt purposes.
Loss of protected open space.
Difficult access issues unless
developed in conjunction with
other sites. Poor integration with
existing community and poor
scores on accessibility to existing
centres and services.
BL1 CC927 Barton Road Red- Adverse impact on Green Rejected
North 2 Belt purposes.
Difficult access issues unless
developed in conjunction with
other sites. Poor integration with
existing community and poor
scores on accessibility to existing
centres and services.
Broad Location | Playing Fields off Grantchester Road, Newnham
2
BL2 CC895 Downing Red-Very significant impact on Rejected
Playing Field Green Belt purposes.
Grantchester
Road No evidence of landowner
intentions. Poor scores on
accessibility to existing centres
and services. Loss of protected
open space.
BL2 CC896 Pembroke Red-Very significant impact on Rejected
Playing Field Green Belt purposes.
Grantchester
Road No evidence of landowner
intentions. Poor scores on
accessibility to existing centres
and services. Loss of protected
open space.
BL2 CC897 St. Catherine’s | Red-Very significant impact on Rejected
Playing Field Green Belt purposes.
Grantchester
Road No evidence of landowner
intentions. Access issues, poor
scores on accessibility to existing
centres and services. Loss of
protected open space.
BL2 CC901 Wests Renault | Red-Very significant impact on Rejected

77




Page 94

SHLAA site
references

CC = Cambridge
site

SC = South
Cambridgeshire
site

Description

Score & Reason

Overall
Conclusion

RUFC
Grantchester
Road

Green Belt purposes.

No evidence of landowner
intentions. Flooding issues, poor
scores on accessibility to existing
centres and services. Loss of
protected open space.

Broad Location
3

Land West of Trumpington Road

BL3 CC924

Land West of
Trumpington
Road

Red- Very significant impact on
Green Belt purposes.

No evidence of landowner
intentions. Loss of protected
open spaces, which are
attractive features in their own
right and contribute positively to
the landscape setting. Loss of
agricultural land. Air quality
issues by virtue of its size though
it could provide some community
facilities

Rejected

BL3 CC928

Trumpington
Road West
Amended

Red-Significant impact on Green
Belt purposes.

No evidence of landowner
intentions. Loss of protected
open spaces, which are
attractive features in their own
right and contribute positively to
the landscape setting. Loss of
agricultural land. Air quality
issues by virtue of its size though
it could provide some of its own
community facilities

Rejected

Broad Location
4

Land West of Hauxton Road

BL4 SC68

Land West of
Hauxton Road,
Trumpington

Very significant impact on Green
Belt purposes

Distant from existing services
and facilities. Poor transport
accessibility in City context but
very good accessibility in South
Cambridgeshire context. Close
to M11 and Hauxton Road, air
quality and noise concerns over

Rejected

78




Page 95

SHLAA site
references

CC = Cambridge
site

SC = South
Cambridgeshire
site

Description

Score & Reason

Overall
Conclusion

part of site due to proximity to
M11.

BL4 SC69

Land West of
Hauxton Road,
Trumpington

Very significant impact on Green
Belt purposes

Distant from existing services
and facilities. Poor transport
accessibility in City context but
very good accessibility in South
Cambridgeshire context. Close
to M11 and Hauxton Road, air
quality and noise concerns over
part of site due to proximity to
M11.

Rejected

BL4 914A

Land West of
Hauxton Road,
Trumpington

Very significant impact on Green
Belt purposes

Distant from existing services
and facilities. Poor transport
accessibility in City context but
very good accessibility in South
Cambridgeshire context. Close
to M11 and Hauxton Road, air
quality and noise concerns over
part of site due to proximity to
M11.

Rejected

BL4 914B

Land West of
Hauxton Road,
Trumpington

Very significant impact on Green
Belt purposes

Distant from existing services
and facilities. Poor transport
accessibility in City context but
very good accessibility in South
Cambridgeshire context. Close
to M11 and Hauxton Road, air
quality and noise concerns over
part of site due to proximity to
M11.

Rejected

Broad Location
5

Land South of Addenbrooke’s Road

BL5 CC878

Land East of
Hauxton Road

Very significant impact on Green
Belt purposes

Rejected

79




Page 96

SHLAA site
references

CC = Cambridge
site

SC = South
Cambridgeshire
site

Description

Score & Reason

Overall
Conclusion

Distance from local facilities and
inability to provide its own. Poor
public transport in a City context.
Noise and air quality issues over
parts of the site due to proximity
to the M11. Loss of agricultural
land.

BL5 SC105

Land to the
south of
Addenbrooke's
Road,
Cambridge

Red-Although the site is large
enough to provide its own
facilities it causes significant
impact on Green Belt purposes.

Noise and air quality issues over
parts of the site due to proximity
to the M11. Loss of agricultural
land.

Rejected

BL5 CC904

Land East of
Hauxton Road

Significant impact on Green Belt
purposes

Distance from local facilities and
a primary school. Poor public
transport in a City context.

Rejected

BL5 SC294

Land East of
Hauxton Road,
north of
Westfield Road

Significant impact on Green Belt
purposes

Inadequate vehicular access.
Distant from existing services
and facilities. Poor transport
accessibility in City context but
very good accessibility in South
Cambridgeshire context.

Rejected

BL5 SC295

Land East of
Hauxton Road,
south of
Stonehill Road

Adverse impact on Green Belt
purposes.

Inadequate vehicular access.
Distant from existing services
and facilities. Poor transport
accessibility in City context but
very good accessibility in South
Cambridgeshire context.

Rejected

Broad Location
6

Land South of A
Shelford Road

ddenbrooke’s and between Babraham Road and

BL6 CC925

Land South of

Red- Very significant impact on

Addenbrooke’s

Green Belt purposes.

Rejected

80




Page 97

SHLAA site
references

CC = Cambridge
site

SC = South
Cambridgeshire
site

Description

Score & Reason

Overall
Conclusion

and Southwest
of Babraham
Road

No evidence of landowner
intentions. Loss of agricultural
land. Air quality issues by virtue
of its size though it could provide
some of its own community
facilities.

Broad Location
7

Land between Babraham Road and Fulbourn Road

BL7 CC911 Cambridge Red- Very significant impact on Rejected

South East- Green Belt purposes.

Land south

Fulbourn Road | Large section of site affected by

r/o Peterhouse | Cambridge Airport Air

Technology Safeguarding constraints. Loss

Park extending | of protected open space. Air

south & west of | quality issues by virtue of its size

Beechwood on | though it could provide good

Worts’ community integration. Poor

Causeway, land | public transport and cycle access

west of at present.

Babraham P&R
BL7 SC111 Land South of Red- Very significant impact on Rejected
(part) Cambridge Green Belt purposes.

Road Fulbourn,

Cambridge Poor community integration and

access to local facilities.

BL7 SC283 Land South of Red- Significant impact on Green | Rejected
(part) Cambridge Belt purposes.

Road Fulbourn,

Cambridge Poor community integration.

Poor cycle access.

BL7 SC284 Land South of Red- Very significant impact on Rejected
(part) Worts’ Green Belt purposes.

Causeway,
Cambridge

Poor community integration and
access to local facilities.

Adverse impacts on local wildlife
site, green infrastructure and
biodiversity.

Broad Location
8

Land East of Gazelle Way

81




Page 98

SHLAA site Description Score & Reason Overall
references Conclusion
CC = Cambridge
site
SC = South
Cambridgeshire
site
BL8 SC296 Land East of Red-Adverse impact on Green Rejected
Gazelle Way Belt purposes.
Major archaeological
significance. Loss of agricultural
land. Distance from existing local
services and facilities.
Broad Location | Land at Fen Ditton
9
BL9 SC036 Land East of Red- Very significant impact on Rejected
Horningsea Green Belt purposes.
Road, Fen
Ditton (land Conservation and Listed
South and East | Buildings impact. Distance from
of 42 local facilities including
Horningsea Secondary School.
Road, Fen Poor public transport. Loss of
Ditton) protected open space, noise and
vibration constraints.
BL9 SC060 Land South of Red- Very significant impact on Rejected
Shepherds Green Belt purposes.
Close, Fen
Ditton Conservation and Listed
Buildings impact. Distance from
a Secondary School.
BL9 SC061 Land off High Red- Very significant impact on Rejected
Ditch Road, Fen | Green Belt purposes.
Ditton
Distance from local facilities
including a secondary school.
Conservation constraints.
BL9 SC159 Land at Fen Red- Very significant impact on Rejected
Ditton (West of | Green Belt purposes.
Ditton Lane)
Conservation and Listed
Buildings impact. Distance from
local facilities.
BL9 SC160 Land at Fen Red- Very significant impact on Rejected

Ditton (East of
Ditton Lane)

Green Belt purposes.

Conservation and Listed
Buildings impact. Distance from
a secondary school. Air quality

82




Page 99

SHLAA site Description Score & Reason Overall
references Conclusion
CC = Cambridge
site
SC = South
Cambridgeshire
site
issues near the A14. Loss of
agricultural land.
BL9 SC161 High Street, Fen | Red- Very significant impact on Rejected
Ditton Green Belt purposes.
Conservation and Listed
Buildings impact.
BL9 SC254 Land between Red- Very significant impact on Rejected

12 and 28
Horningsea
Road, Fen
Ditton

Green Belt purposes.

Conservation and Listed
Buildings impact. Distance from
local facilities including a
secondary school.

83




Page 100

This page is left blank intentionally.



Page 101

South Cambridgeshire Local Plan

Issues and Options 2

Part 2 — South Cambridgeshire Further Site Options

Draft to:

South Cambridgeshire Localism and Planning Policy Portfolio
Holder

13 December 2012



Page 102



Page 103

South Cambridgeshire Local Plan
Issues and Options 2

Part 2 — South Cambridgeshire

1. Introduction

2. Housing

3. Employment

4. Mixed Use Development

5. Village Frameworks

6. Community Facilities and Infrastructure
7. Recreation and Open Space

8. Protecting Village Character

9. Maps of Options

Appendix 1 Proposal by Histon and Impington Parish Council



Page 104

Chapter 1: Introduction

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

The Council consulted on Issues and Options for the new Local Plan in
summer 2012. This consultation forms the second stage in preparing an
updated Local Plan for South Cambridgeshire that will set out the vision for
the district over the years to 2031. The plan affects all of us that live, work or
study in South Cambridgeshire, or who come here to enjoy all that the area
has to offer.

This second stage of Issues and Options consultation is in two parts.

e Part 1 - A joint consultation with Cambridge City Council on options for
the development strategy for the wider Cambridge area and for site
options for housing or employment development on the edge of
Cambridge on land currently in the Green Belt. It also includes options
on sub-regional sporting, cultural and community facilities and site
options for a community stadium. It builds on the Issues and Options
consultations that the Councils have already consulted on in summer
2012 and provides background information in relation to the housing
and employment needs for the area as a whole, as well as outlining
what that means for the future development strategy.

e Part 2 - Each Council is also carrying out consultation on other matters
for their own areas in their respective Part 2 consultation documents.

Part 2 - South Cambridgeshire Issues

In this Part 2 document, South Cambridgeshire District Council is consulting
on new issues arising from the Summer’s consultation that would be
reasonable additional options to consider for the new Local Plan, including
possible new site options to allocate for development as well as matters such
as possible changes to village frameworks and designations to protect village
character.

The Part 2 document includes the following chapters:

e Chapter 1 is the introduction which describes the overall purpose and
approach of the document and how to make comments.

e Chapter 2 sets out a number of site options for housing development.

e Chapter 3 sets out a new employment option and revision to the
boundary of an established employment area in the countryside.

e Chapter 4 sets out new mixed use proposals from two Parish Councils.

e Chapter 5 sets out suggested amendments to village frameworks.

e Chapter 6 sets out options for a new hospice, moorings on the River
Cam and burial grounds.

e Chapter 7 sets out a number of new options for recreation and open
space.

e Chapter 8 sets out options for important areas of green space for
protection and Important Countryside Frontages to protect village
character.

e Chapter 9 Maps of Options.



1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

Page 105

Localism — Parish Council Proposals

The national approach to planning has changed with the Coalition
Government’s introduction of the Localism Act and there is now a strong
emphasis on local communities being involved in planning. Parish Councils
now have the option to prepare Neighbourhood Development Plans to bring
forward community aspirations for development to meet their local needs.

Many Parish Councils are indicating to us that they would find preparing
neighbourhood plans too much of a burden for them. The District Council
has therefore been working with Parish Councils to explore how best to bring
forward community aspirations and has offered the opportunity to include
community-led proposals in the Local Plan. A number of proposals have
been put to us by Parish Councils during the 2012 consultation. Where they
are consistent with the approach being taken in the Local Plan, they are
included with the District Council’s options for consultation. However, a
number of proposals from Parish Councils are not consistent with the detailed
approach for the Local Plan. Nevertheless they are likely to be proposals
that are capable of being included in a neighbourhood plan where the test is
that they must generally conform with the strategic policies of the Local Plan.
The consultation document therefore includes Parish Council proposals
separately under each topic for those proposals not consistent with the
normal Local Plan approach. This will help those communities that prefer not
to prepare their own neighbourhood plans to still be able to deliver their local
aspirations. Parish Council proposals for site options or changes to
boundaries are identified by the prefix ‘PC’ and are numbered sequentially
through the document, rather than by topic.

Supporting Documents

The consultation document is supported by a number of evidence
documents, which are listed in Appendix 1 and available to view on the
Council’'s website here at www.scambs.gov.uk/Idf/localplan. Whilst they are
not generally published as consultation documents, if you have any concerns
about statements contained in the evidence documents, you can raise them
as part of your response to the consultation questions.

The overarching objective in national policy to secure sustainable
development has strongly influenced the development of the issues and
options in this document. The Council has prepared a Sustainability
Appraisal Scoping Report that has helped us identify the key issues and
sustainability objectives for the new Local Plan. An Initial Sustainability
Report has also been prepared for this second Issues and Options
consultation, which tests the sustainability merits of the options. It also
includes within it technical annexes that provide additional information to
support the issues and options contained in the Part 2 consultation report.



1.9.

Page 106

How to Have Your Say

Consultation runs from 7 January to 18 February 2013. Part 2 of the Issues
and Options 2 Report contains 15 issues which need to be addressed in
updating the Local Plan providing options where appropriate and asking
questions to help the local community and stakeholders to respond to the
consultation.

Once you have looked through this joint consultation document, please send
us your comments. You don’t have to answer all questions if you are only
interested in some of them. There are a number of ways in which you can do
this:

¢ Using the Council’s online consultation system - This is the
Council’s preferred means of receiving representations because it is the
fastest and most accurate method and it will help us to manage your
representations quickly and efficiently. Separate instructions on how to
use the electronic system are provided on the Council’'s website and
officers in the Planning Policy team are always available to help if you
have any queries. Please go to the following link: http://scambs.jdi-
consult.net/Idf/

e By email at |df@scambs.gov.uk using the electronic response form on
the Council’s website.

e Using a response form - If you do not have access to a computer, a
paper form can be completed and sent to the Council. Copies of the
response form are available from the Planning Policy team.

We’re Here to Help

Your views are important to us, and we recognise that the planning system is
not always easy to understand and find your way around. We want to make
sure that as many people as possible have an opportunity to have their say
as the new Local Plans are prepared. You can contact us using one of the
following methods:

e You can phone us on 03450 450 500 (ask to speak to someone in the
Planning Policy team);

e You can email us at |df@scambs.gov.uk

There will also be opportunities for you to meet officers face-to-face through
exhibitions that have been organised. Details of these events, together with
up to date information on the Local Plan review can be found on the Council’s
Local Plan website: http://www.scambs.gov.uk/Idf/localplan.

For those who use social media, we shall also be providing regular updates
on the Councils’ Facebook pages, Twitter feeds and the City Council’s Local
Plan blog.



Page 107

What Happens Next?

The results of this second Issues and Options consultation will be taken
together with the other comments we received to the first consultation and
will help the Council prepare a draft Local Plan for consultation in summer
2013. Once processed, all consultation responses can be viewed on the
Council's website.

The new Local Plan will then be submitted to the Secretary of State for
examination. Any objections received at that stage will be considered by a
Planning Inspector at the examination of the Local Plan before the Council
can adopt the new Local Plan.

The District Council is firmly committed to securing high quality development
and welcomes the changes in national policy that require developers of
proposals to consult local people at an early stage. Having a good plan is
only half the story, getting the planning applications right comes next.



Page 108

Chapter 2: Housing

2.1

2.2

23

24

The Local Plan must allocate sites for new housing development to meet the
long term needs of the District and support forecast new jobs. New homes
need to be in places where people will want to live, close to jobs and cause
the least harm to the built and natural environment.

Approach in Issues and Options 2012

The 2012 Issues and Options consultation explored options for the amount of
future housing that should be planned for over the next 20 years and where
provision could be focused. This gives us an indication of the amount of
additional development that would need to be allocated in addition to the
14,200 homes already planned. In summary, the options mean we need to
find additional land for between 4,300 and 9,300 new homes in the period to
2031. The 2012 Issues and Options consultation included 52 site options for
housing that would provide for up to 23,000 homes, although not all of these
could come forward during the plan period. They cover a range of scales and
locations of development from the Cambridge fringe and new settlement
options to site options at larger villages.

Options Consistent with the Normal Local Plan Approach

The joint Part 1 of this second Issues and Options consultation with
Cambridge City Council also considers housing levels and further site options
for housing on the edge of Cambridge, one of which is in South
Cambridgeshire. Land south of the A14 and west of Cambridge Road
(NIAB3) could provide up to 130 homes together with employment
development (Site Option GBG6).

We have carefully considered the comments made in response to the 2012
Issues and Options consultation that suggest further potential site options for
housing, including those from Parish Councils. For those sites we have:

e Undertaken technical assessments and sustainability appraisals (SA) of
new sites in the same way and according to the same qualifying criteria
that we did for sites proposed to us through the “Call for Sites” process
in 20117;

e Prepared a summary assessment of each site which draws together the
outcome of the technical assessment and sustainability appraisal and
reached a view on the ‘Sustainable Development Potential’ of each
site?;

! Appendix 4 of the updated SHLAA document includes detailed assessments of the newly
examined sites and can be viewed on our website: www.scambs.gov.uk/Idf/localplan

2 Annexes 1 and 2 of the Issues and Options 2 Initial Sustainability Appraisal Report for Part 2
include detailed sustainability appraisals of all the newly examined sites and can be viewed on
our website: www.scambs.gov.uk/Idf/localplan




Page 109

e Where previously rejected sites have been put forward to us again we
have considered the representations made and in some cases revised
our previous assessments and sustainability appraisals; and

e Updated our Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA).

2.5 A wide range of matters have been taken into account in selecting the
additional site options, in the same way as for the 2012 consultation,
including:

e  Whether they large enough to allocate — a minimum of 10 dwellings;

e Whether the proposal is in a sustainable location, meaning it is at a
town or village having good services and facilities and has good access
to public transport;

e Any townscape, biodiversity, heritage assets;

e The viability of development;

e  Whether it could be relied upon to deliver over the plan period; and

e Whether a site option would involve the loss of an existing employment
area, in which case highlighting that this needs to be carefully balanced
with wider employment objectives.

2.6 The feedback from the 2012 consultation and the assessment work has
helped us identify some additional site options that are included in this
consultation. They will be considered alongside the housing site options in
the 2012 Issues and Options and will provide a genuine choice for the
Council as we move to a preferred set of sites that will be included in the draft
Local Plan in summer 2013.

2.7 The new site options are all at the larger and better served villages. As for
the 2012 consultation, we have taken the view that any new sites suggested
at smaller villages (Group and Infill villages) are not considered suitable in
principle for possible allocation. This takes account of the fewer services and
facilities and less good public transport at these villages and also that we
have identified a significant number of dwellings potentially available at a
range of sites in more sustainable locations. Such sites have therefore not
been assessed.

Issue 1: Housing Site Options

The following list sets out 10 new site options for consultation. The Green (G)
indicates more sustainable sites with development potential (few constraints or
adverse impacts), and Amber (A) indicates less sustainable sites, but where there is
still development potential (some constraints or adverse impacts). The site
boundaries and approximate dwelling capacities are indicative at this stage in the
Local Plan making process.

The further site options are listed in order of the scale of services and facilities
available locally and access to public transport (following the order of villages in the
village category assessment at Appendix 3 of the 2012 Issues and Options



Page 110

consultation document). Some villages have more than one site option. Site options
are proposed at:

e Cambourne

e Sawston

e Histon & Impington
e Melbourn

e Comberton

e Waterbeach

Note: Site options H3 and H5 at the Dales Manor Business Park, Sawston overlap
with each other and that H5 overlaps with Site Options 6 and 7 of the 201 Issues and
Options consultation. The net additional capacity is 100 homes. Also note that site
option H9 at Waterbeach overlaps with Site Option 50 of the 2012 Issues and Options
consultation. The net additional capacity is 75 homes.

The site options provide for approximately 1,245 homes (Site Option GB6 in Part 1
would provide an additional 130 homes), and are shown on the Village Maps in

Chapter 9.
Question 1a: Which of the Site Options do you support or object to and why?

Please provide any comments.

Question 1b: Are there other sites we should consider? (These could be sites
already assessed and rejected or new sites.)

Please provide any comments.

District Wide Location of Development
Site Options

‘ Site with Development Potential

/_\ Site with Limited Development Potential
(including GB6 - See Part 1 Document)
Note: This map shows the general locations
of the site options. The exact locations are
found on the maps on the following pages.

Waterbeach A

Histon &
Impington ®
GB6

Cambourne

Comberton

o th

Sawston

A

Melbourn

® Crown Copyright, Ordnance Survey SCDC Licence 100022500 (2012)




Page 111

Site Option H1 Land at Cambourne Business Park

Site Size (ha): 8.08 Dwelling capacity: 240
Representation number: 45370 SHLAA Reference: 303
Pros Cons

e Site within village already allocated for e Loss of employment land.
development.
e No adverse landscape or townscape e Capacity of local services and facilities

impacts. including schools and healthcare.

¢ Land has been allocated for many e Difficult to integrate with residential
years without being developed for neighbourhoods of Cambourne.
employment.

Site Option H2 Former Bishops Hardware Store, Station Road, Histon

Site Size (ha): 0.22 Dwelling capacity: Minimum of 10,
potentially 30 dwellings or more
Representation number: 39452 SHLAA Reference: 308
Pros Cons
e Redevelopment could improve local e Distance from local services and
townscape and environment. facilities.
e Adjacent to guided bus. e Potential for noise nuisance from

guided busway.
e (Good accessibility by walking, cycling e Potential loss of retail floorspace.
and public transport.

Note: Histon and Impington Parish Council has put forward a proposal for mixed use
development, known as ‘Station’, which includes Site Option H2. This is considered in
Chapter 4.

Site Option H3 Land at Dales Manor Business Park, Sawston

Site Size (ha): 2.06 Dwelling capacity: 60
Representation number: 37129 SHLAA Reference: 310
Pros Cons

¢ No impact on landscape or townscape e Loss of employment land.

e Would replace concrete batching and e Potential noise nuisance from existing
tarmac plants with benefits to local employment uses.
environment. ¢ Not deliverable on its own.

¢ Previously developed land.

Site Option H4 Land north of White Field Way, Sawston

Site Size (ha): 6.6 Dwelling capacity: 90

Representation number: 39546 SHLAA Reference: 311

Pros Cons

e Limited impact on landscape setting. o Loss of Green Belt.

¢ Would preserve green foreground to ¢ Distance from local services and
Sawston if no built development on facilities.
field adjoining the A1301.

e Sawston has a good range of local o Potential noise nuisance from A1301



Page 112

services and facilities. and mainline railway.

Site Option H5 Former Marley Tiles site, Dale Manor Business Park, Sawston

Site Size (ha): 10.7 Dwelling capacity: 260

Representation number: 45030 SHLAA Reference: 312

Pros Cons

¢ No impact on landscape or townscape e Loss of employment land.

¢ Includes new employment e Potential noise nuisance from existing
development with potential to more employment uses.
than replace any jobs lost.

e Sawston has a good range of local ¢ Distance from local services and
services and facilities. facilities.

Site Option H6 Land north of Babraham Road, Sawston

Site Size (ha): 3.64 Dwelling capacity: 110
Representation number: 29771 SHLAA Reference: 313 (2012 SHLAA
Site 076)

Pros Cons

¢ Limited impact on landscape setting. e Loss of Green Belt.

¢ Potential to create new soft green ¢ Potential noise nuisance from existing
edge to the village. employment uses.

e Sawston has a good range of local ¢ Distance from local services and
services and facilities. facilities.

Site Option H7 Land to the east of New Road, Melbourn

Site Size (ha): 9.02 Dwelling capacity: 205
Representation number: 41129 SHLAA Reference: 320
Pros Cons
¢ Limited impact on landscape setting if e Major impact on landscape setting if
new soft green edge to south created. development extends too far to the south.
e Good accessibility to a range of ¢ Distance from local services and facilities.

employment opportunities.
e Good accessibility by walking, cycling e Major impact on landscape setting if
and public transport. development extends too far to the south.

Site Option H8 Orchard and land at East Farm, Melbourn

Site Size (ha): 2.83 Dwelling capacity: 65
Representation number: N/A SHLAA Reference: 176
Pros Cons

¢ Limited impact on landscape setting if e Loss of Green Belt.
new soft green edge to south created.
e Good accessibility by walking, cycling e Distance from local services and

and public transport. facilities.
e Good accessibility to a range of ¢ Only deliverable with Site Option 9 as
employment opportunities. otherwise would form a promontory of

development into open countryside.

10



Page 113

Site Option H9 Land north of Bannold Road, Waterbeach

Site Size (ha): 4.01 Dwelling capacity: 90 (75 on land not
previously consulted on)

Representation number: 43882 SHLAA Reference: 322 (overlaps part of
previous site 155)

Pros Cons

e No impact on landscape setting. e Major impact on townscape through loss

e Good accessibility to a range of of green separation from Barracks unless

employment opportunities. only part of site developed.

e Good accessibility by walking, cycling e Distance from local services and facilities.
and public transport.
e Major impact on townscape through loss
of green separation from Barracks unless
only part of site developed.

Site Option H10 Land at Bennell Farm, West Street, Comberton

Site Size (ha): 6.27 Dwelling capacity: 115
Representation number: 39503 SHLAA Reference: 326
Pros Cons

¢ Limited impact on landscape setting if e Loss of Green Belt.
existing soft green edge retained.

e Submission proposes development at e Limited range of local services and
a low density to match local character. facilities.

e Good accessibility to a range of
employment opportunities.

11



Page 114

Chapter 3: Employment

3.1 The Local Plan must allocate land for employment development to meet the
long term needs of the District in places that are good for the economy and
will cause the least harm to the built and natural environment. The 2012
Issues and Options consultation explored the options for future employment
levels over the next 20 years and where provision could be focused. Part 1
of this second Issues and Options consultation also considers this issue.

Approach in the Issues and Options 2012
3.2 The Issues and Options 2012 consultation sought views on whether existing
employment allocations should be carried forward into the new plan, and
whether there were any other sites that should be allocated in the Local Plan
for employment. A total of six new sites were suggested.
Options Consistent with the Normal Local Plan Approach
Issue 2: Employment Site Options
All of the sites have been tested through an assessment of their availability, suitability
and deliverability, in combination with a sustainability appraisal. The assessments
can be found in the Supplementary Initial Sustainability Supplementary Report

(Appendices 5-7). One site is considered to be an option for consultation, shown on
the Village Map in Chapter 9.

Question 2a: Do you support or object to the Site Option at Former
ThyssenKrup Plant, Bourn Airfield, Bourn, and why?
Please provide any comments.

Question 2b: Are there other sites we should consider? (These could be sites
already assessed and rejected or new sites.)

Please provide any comments.

Site Option E1: Former ThyssenKrup Plant, Bourn Airfield, Bourn

Site Size (ha): 9.4 Representation number: 42509
Pros Cons
e Existing site in employment site use. o If Bourn Airfield new village option is

not selected site is relatively isolated.
¢ Opportunity to redevelop site to
provide employment for Bourn airfield
new village option if selected.
e Potential to replace existing site with
alternative types of employment to
address noise issues.

12



Page 115

Established Employment Areas in the Countryside — Site Boundaries

3.3 The current development plan identifies 12 areas as Established Employment
Areas in the Countryside. The plan allows employment development within
these areas, subject to requirements of other policies in the plan.

Issue 3: Boundary of Established Employment Area at Granta Park

One comment indicated that the boundary of the Granta Park Great Abington site
does not reflect the established area, particularly phase 2 of the development which
now has planning permission. It is proposed that the area consistent with the

permission is included in the policy area.

Option E2: Granta Park is shown on the Map in Chapter 9.

Question 3: Do you support or object to the revised boundary to the Granta
Park Established Employment Area boundary, and why?

Please provide any comments.

13



Page 116

Chapter 4: Mixed use Development

4.1 The Council has received proposals from Histon and Impington and
Cottenham Parish Councils as part of the proposal that the Local Plan
includes community initiatives that local parish councils would otherwise have
wished to put in neighbourhood plans.

Issue 4: Parish Council Proposal for ‘Station’, Histon

Histon and Impington Parish Council is seeking to proactively design a special area in
the Histon and Impington settlement around the former station, which is now a stop on
the Guided Busway. The proposal is to use this key area to make significant use of
the Busway in order to encourage sensitive development of this area and to stimulate
commercial activity and to encourage local employment which has recently declined.
They call the area for this proposal ‘Station’. It is ready for re-development. Their
vision is that ‘Station’ will form a vibrant ‘gateway’ to the community and should be a
mixed development of housing, businesses, private and public sector space and
community amenities, with simple cafes and takeaways to more sophisticated
restaurants and wine bars, along with open space and street art. They hope the area
will be developed to form a vibrant ‘gateway’ to the community. The Parish Council
will welcome early approaches from developers wishing to engage in the above
development so that appropriate schemes can be developed before plans are
submitted.

The Parish Council’s full proposal and a map of the area is contained at Appendix 1.

Note a promoter has put forward a proposal for housing on part of the ‘Station’ land.
See also housing Site Option H2 in Chapter 2.

Option PCO: ‘Station’, Histon is shown on the Village Map in Chapter 9.

Question 4: Do you support or object to the proposal by Histon and Impington
Parish Council for ‘Station’ in Histon and why?

Please provide any comments.

Issue 5: Parish Council proposal for mixed-use development to fund a bypass in
Cottenham

Through the Local Plan, under the general provisions of ‘localism’, Cottenham Parish
Council would like to promote the development of a bypass to the village High Street.
It is proposed to link Twenty Pence Road to Histon Road via a new road around the
south side of the village crossing Beach Road in the vicinity to Long Drove. The
Parish Council proposes that this road will be funded by housing, infrastructure and
industrial development on land bounded in:

. the north by High Street and Twenty Pence Road
. the west side of Rooks Street/Coolidge Gardens

14



Page 117

. the south by Long Drove
. the east by Alboro Close Drove

The total site area of 97 hectares could be developed to provide approximately 1,500
dwellings if developed entirely for housing (including schools, recreation open space
and other supporting uses). The Parish Council proposes that the development would
include employment development so the number of houses would be less than this
number.

This proposal is at a very early stage of development and the Parish Council will use
the January / February consultation to gauge public support and to develop its
proposals with the objective of including the scheme in the draft Local Plan by May
2013. This may include revisions to the area of land that the Parish Council considers
necessary to secure the delivery of the bypass. Inquiries about these proposals
should be directed to Cottenham Parish Council.

Option PC00: Mixed Use, Cottenham is shown on the Village Map in Chapter 9.

Question 5: Do you support or object to the mixed-use proposal by Cottenham
Parish Council to fund a bypass and why?

Please provide any comments.

15



Page 118

Chapter 5: Village Frameworks

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

Plans for South Cambridgeshire have included village frameworks for a
number of years, to define the extent of the built-up area of villages. They
have had the advantage of preventing gradual expansion of villages into
open countryside in an uncontrolled and unplanned way. They also provide
certainty to local communities and developers of the Council’s approach to
development in villages.

Approach in Issues and Options 2012

In the 2012 Issues and Options consultation the Council asked what
approach should be taken towards village frameworks in the new Local Plan
(Issue 15); whether or not to retain the boundaries, or whether to allow
additional development on the edge of villages, controlled through policy.

The comments the Council received to this issue will be considered when
preparing the draft Local Plan next spring and so the Council has not reached
a view at this stage which approach to take.

The 2012 consultation also gave the opportunity for suggestions where
existing village framework boundaries may not be not drawn appropriately.
The Council received 73 representations proposing amendments to village
framework boundaries. We wish to take the opportunity of this consultation to
ask what your views are of these proposed changes should village
frameworks as an approach be carried forward into the new plan.

A complete list of the 63 suggested village framework amendments, together
with the Council’'s assessment of them, can be found in Appendix 9 of the
Sustainability Report.

Options Consistent with the Normal Local Plan Approach

The Council has assessed the suggested amendments against our normal
criteria which has been tested by Planning Inspectors. Village frameworks
are defined to take into account the present extent of the built-up area plus
development committed by planning permissions and other proposals in the
Development Plan. They exclude buildings associated with countryside uses
(e.g. farm buildings, houses with agricultural occupancy conditions or
affordable housing schemes permitted as ‘exceptions’ to policy). In addition,
small clusters of houses or areas of scattered development isolated in open
countryside or detached from the main concentration of buildings within a
village are also excluded. Boundaries may also cut across large gardens
where the scale and character of the land relates more to the surrounding
countryside than the built-up area.

16



Page 119

Issue 6: Village Framework Changes

Those suggested changes that meet the Council’s approach to identifying village
frameworks have been included in Table 5.1 below for comment. They are shown on
the Village Maps in Chapter 9.

Some of the suggested amendments to village frameworks have also been put
forward for consideration as housing allocations and are considered in Chapter 2. If
any of the housing sites are be allocated for development in the Draft Local Plan,
there would be a consequential amendment of the village framework to include the
site within the boundary.

Question 6a: Which of the potential amendments to village frameworks do you
support or object to and why?

Please provide any comments.

Question 6b: Are there any other corrections to existing frameworks we should
consider? (These could be suggestions already submitted and assessed in
Appendix 9 of the Sustainability Report.)

Please provide any comments.

Table 5.1 Village Framework Options

Option | Village Location Description
No.
VF1 Caldecote Eastern edge of Refine framework along the eastern edge
Caldecote of Caldecote to ensure a consistent
approach.
VF2 Chittering Chittering Define new village framework for

Chittering. Suggestion by Waterbeach
Parish Council. Would be included as an

Infill Village.
VF3 Comberton | Comberton Village Include all the college buildings within the
College village framework, with consequential
removal of the buildings from the Green
Belt.
VF4 Guilden High Street Include all of 74 High Street and also
Morden include 76 and 82 High Street.
VF5 Meldreth Land at 79a North End | Include whole of property.
VF6 Sawston London Road, Suggestion that land should be included in
Pampisford the Sawston village framework for

planning purposes rather than Pampisford
framework (within Pampisford Parish).

(With consequential amendment to include
housing at western end of Brewery Road).

VF7 Toft Land at 46 High Street | Include dwelling with planning permission,
which will straddle the existing boundary.
Suggestion by Toft Parish Council.

17




Page 120

Option | Village Location Description
No.
VF8 Toft Land at Old Farm Include employment building with planning
Business Centre permission. Suggestion by Toft Parish
Council.
5.6 It should be noted that due to changes to the Ordnance Survey base map

there are some instances where village framework boundaries are shown
close to, but no longer following lines on the base map. No changes have
been made on the ground, this is a technicality arising as a result of more
accurate mapping technologies and "corrections” will be made when the Draft
Local Plan is published in the summer.

Parish Council Proposals

5.7 A number of suggested amendments to village frameworks were put forward
by Parish Councils. Those considered consistent with the Council’s
approach have been included as potential amendments in Table 3.1 above.
However, some of the suggested amendments to village frameworks
proposed by Parish Councils are not consistent with the Council’s approach.

Issue 7: Parish Council Village Framework Proposals

As the Council is engaging with Parish Councils to explore how to meet local
aspirations, including where villages may wish to take a more flexible approach to
development, those suggested amendments which do not meet the Council’s
approach are included in Table 5.2 for comment. These changes could potentially
allow more development on the edge of the village concerned. We have explained
why these suggestions do not meet our normal tests, but this is for information only
and is not intended to imply that the change should not be made under the
community-led part of the Local Plan, if consultation demonstrates there is local
support. The only test which should be applied is whether these proposals are in
general conformity with strategic policies in the Local Plan.

Question 7: Which of the Parish Council proposed amendments to village
frameworks do you support or object to and why?

Please provide any comments.

Table 5.2: Parish Council Proposed Changes to Village Frameworks

Ref. | Village Location Parish Council District Council’s
No. Proposal comment
PC1 Comberton | Land north of Include ‘white land’ Scrub land, separated
West Street between the current from the adjoining
Village Framework house and garden by a
and Green Belt. hedge. Has a rural

character with
agricultural land
beyond and is not part
of the built-up area.

18




Page 121

Ref.
No

Village

Location

Parish Council
Proposal

District Council’s
comment

PC2

Little
Gransden

Land bounding
6 Primrose Hill

PC3

Little
Gransden

South of Main
Road

PC4

Little
Gransden

Church Street

PC5

Little
Gransden

West of
Primrose Walk

PC6

Little
Gransden

Land opposite
Primrose Walk

Extend framework to
include obvious infill
sites.

Triangular paddock
with trees and out
buildings, part of the
setting of a Listed
Building and the
Conservation Area.
Rural character and not
part of the built-up
area.

Low density, sporadic
properties along one
side of the road, with
open paddocks
opposite. Rural
character and not part
of the built-up area.

Low density and
sporadic development
beyond number 22,
Leafy, single track
road. Rural character
and not part of the
built-up area.

Area of overgrown land
to north and to the
south the land is more
open. Rural character
and not part of the
built-up area

Area of paddock with
mature trees along the
Primrose Hill road
frontage. Previous
planning permission
granted for infill - would
continue road frontage.

PC7

Toft

Offices and
barns near Golf
Club

Include offices and
barns within Village
Framework.

Two large barn-like
employment buildings
with hard standing.
Rural character and not
part of the built-up
area.

PC8

Whaddon

Land west of 97
Meldreth Road

PC9

Whaddon

Land east of
123 Meldreth
Road

PC10

Whaddon

Land at 129

There are parts of
Whaddon that do not
follow specific
boundaries.

Grassland and mature
trees, with parkland
character. Rural
character and not part
of the built-up area.

Arable field bound by
hedgerow. Rural
character and not part
of the built-up area.

A property in large

19




Page 122

Ref.
No.

Village

Location

Parish Council
Proposal

District Council’s
comment

Meldreth Road

PC11

Whaddon

Land south of
Meldreth Road

grounds, accessed via
a long track. Rural
character and not part
of the built-up area.

Two large houses and
outbuildings in large
grounds. Rural
character and not part
of the built-up area.

20




Page 123

Chapter 6: Community Facilities and Infrastructure

6.1 A number of representations to the 2012 consultation seek proposals in the
Local Plan to provide community facilities or infrastructure. Where
reasonable options exist they are included in this consultation to help inform
the new Local Plan.

Issue 8: Hospice Provision

A representation was made to the Council’s 2012 Issues and Options consultation in
relation to hospice provision. Hospices provide palliative care for the terminally and
seriously ill. They form an important part of community infrastructure and include the
Arthur Rank Hospice on Mill Road, Cambridge and the East Anglia Children’s
Hospices at Milton. Along with Cambridge City Council, the Council is continuing to
investigate site options as part of the preparation of the draft Local Plan.

Question 8: Are there any sites which might be suitable for allocation for new
hospice provision?

Please provide any comments.
Issue 9: Residential Moorings on the River Cam

The Cam Conservators have expressed their disappointment that the 2012
consultation did not identify the River Cam as a piece of major infrastructure. The
Council recognises the importance of the river to the district and will ensure this is
included in the new Local Plan. The Conservators specifically seek the allocation of a
marina for ‘offline’ residential moorings for 60-80 narrowboats on the River Cam at
Chesterton Fen, each between 15-20m in length. The Cambridge Local Plan 2006
has an allocation adjacent to the administrative boundary in Chesterton Fen for
off-river moorings and the City Council is consulting in its Part 2 Issues and Options 2
consultation on whether to carry forward the allocation. Land adjoining the City site in
South Cambridgeshire could be considered to provide a larger site subject to detailed
consideration, although this would not provide the scale of site the Conservators are
seeking. No specific proposal has been put forward, further work would need to be
done to demonstrate an appropriate scheme could be achieved, having regard to the
sensitivity of the river frontage. It is put forward for consultation to explore the potential
of this site, and is shown on the Map in Chapter 9.

Question 9: Do you support or object to the site option for residential moorings
at Fen Road and why?

Please provide any comments.

21



Page 124

Option CF1: Fen Road

The site is currently green space and is located to the south and east of Fen Road

and to the north of the River Cam, close to the railway line (which is to the west).

Land to the west was allocated in the 2006 Cambridge Local Plan for off-river

moorings (residential and is being explored in the City Council’s own Issues and

Options 2 (Part 2) consultation. The potential of this site will be explored with the

City Council and the Conservators of the River Cam.

Pros Cons

o Greenfield site with the potential for off e Distance from City and local centres.
river moorings which could ease some e Known archaeology in the vicinity,

of the congestion on this part of the detailed assessment would be

river required ahead of any development.
¢ Close to outdoor sports facilities and e Impact on landscape and local

accessible natural greenspace.. character
e Close to proposed Cambridge e Impact on riverside path would need
e Science Park railway station. to be addressed.

e Good cycling links.
e Potential to enhance riparian habitats.

Issue 10: Provision of New Burial Grounds

Gamlingay Parish Council sought to secure a site for a burial ground in the last plan
but was not able to convince the Local Plan Inspectors of the need for provision of a
new burial ground in the short term or the suitability of the site then under
consideration. Gamlingay Parish Council has made representations seeking advice in
the new Local Plan on how to provide a new burial ground. Hauxton Parish Council
has made representations seeking a site for the village but has not provided a
particular site.

Question 10: Do you own land that could provide suitable new burial ground
facilities for Gamlingay and Hauxton parishes to meet needs over the next
20 years.

Please provide any comments.

22



Page 125

Chapter 7: Recreation and Open Space

7.1 The 2012 Issues and Options consultation sought views on whether there
should be any additional allocations for recreational open space.

Issue 11: Recreation and Open Space

A number of sites for new public open space have been suggested by Parish
Councils. In all cases the options are in villages where there is a shortfall in provision
against the Council’s adopted (and proposed) standards for sport and play provision.
Whilst the plan can allocate open space, delivery will be a matter for the Parish
Council or other bodies.

These are shown on the Village Maps in Chapter 9.

Question 11: Which of the site options for open space do you support or object

to and why?

Please provide any comments.

Site Option R1: Land known as Bypass Farm, West of Cottenham Road, Histon

Site Size (ha): 4.8 Representation number: 47253

Pros Cons

e Would increase open space provision e Green Belt — Any built development to
in north of village. support recreation uses (e.g. changing

¢ Near to public transport route. rooms) in this open flat landscape

¢ Potential for landscape / biodiversity could impact on long-distance views,
enhancement and would need to be carefully sited

and landscaped.

Site Option R2: East of Railway Line, South of Grahams Road, Great Shelford

Site Size (ha): 3.5 Representation number: 41130
Pros Cons
e Could provide access to informal e Land has a countryside parkland
recreation e.g. countryside access, character, unsuitable for formal
dog walking. recreation (e.g. pitches, equipped
play).

e Poor highways access, no potential
for onsite car parking.

Site Option R3: Grange Field, Church Street, Great Shelford

Site Size (ha): 2.5 Representation number: 41130

Pros Cons

¢ Adjoins existing recreation ground, ¢ In Conservation Area and near to
with existing parking and facilities. Listed Buildings, but impacts limited if

land remains open space.

23



Page 126

Site Option R4: North of former EDF site, Ely road, Milton

Site Size (ha): 3.1 Representation number: 36397

Pros Cons

e Adjoins area already planned fornew e The impact of additional pitches on
pitches, with pavilion and car park. planned parking levels would need to

be considered.

24



Page 127

Chapter 8: Protecting Village Character

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

Plans for South Cambridgeshire include designations to protect undeveloped
areas and road frontages that are important to the local amenity and
character of villages and should be protected from harmful development.
These are Protected Village Amenity Areas (PVAA) and Important
Countryside Frontages (ICF).

Protected Village Amenity Areas and Local Green Space

In the Council’s existing plans open areas within villages have been identified
as Protected Village Amenity Areas (PVAA) where they lie within the village
framework, where the risk of harm is greatest, and are important to the
character, amenity, tranquillity or function of the village. Some PVAAs may
have important functions for the village such as allotments, recreation
grounds and playing fields, whilst others have an important role in providing a
setting for buildings and offer tranquil areas where there is minimum activity.
Not all PVAAs have public access and some are undeveloped areas such as
private gardens. They also vary from those that are very open to views to
those that may be enclosed or semi-enclosed.

Approach in Issues and Options 2012

The existing PVAA policy has successfully protected these areas and an
issue raised in the 2012 Issues and Options consultation was whether to
review the existing areas protected within villages and consider if any
additional ones should be identified. A further issue raised was whether to
include a policy for the new designation of Local Green Space, introduced by
the NPPF, and whether any particular spaces should be identified.

The consultation recognised that there are similarities between PVAAs and
the new Local Green Spaces (LGSs), although it commented that the level of
protection given by the PVAA policy is not as strong and not all PVAAs would
be suitable for the LGS designation. A LGS could also be located on the
edge of a village beyond the development framework, whereas PVAAs have
been identified within villages only. The new Local Green Space (LGS)
designation is for green areas of particular importance to local communities,
which once designated can prevent new development.

The Council has received much support from both Parish Councils and
individuals for retaining PVAAs and for the introduction of LGS within the
future Local Plan. A limited nhumber of objectors considered it duplication to
have both designations and that in order to align with the NPPF that LGS
should be the policy to have in the new Local Plan. The Council will decide
whether the new Local Plan should retain PVAAs and introduce LGS or
whether to just have one policy to protect land in and close to villages, having
regard to comments received, and no view has been reached at this stage.

25



Page 128

8.6 A significant number of new areas have been put forward for consideration in
response to the 2012 consultation, and a few existing PVAAs have been
questioned.

8.7 The Council has given further consideration to the differences and similarities

between LGS and PVAAs, in Appendix 12 of the Sustainability Report. There
is guidance within the NPPF as to when LGS designation should be used and
this has been compared with the criteria that has been used for identifying
PVAAs. This work has concluded that LGSs and PVAAs are very similar
apart from the fact that PVAAs can only be identified within a village.

8.8 The criteria used for assessing the sites are as follows:

e The green area must be demonstrably special to a local community;

e The green space must hold a particular local significance, for example
because of its beauty, historic significance, recreational value (including
as a playing field), tranquillity or richness of its wildlife;

e The green space must be in reasonably close proximity to the
community it serves;

e The green area must be local in character and not be an extensive tract
of land;

e Most green areas or open space will not be appropriate. Must be
consistent with the local planning of sustainable development and
complement investment in sufficient homes, jobs and other essential
services.

8.9 The assessments of these sites are included in the evidence document.
Each site has been assessed as to whether it could meet the criteria for both
PVAA and LGS - the key difference for PVAAs is the need to be within a
village framework. The sites that have met the tests for PVAA and/or LGS
are included in the following table. The sites that are within the village
framework have been grouped together as these could meet both the test for
PVAA and LGS. Those outside the framework would only meet the test for
LGS.

Issue 12: Protecting Important Green Spaces

For the purposes of this consultation, the sites suggested and assessed as meeting
the main tests for designation as either a Protected Village Amenity Area or the new
Local Green Space are put forward in a single list to seek local views on their
importance to village character and amenity. Table 8.1 below identifies whether they
are inside or outside the village framework for information but please comment on any
of the sites and their importance to you as local open green spaces. The Council will
ensure that the new Local Plan includes suitable designations to ensure that all areas
identified of importance are protected in an appropriate way, taking account of your
views. Table 8.1 also identifies where the site has been suggested by the Parish
Council.

These are shown on the Village Maps in Chapter 9.

26



Page 129

Question 12: Which of the potential important green spaces do you support or
object to and why?

Please provide any comments.

Table 8.1 Potential Important Green Spaces to be Protected

Option | Village Site Location / Address Comment

No.

G1 Bassingbourn | Play area and open space in | Inside village framework
Elbourn Way Parish Council proposal
South of the road

G2 Bassingbourn | Play area and open space Inside village framework
owned by the Parish Council | Parish Council proposal
in Fortune Way

G3 Bassingbourn | The Rouses Outside village framework

Parish Council proposal

G4 Bassingbourn | The play area and open Outside village framework
space in Elbourn Way Parish Council proposal
North of the road

G5 Caldecote Recreation sports field off Outside village framework
Furlong Way

G6 Cambourne Land north of Jeavons Lane, | Inside village framework
north of Monkfield Way Parish Council proposal

G7 Cambourne Land south of Jeavons Wood | Inside village framework
Primary School Parish Council proposal

G8 Cambourne Cambourne Recreation Inside village framework
Ground, Back Lane (2) Parish Council proposal

G9 Cambourne Cambourne, land east of Inside village framework
Sterling Way Parish Council proposal

G10 Cambourne Land east of Sterling Way, Inside village framework
north of Brace Dein Parish Council proposal

G11 Cambourne Land north of School Lane, Inside village framework
west of Woodfield Lane Parish Council proposal

G12 Cambourne Land east of Greenbank Outside village framework

Parish Council proposal

G13 Cambourne Land north of School Lane, Outside village framework
west of Broad Street Parish Council proposal

G14 Cambourne Cambourne Recreation Outside village framework
Ground, Back Lane (1) Parish Council proposal

G15 Cambourne Land north of Green Outside village framework
Common Farm, west of Parish Council proposal
Broadway

G16 Cambourne Landscaped areas within Outside village framework
village and around edge of Parish Council proposal
village

G17 Cottenham All Saints Church Inside village framework

G18 Cottenham Moat Inside village framework

G19 Cottenham Broad Lane - High Street Inside village framework
Junction

G20 Cottenham Land at Victory Way Inside village framework

27




Page 130

Option | Village Site Location / Address Comment
No.
G21 Cottenham Cemetery , Lamb Lane Inside village framework
G22 Cottenham Orchard Close Inside village framework
G23 Cottenham Coolidge Gardens Inside village framework
G24 Cottenham South of Brenda Gautry Way | Inside village framework
G25 Cottenham Dunstall Field Inside village framework
G26 Cottenham West of Sovereign Way Inside village framework
G27 Cottenham Old Recreation Ground Outside village framework
G28 Cottenham Recreation Ground and Outside village framework
Playing Fields
G29 Cottenham Playing Fields Outside village framework
G30 Foxton Foxton Recreation ground Outside village framework
Parish Council proposal
G31 Foxton The Green Outside village framework
Parish Council proposal
G32 Foxton The Dovecote meadow Outside village framework
Parish Council proposal
G33 Fulbourn Small parcel of land between | Outside village framework
the Townley Hall at the
Fulbourn Centre and the
access road to the same, and
fronting Home End
G34 Fulbourn The field between Cox's Outside village framework
Drove, Cow Lane and the
railway line - as well as the
associated low-lying area on
Cow Lane adjacent to the
Horse Pond.
G35 Great Shelford | Land between Rectory Farm | Outside village framework
and 26 Church Street Parish Council proposal
G36 Guilden 36 Dubbs Knoll Road Revise the boundary of
Morden existing PVAA inside
village framework to
exclude the garden of
36 Dubbs Knoll Road.
G37 Haslingfield Recreation Ground Outside village framework
Parish Council proposal
G38 Ickleton Village green - opposite the Inside village framework
Church
G39 Litlington Village Green Inside village framework
G40 Litlington St Peter's Hill Inside village framework
G41 Litlington Recreation Ground, Outside village framework
Parish Council proposal
G42 Little Abington | Scout Campsite, Church Outside village framework
Lane Parish Council proposal
G43 Little Abington | Bowling Green, High Street Outside village framework
Parish Council proposal
G44 Over Station Road/Turn Lane Inside village framework
Parish Council proposal
G45 Over Willingham Road/west of Mill | Outside village framework
Road Parish Council proposal
G46 Pampisford The Spinney adjacent to 81 Outside village framework

Brewery Road.

Parish Council proposal

28




Page 131

Option | Village Site Location / Address Comment
No.
G47 Papworth Wood behind Pendragon Hill | Inside village framework
Everard Parish Council proposal
G48 Papworth Jubilee Green Inside village framework
Everard Parish Council proposal
G49 Papworth Baron’s Way Wood Inside village framework
Everard Parish Council proposal
G50 Papworth Rectory Woods Outside village framework
Everard Parish Council proposal
G51 Papworth Meadow at west end of Outside village framework
Everard Church Lane Parish Council proposal
G52 Sawston Challis Garden, Mill Lane Inside village framework
G53 Sawston Spike Playing Field — open Outside village framework
space at end of South
Terrace
G54 Steeple The Ransom Strip, Craft Way | Outside village framework
Morden Parish Council proposal
G55 Steeple The Recreation Ground, Hay | Outside village framework
Morden Street Parish Council proposal
G56 Steeple The Cowslip Meadow Outside village framework
Morden Parish Council proposal
G57 Steeple Whiteponds Wood Outside village framework
Morden Parish Council proposal
G58 Toft Land adjacent to 6 High Inside village framework
Street Parish Council proposal
G59 Toft The Recreation Ground Outside village framework

Parish Council proposal

8.10

Parish Council Proposals

A number of suggested sites for inclusion as PVAA and/or LGS were put
forward by Parish Councils. Those that were considered to meet the tests for
either or both designations have been included in Table 8.1 above.

Issue 13: Parish Council proposals for protecting important green spaces

Some of the sites proposed by Parish Councils did not meet the tests for either
recognised designation and to include them as such would not be consistent with
either the NPPF or the Council’s approach. If Parish Councils wish to meet local
aspirations by protecting such sites, this would need to be done under another new
designation if they are to be included in the Local Plan. They are included in this
consultation, in Table 8.2, to seek local views on the importance of these areas. If
there is local support, we will work with the parish councils concerned to include
appropriate community-led policies in the Local Plan.

These are shown on the Village Maps in Chapter 9.

Question 13: Which of the Parish Council proposed important green spaces do
you support or object to and why?

Please provide any comments.

29




Page 132

Table 8.2 Parish Council Proposed Important Green Spaces to be Protected

Ref. Village Site Location / District Council’s comment

No. Address

PC12 | Bassingbourn | 75 and 90 Spring Highway and highway verges not a
Lane; and the suitable candidate for PVAA - not
junction with the by- | ‘green space’. Does not have historic
way at Ashwell significance; recreational value or
Street. amenity value to the community. Not

a tranquil location.
Therefore not considered a local
asset for protection as LGS.

PC13 | Foxton The green area on Wide grass verge following western
Station Road in front | side of Station Road. It has some
of, and beside, the trees within it creating a rural
Press cottages character to this stretch of road. As

it is beside a road it would not have
a recreational value or be tranquil.
Does not consider that it meets the
criteria for either a PVAA or LGS.

PC14 | Gamlingay Dennis Green, The The Parish Council would like to
Cinques, Mill Hill, protect the particular settlement
Little Heath, The pattern that Gamlingay has with its
Heath numerous outlying hamlets namely
(Note: the Parish Dennis Green, The Cinques, Mill Hill,
Council has not Little Heath, The Heath.
provided any map) The outlying hamlets are outside of

village framework of Gamlingay and
there would need to be extensive
coverage of LGS if it were to be
used to protect the special local
character of Gamlingay and its
hamlets. Extensive nature is
contrary to guidance in NPPF.

LGS designation not appropriate.

PC15 | Great Shelford | Grange field in Adjacent to recreation ground -
Church Street; separated from it be a belt of trees.

It consists of open grassland that is
within the Green Belt and outside of
village framework.

It does not appear to have any
distinguishing features to it to be
identified as PVAA or LGS.

The Parish Council has also put this
site forward as open space to be
allocated in the Local Plan.

PC16 | Great Shelford | Field to the east of This is an area of open countryside

the railway line on
the southern side of
Granhams Road.

adjacent to the railway line divided
from north to south by a hedgeline
with trees. The site is within the
Cambridge Southern Fringe Area
Action Plan - CSF/5 Landscape,
Biodiversity, Recreation and Public
Access.

30




Page 133

Ref.
No.

Village

Site Location /
Address

District Council’s comment

It does not appear to have any
distinguishing features to it to be
identified as LGS.

The Parish Council has also put this
site forward as open space to be
allocated in the Local Plan.

PC17

Haslingfield

Byron’s Pool

This site is a Local Nature Reserve.
It is some distance from the nearest
village and therefore not close to the
local community. It has wildlife value
which is of interest to the wider
district community rather than a local
one.

Does not meet criteria for LGS.

PC18

Milton

Field opposite Tesco
beside Jane Coston

Bridge

Triangle of land on edge of Milton
adjacent to the A14. Land is within
Green Belt. Site outside of the
village framework. Not close to the
community to which it serves being
beyond the industrial park area and
Tesco supermarket.

Does not meet criteria for LGS.

PC19

Papworth
Everard

Summer’s Hills open

space

Open space sloping up from bypass
on the western side of village
adjacent to the new housing
development of Summer’s Hill. This
is an extensive area of open space
outside of the village framework.
The guidance in the NPPF does not
support the identification of
extensive areas of open space as
LGS.

PC20

Steeple
Morden

Tween Town Wood

This wood is in ownership of
Woodland Trust and is located to the
north of the village well outside
village framework. There are no
public footpaths from the village and
it is not in the Council’s judgement
reasonably close to the community it
serves.

PC21

Toft

Home Meadow,

This is the site of a residential care
home within Toft which is set in
grounds. The site is privately owned
and therefore not accessible to the
public. It would not be appropriate to
identify this site as a PVAA or LGS
as this form of designation is not
intended to protect such properties.

31




8.11

8.12

8.13

8.14

8.15

Page 134

Important Countryside Frontages

In many places land with a strong countryside character penetrates or
sweeps into South Cambridgeshire villages or separates two parts of built-up
areas. These areas have been identified in existing plans to show that the
frontage and the open countryside beyond should be kept open and free from
development to protect the setting, character and appearance of the village.

Approach in Issues and Options 2012

The existing Important Countryside Frontages policy has successfully
protected these views and an issue raised in the 2012 consultation was
whether to retain the existing policy and where existing Important
Countryside Frontages (ICFs) should be removed or any new ones should be
identified.

The Council has received much support for retaining the existing policy and a
number of new ones were suggested by Parish Councils and individuals.
There were only two requests for existing ICFs to be removed.

The Council has assessed all the new suggestions for ICF ensuring that they
meet the following criteria:
e Open views of wider countryside;
e Open countryside separates two parts of the built up area;
¢ Frontage and open countryside beyond should be kept open and free
from development to protect the setting, character and appearance of
the village.

The frontages that have met the test are included in Table 8.3.

Issue 14 — Important Countryside Frontages

For the purposes of this consultation the suggested new frontages that have been
assessed by the Council and found to meet the test required in the existing policy for
Important Countryside Frontages are put forward in a list to seek the views of the local
community.

These are shown on the Village Maps in Chapter 9.

Question 14: Which of the proposed important countryside frontages do you
support or object to and why?

Please provide any comments.

32



Page 135

Table 8.3 Proposed Important Countryside Frontages

Option | Village Site Location / District Council’s Assessment
No. Address
F1 Great The elm hedge along | Church Street for part of its length
Eversden | the north side of between the Hoops and the Church is in
Church street Great | open countryside — with views both to the
Eversden between south and north. The church is not within
the Hoops and the a village framework and therefore one of
church. the criteria of protecting countryside
between two parts of a village is not met
by identifying an ICF along this length of
road.
Consideration could be given to protecting
the character of the rural edge to the
south of the village by identifying part of
the south side of Church Street nearest to
the Hoop within the village framework and
from the cross roads along the eastern
part of Wimpole Road up to property no
38. This frontage has open views of the
countryside to the south of the village and
towards the church.
F2 Guilden | Suggest the open This frontage follows the road and clearly
Morden | views of the brings a rural character to this edge of the
countryside that village. There are clear views of the open
extend north-west countryside beyond with long views from
from Dubbs Knoll the village. This frontage and open
Road, Guilden countryside beyond should be kept open
Morden (north of 33 | and free from development to protect the
Dubbs Knoll Road). setting, character and appearance of this
part of Guilden Morden. Fox Cottage is a
listed building which looks out over this
frontage and its setting would be
adversely impacted if the open
countryside beyond where to be
developed.
F3 Guilden | Area opposite 38-44 | This frontage follows the road and clearly
Morden Dubbs Knoll Road brings a rural character to this edge of the
(south of 33 Dubbs village. There is a well-established hedge
Knoll Road) along the boundary which offers glimpses
of the countryside beyond. This frontage
creates a rural edge to the village and the
adjoining countryside should be kept open
and free from development to protect the
setting, character and appearance of this
part of Guilden Morden.
F4 Hardwick | St Neots Road In response to a proposed change in the

village framework on the western edge of
the village an additional ICF is proposed
to protect land south of the road.

33




Page 136

Parish Council Proposals

8.16 A number of frontages were put forward by Parish Councils. None of the
suggestions meet the tests for Important Countryside Frontages and
therefore have not been included in Table 8.3 above.

Issue 15: Parish Council Proposals for Important Countryside Frontages

More of the frontages proposed by Parish Councils met the tests for ICF. If Parish
Councils wish to meet local aspirations by protecting these frontages, this would need
to be done under another new designation if they are to be included in the Local Plan.
They are included in this consultation to seek local views on the importance of these
areas. If there is local support, we will work with the parish councils concerned to
include appropriate community-led policies in the Local Plan.

These are shown on the Village Maps in Chapter 9.

Question 15: Which of the Parish Council proposed important countryside

frontage do you support or object to and why?

Please provide any comments.

Table 8.4 Parish Council Proposals for Important Countryside Frontages

Ref. Village Site Location / District Council’s Comment
No. Address

PC22 | Cambourne | Western and part | This frontage is extensive and follows

of southern edge | village framework boundary of this part of
of Lower Cambourne. It does not follow a
Cambourne roadway but goes along property
boundaries that face or back onto
countryside. For the most part it looks
onto a bridleway so views are not to
open countryside. This would not
protect open views of the village as is
intended by the creation of ICF. It would
instead protect the views of the
countryside available from those
properties on this edge of Lower
Cambourne. Neither does it separate
two parts of the village.

PC23 | Cambourne | Southern edge of | This frontage is extensive and follows the
Greater village framework boundary of Greater
Cambourne Cambourne. It does not follow a
roadway but goes along property
boundaries that face or back onto the
open countryside This would not protect
open views of the village as is intended
by the creation of ICF. It would instead
protect the views of the open countryside

34




Page 137

available from those properties on this
edge of Greater Cambourne. Neither
does it separate two parts of the village.

PC24

Cambourne

Southern edge of
Upper
Cambourne

This frontage is extensive and follows the
village framework boundary of Upper
Cambourne. It does not follow a
roadway but goes along the property
boundaries that will be built that face or
back onto the open countryside. This
would not protect open views of the
village as is intended by the creation of
ICF. It would instead protect the views
of the open countryside available from
those properties on this edge of Upper
Cambourne. Neither does it separate
two parts of the village.

PC25

Gamlingay

Outlying hamlets
Dennis Green,
The Cinques, and
the Heath

(Note: the Parish
Council has not
provided any
map)

Gamlingay has many outlying hamlets
which are part of the local character and
it has suggested that the ICF policy be
used to protect this local character.
However it would not be appropriate to
designate many ICFs in order to protect
this particular character since it is not the
intention of this policy to prevent infilling
of extensive areas such as is described
in the representation. It is only frontages
along a defined road or boundary that
could be designated within this policy.

PC26

Great
Shelford

Southern side of
Granhams Road
Hill

This frontage is located outside of Great
Shelford and therefore having an ICF
would not protect views out from the
village. Itis in open countryside so does
not fulfil the criteria for ICF.

pPC27

Over

Longstanton
Road

This frontage is for most of its length
alongside an employment site in Over
with open countryside beyond. The
employment site is behind a tall hedge
and so the rural character of the village is
not necessarily enhanced by its
presence. An ICF along this stretch of
road would not protect the rural character
of this part of Over.

PC28

Over

New Road /
Station Road

All of these frontages along Station Road
and New Road are outside of the village
beyond the edge of the rural/urban
boundary. They are rural in character.
Therefore having these lengths of road
designated as ICF would not be in the
spirit of the policy which is to protect
views of countryside looking from within
a village not looking from outside back
towards the village.

35




Page 138

Chapter 9: Maps of Options
Contents

Bassingbourn Village Map

Bourn Airfield & Caldecote Village Map
Cambourne Village Map

Chittering Map

Comberton Village Map

Cottenham Village Map

Foxton Village Map

Fulbourn Village Map

Great and Little Abington Village Map
Great Eversden Village Map

Great Shelford Village Map

Guilden Morden Village Map
Hardwick Village Map

Haslingfield Village Map

Haslingfield Village Map (2)

Histon and Impington Village Map
Ickleton Village Map

Litlington Village Map

Little Gransden Village Map
Melbourn Village Map

Meldreth Village Map

Milton Village Map

Milton, Fen Road Map

Over Village Map

Papworth Everard Village Map
Sawston and Pampisford Village Map
Steeple Morden Village Map

Toft Village Map

Waterbeach Village Map

Whaddon Village Map

36



Page 13

T T . T
- - ] =
Bassingbourn Village Map /\; .
I N
3 TN A I AN w E
; |‘.__=- ) L \.\\\_\ ; Ed
&‘ 1'\ \1 X s S
. oM
|
A 2Ny
el — \ |
N g |
= \ 2N |
Bleak Farm \'@ = \‘\\ AR R I
ll’ ‘i \\;{ //’k\x‘h
28m | ;,! '1 ﬁ‘é :\/& ‘“\\ |
0 - +#° Rectory ™~ M
i Farm % |
l-:—

T . (A= q

= ‘\ ey w o ‘j—.‘i“li“u

[ ST e o
2 '.'.'-.'= Wy S

%
Bassingbourn
Mill

Pt
\\ “f‘.
LN\ S
(
7 N

2=t

o o ‘ "
R ) \ o\
PN \V, 2

The Willmott
Playing Field

BASSINGBOL
KNEESWO

" |
rZd |
77
Fid
"
i,
“i ”wE
/"
1S |
') /"
L 7
\ "
£
rig
v |
s
7
! 27 |
3 oA |
Y Vo |
P il
i 1

Parish Important Green Space
=

Potential Important Green Space
E--i Existing Village Framework

Scale 1:8000 @ A4

© Crown Copyright, Ordnance Survey
SCDC Licence 100022500 (2012)




Page 140

; -

FLLTITTo T it =
||;|n:fi+r|tr1r||n|_1_

Gl EE AT
,?ilnlln!in”-“ LAY 1

Bourn Airfield & Caldecote Village Map

LT T LTI Ty gy LT = VTR P —

T3 [}
TR LA

Stinnage’s Wood Q

Employment Site Option

Potential Important Green Space
= — = Suggested Amendment to

=== Existing Village Framework
]: ::i Existing Village Framework

Scale 1:8000 @ A4

@ Crown Copyright, Ordnance Survey
SCDC Licence 100022500 (2012)

A 2 [




EERIEay, el A N \ = 3 B~y
- ’ I = (2102) 00522000} 2948311 9408 _\

_.T\,,xi £ faning soueupiQ ‘bukded umoin @ n\

3 _“ . v @ 000ZL:) 2B2S 'h

| suomewesyebemnBunsa T |-

EE

soedg usaIO juepodw| [BRUS)O D

\ abejuol4 apisiuncd
juepodw| yslied

4 |enusjod uswdojanag
£ ypm uondQ s BuisnoH H*\

) \\/

!
___ loBueg _—Goﬂn_mw
i~ Ay
L

£

4/\,@ \ord
- .‘|M‘/JM&. ’ e QH.
a%%ﬁﬂ s

Psae141-

= . Sl o
: o1 it i A

= SRt R

& lmw.\».eﬂ. \hww __.‘.. ) .

-m(.l-.~ < 3 i .}n\\

§. _ R, S
e 9D

1A P

iy
poap, Asjsuemg

uopEmung
lisandELy

dep abejIA auinoque)




uosuag

seBenon
abpo Auus

¥ W4

\.
fl. pid

(2102) 00522000} 29U8T DADS
#aning saueupig ‘Jybukdog umaig @

¥V @ 0005:} @1e2§

slomewel 4 abejiA Bunsix3 |

———

yomawel4 abejjip Bunsixg = —
0} JUBLUPUBLY P}SEBBNG le — e L
VN =
nf . i o yo/
S b
\ L] (/

uejs| Alie
puejsj 2| SEIDBIY

oyl
D

80IN|g

puno.g
1e4ou]

s1079yL

dey Buuaniyd




e 15
70 HLMNOS i . i == _
11 . (z402) 005Z2000 89u8a 3008
' L. faning soueupIQ yBukde) umaI) @
§ ¥v @ 0008:1 @|e2s
wiey Jouep\” : omawel4 abeyiiA bunsix3 m”l
e S2lipag - sHomaulel abe||IA Bunsixg = — =
A Mom.ﬂu_ou o}juswpuawy pajsabbng 2k
3 . A =
=y 2 . uouaquony ) |enusiod juswdojarag H
¢4 yim uendo ays BuisnoH
g Bdg pr 'y )
abemag : _.
SHOBNVE - i 1
e = 1 )
NS [T P
A | \.n..\\lnl\..illll.
e & ;Hu.w\u\a/ﬁ T 3
7 o z ~ E
2 2 - Lets
¥ = A
1 O o1 0d T T
K 20 =] & u
(q e 0 il u._o —.—-—
< & : ;
+ @y
1 2ul *_._5
q = wuey = &
q ||auuag . =WV
q |jooyog Alewilg ﬂ 7 = 2l ;
0 uBipLaw = P e L N .
i q SemESC UN0Y | TS
o\~ Bl . ; o
punosgy Aed s _.__
a i >mn_ uoERIOBY M — _q__
QTS e 4 ~oQ) ]
SO, s = :
=" NS O SN ;
R 5 i ;
L = = i
=] q 4% = oo -
Y EEEE S e i
; ErE = oy | = A
e sLOMEE—] . 4 3
|||||| I | | s T IHL 2
¥oeil £ l .: i sisEp
m |
& w 0 1 m
B  E——
5
] ¥
14 e
= Ay m_xnm.ﬂn_ﬂmu =
s ‘ supg 10|ly L
= LTI =
a M : wep — m \ —]
N ey =5 St .
preyybiy . g Ll e depy abejiA uouaquwo)




/ .xl!.(u

#h.
.r.-rrrr.r

7 ST g

(z102) 00szz0001 B9usar1 0GOS
faning soueupip ‘Jybukdog wmosn @

vV © 000vL:1 2JE2S

somatuel abejiiA Bunsix3 |
aoeds usai9 juepodw fenusiod [ |

awdojansq asn paxi

Ao 144

| e o

¥

A
\../
.,
iy
. wmounBpng

e,
BUINGTENTY 104 O HI0Y
_1..r.f-

e

- saimseg suosel

¥

oy | e

A
7
rd
7
/
/
/ =
4 RRPT IR
B ...:.:a..”.p‘_._._..l.::..ai.. -»‘
o STTRII &
__.,%a_:__...._i-l..__ ‘(-.m
" ¢ ]
/| ]
/
/ . Y
/ .,..,/ .

, depy omm___> weyuspon




{z10z) 005ZZ0001 B9UB9rT 9Q0S
Aaning soueupiQ ybukdon umein @

¥V @ 0009:1 21228

———

yiomauiel 4 abejjia Bunsix3 |
soedg usalg) Juepodw| eusiod l
soedg usalg Juepoduw) ystied E

9

Yo =L
6y

Wil V......rf-\...... ﬁ__w.n
\/f‘r \\w
/

depy abejjiA uoyxo4




Hall Orchard

%ﬁl'-"ﬂm "
R s 1y -
// ” T, :“"541-'.!‘!! :

s
TN
\

Fialding Industrial
Estate

Golf
ving Range

D

_‘h\

8 G{\ﬂipnnmd Farm
-

il

Hill

Windmill

View

4 ¥y
/.

32m

. I
0
3 i i3
o, -
‘5 &
5 ]
&

/
3
Fernleigh Farm

m Potential Important Green Space

L3 \ E [~

n -

© | § Egg
3 £ 8

@ $H _ [ Sggh’-

g ¥ OE E 18-35,"

= \ 3 > |5 58

2 c |®m <2

= \ 8 g (855

= N

o =

2 |

|,|=_ =




i N [ s,
] e B | /
=~ i« e

. e PO TN S : v ® 000014 2Je3S

——

spomawel 4 abejjia Bunsix3 |

soedg Usalg) Juepodu) [enuajod I

ealy uawhojdw3 paysijgejsy = — l_
0} uepunog pasirey |enuajod

ealy JuawAodwi] paysi|aeIsy KxxXX

Aspsanp | __J..

¥

uDaelueE |4

__puod

Pann 147

L |

|
\ * POOAA BIINIS

L3 )
wainis =0

deyy abe|iA uojbuiqy 3| B JealID




Page 148

Great Eversden Village Map B f N
wps
~ A // .
Red House

Farm

. . . Proposed Important
Countryside Frontage

i:::i Existing Village Framework

Scale 1:4000 @ A4 Slng
ale 1:

@ Crown Copyright, Ordnance Survey Close
SCOC Licenoe 100022500 (2012)




Page 149

Great Shelford Village Map :':,_

ZNN\
) 8

At
P2 N\ =
BN //_ X \/ | | iy
v ol P _ [j-\y"'\ _R38& PC15 L__J/
4 a a a Parish Important : |

Countryside Frontage

M~ Ii
J 1
E Parish Important Green Space ...\ "l
| _ Potential Important Green Space ) l'

| | Recreation Open Space //

!_ -i Existing Village Framework

Scale 1:12000 @ A4

@ Crown Copyright, Ordnance Survey
SCDC Licence 100022500 (2012)




Page 150

A . N
Guilden Morden Village Map | | <2 Po
.\ = ; /a ' o

. .,,, Sewae
I’%‘l Works
s J;

Q@%

Proposed Important
Countryside Frontage

Potential Important Green Space

= — = Suggested Amendment to
= — = Existing Village Framework

I” i Existing Village Framework

A A A A

Scale 1:6000 @ A4
@ Crown Copyright, Ordnance Survey
SCDC Licence 100022500 (2012)

L




Page 151

~
5 o)
Thipy !"1'].‘

1] EMO =
== B
EiEdangn

. . . . Proposed Important
L Countryside Frontage

E-_l Existing Village Framework

whgmt
Tl
e 12
H [ B
B\ ‘iﬁ' ==
!"E l“a [ CNo— T4
‘- (| ¥

/ Plantation
/
al|
|

Hardwick Village Map .
Thbilh > llllll\nll‘i‘l'l.l-\ | E
yr111Y %

ol

Whitepits
Plantation

i

Redbrick

Port Wa ¥ ”"ﬂck;

Scale 1:3000 @ A4

© Crown Copyright, Orcnance S
SCDC Licence 100022500 {2012)




=

(-]
e
-

| sesnuy ieog

\\

2] )mzﬁ-.._”._____

Pleybulls
P

ey

1

(z102) 00GZ2000| BOUBAN DADS
Ranng ssueupap ‘ybuddog umaiy @

vv © 0008:} 2205

Ll

———

spomaLuel 4 abejjia Bunsix3 |
_ soedg Usalo Juepodw| [eRualod !

..-.-Fll.rr.

[}

uuey

dep abej|iA playbulisey




,.Mur- »._. ..ﬂm..m\##r
(z102) 00GZ2000| BOUEAN DADS =
faning soueupig ‘Jubukdog imain @

v © 0008: 2jeoS

fsepunogoumsia [ K

suomael abeliA bunsixa I |

aoedg usal9 juepoduw| ysiied E

o8y
=L x.__:: 4

FaRA AR RN E 7
& ¥
<

-
=5
-

.-........a-... &
=

N

e e L T

L ! f
|\ ) Al puwsig

\ apiy pue
A4 peg o/ J

uonEuE|d =9

nwpio f &
> )
ot il d.
o+ Bl 3
I+ + = .
+ + 2
& = I
Ny 2
\\\ + =
A ) :
pUBPOOMLL ' + 4 %0 =
G P wiy) z
g =
o 7 \WW_\”W\HHQ\W/ oy ..mﬁmc&:mhw S il
Q/\ =
N uonejuejd
% % peoy laisayoiuel) gees |
[ o™ __~.
- iufnuMﬁWL\ e uoBuidwn /
s ord J_.....FJN\hvf.aalEMulu e Ty J
W&
L] ] \\\\
arfiaga : E
i D “dD Y3LSTHOLN
ey ] D SdHD

/]

. . oy Nn;.. h..huuu
ST 7 | [[ WoF 7/Ae1sayopdesnl  ~“====--.
S0 G N g (z) depy abejIA piaybulisey

[




Histon & Impington Village Map

4E] i
il - — W
\‘ _i ,. s
| f
E33LTR (oo |
\ i
Eesisclirh
F =)
{ =]
5
JrL-_// \\
£
V8
£ B
A R
S iy,
s D
o =V S
N o sl S 4
\\ /-f '
\\ /) / \'L //: s
L [ o o S
A \ o
< \ l"/ Py PN ('--.
N i\ St /NI
7N B
N\ e _ /
3 ) \ : / ; I
7 L i
L______-_\ \ PCO
E Y\
| ~H2| Ty
[ o |\
E \
{_ | ;;
i /
/ /
[ i
Lo d ' |
s
E { PCO _
== It Xa)s
Housing Site Option with -
“~= Limited Development Potential H2
[" "] Recreation Open Space / El &
" Mixed Use Development /
E::i Existing Village Framework 4 /
Scale 1:14000 @ A4 4 \\_ ___‘/
©Crown Copyright, Ordnance Su'n.'ey GB1 f
\‘ SCDC Licence 100022500 (2012) ( (See Part 1 Document)




=

ue Alasinp
B\

Lt L

(z102) 005Z2000} 89USA 3ADS
fanng soueupig ‘yBuidod umeip @

¥V @ 0009:1 2|e2S

———

yiomawel abejjia Bunsix |
aoedsg usaio) Juepodw| [enusjod I

depy abejiA uojapi|




Litlington Village Map

El
Sub Sta

Paqe 156

\ St X
~ Johnsbury "%
. Cottage

The Folly
oA

CP

Potential Important Green Space

E::i Existing Village Framework

]
3

Scale 1:6000 @ A4

© Crown Copyrighl, Ordnance Survey
SCDC Licence 100022500 (2012)

T 2 |

Quarry
{disused)




Little Gransden Village Map

Great
G'ransqen Wind
Mrestored)

I
L

= .I Suggested Amendment to
l- — = Existing Village Framework

E::i Existing Village Framework

Scale 1:5000 @ A4

® Crown Copyright, Ordnance Survey
SCDC Licence 100022500 (2012)

1.8 |




East Farm

N

250 v
» o " h ) 2,
e 4
3 o.‘o,“'\-‘
X

NS 3
oy
_ @‘f&" % /

Melhnﬁ_rn Villag8
Coll,

F "I(Sla\\

~0 /7
»
&%t
J‘,‘
H
1
s

2 A
SN

P

oy

T 7 7
2/ e
i

rd

o

{{).1, N %
9 .

Melbourn Village Map |
4

Yard

Claboratory |

\

m Housing Site Option with

Limited Development Potential
| Existing Village Framework

Scale 1:10000 @ A4

@Crown Copynight, Ordnance Survey

———

SCDC Licence 100022500 (2012)

N\

A\

T
House

ol L R/

28r




Page 159

Meldreth Village Map 1 : R

= — = Suggested Amendment to T FESTS S e : T A= -1
= — = Existing Village Framework /
E--i Existing Village Framework
Scale 1:10000 @ A4 / /
@ Crown Copyright, Ordnance Survey i/ : / : b

SCDC Licence 100022500 (2012) / /




Ca NN Sl T ST
(2402 00522000} 222911 2003
faning soueupig ‘yBuddon uneiD @
e o vV © 0008:1 2/e9S
T ET T FEm et 01818 B —_———
&d & ___,( 2 S 0 5aup1y - yiomaweld abej|ia Bunsixg _l [}
% JOLIBIA, a ..4w_”1.{.ue~4., — |2
* 2 —, — 3
wl/,..w s .LMT AT ﬁ soedg usdQ uonessosy | “
~7 .@H S
\\ﬂ ‘ &1 o soeds Usal9 juepodw| Ysiieq !
£ J s P —
] L 4 A Q? R, T, - =
A LITS J R e ST | e T
Aied./ 10dag A L 7 N
Aljunod pmw 7 aioisiedng N
{ & ARG S & 7 <
Spo
A =0
punos
_..\,ﬂ _._o._u_qw__owt d
et
A us7 wi < s (pssnsip)
g M%« 3 .mu__unw% PP Buidmy ¢ di|
iy 1) .ﬂq_.v L m..
) §/ .,.um”m,.,.w,._rr AeY -
4] - S~ P~
= —BAiasoY BImeEN 3 _,x =
4 pespy sunwo] T e /
: '8 /
g 43
@ /5 & S5
& o, by &
()
3 &w.. =g 2
0 & Md 3
A =
2 u.w
})..w .....u.
N, HHH
+%Em o by
< Afaw.& V4 s =
& B o
GERPS 3
e \+: g Zol
Md 4 ’ ztpnw.wmd
; =~ 43 P
G v 7 \fﬁb = /]
%, G G G { _“m... /5 4
S ok ah i
fhosaposns . 10dag FALCR [ 2 /
b haba - [ S/ETe
LS4 ¥4 34 4 3% 4.4 &Y z
i g B B Sy e 38
.#.l#f.t.! e b "o h_._._wm. e d.bn..__
" \ adpo] \\I, .wm_wrnun s_nv;
1t 4ol ] UHoN . " 7
S "5 . SRR
SR, wg 7 ~J 2! b
BlBuy 1580/ SEsT £ 5 N
o abaj|o gﬂ;n: i &
jo abajjoy S _ NANIE 2, .
f Ja oS
wg 50
..—.r.-.a
/ ..-_....
Y
A Mm.m_ o b L A
n@h =
\*.u \ EETLTS) = \\\“\f 0/! o
=1 e ny Jien ;- === p ¥ Q m
S PSS == N ey BN @2DE||IA UOo}|!
i D5 — [ YN dioway o W SDEIHA UoIN




_ Pagelet =~~~ 00
Milton, Fen Road Ma L e e e g~ '.:'f' A ) N

SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE

———~ —~——__ \ CAMBRIDGE CITY \

on the River Cam

D Residential Moorings s ; N
E—-l District Boundary ——

Scale 1:2000 @ A4

© Crown Copyright, Ordnance Survey
SCDC Licence 100022500 (2012)




Over Village Map

66\ -

o
-D(" .

- -

7 ____‘:/ Q. /"
AR A et
" Q9 -*.‘ﬁé/ -Q T

ol 2
0 Recreation
Ground

4l Sewage
Ppg Sta

éo"l:'-'?\%‘\ < & O S

;1) - s
Brcu'\:vnsﬁeld e S /
arm 0 ) v
pvay Y,
g & & &y S &«
.-’; T —~ ~1
& T Sy |t & & @
0
r/
¢ T
! ; :
/ o ==
7 N R
£ ® @ g Sandpit Pond™
_’.: f _ Farm
“. ¥
& & 4
D AT
’.'_: é'f
e g
;,//. ,f';
.
ﬂ:;{ s
‘I
& B

Parish Important
Countryside Frontage

Potential Important Green Space
i:-.i Existing Village Framework

A A A A

Scale 1:8000 @ A4

® Crown Copyright, Ordnance Survey
SCOC Licence 100022500 (2012)




Page 163
Papworth Everard Village Map b

WA

8 /5
ewage ——— £
Works ;I,’v«
t
it
it
¥
H
b
}
i
I
r;r

/f/ On
Papworth c5¢

A QEverfrd q:f_ ot

Papworth Wood |

Oo— Q/"

Papwc_:rth ]
0.

PWIECY ' =

Papworth Village
Settlement

+ 4+, + +
+ 4+ + o+ +
+ 4+ + +
+ + + +
+ + +
+ sk

+

+
+
+
+

+ + + +

+

o
+

5
+
+ + +
+

7+
=

m Parish Important Green Space . e
Potential Important Green Space
E::i Existing Village Framework *

Scale 1:8000 @ A4 *

® Crown Copyright, Ordnance Survey 4
SCOC Licence 100022500 (2012)

] . Crow’s Nest Farm R




Page 164

Sawston & Pampisford Village Map

7

Whitthesford Mill
[Hamilton \
Karr Instituta) B

23 é

Limited Development Potential

N\ Potential Important Green Space
' |= —=, Suggested Amendment to
= — = Existing Village Framework

E:j Existing Village Framework

f!.; Housing Site Option with
B Development Potential
| Housing Site Option with
rw

Scale 1:12000 @ A4
© Crown Copyright, Ordnance Survey
SCOC Livence 100022500 (2012)

il "z




Page 165

Steeple Morden \hllage Map = N\
: ,,ﬂ w@g\\_
\ %%;ﬁ Woat K ./ J s
- 27 5 e .n__‘_. Morden '1_,['"
L y\/( g‘r‘—@‘é\. E: "-‘I Hel R r"#
\ iy 4

-
jGraen Man

PR bkt
—_—z_—_

1
}"Cnld Harhaur
f Gungalilaw

L8

# Lane

f' Morden Green

NGO \
= Jf_. \

i

Parish Important Green Space
3 Potential Important Green Space
:"-I — ——

I_ | Existing Village Framework

Scale 1:10000 @ A4

© Crown Copyright, Ordnance Survey
SCDC Licence 100022500 (2012)

Farm /)




Page 166

Toft Village Map

? -
COM BERTDN RDA F-.\@
rﬂ %
i R i
1 [32m ST | Club
PC21 House /_/
~ rd
=] VF8 |[Farmhouse X
=
& \
[
\ Q
0\ 5 Toft S
Fi = & Manor
Irs [7p % &/ Cottages
Farm / i 13 >
- S8t e
/ D (] c © \"-...‘ L5 T O ey
o Sofl82  gim
= a P& 53 e :
| e Toft =y 4) PW Track
«_Bridge S e,
i =
. \\. g “l d] O Toft'Manor
. 0 N O
7 /
%“'—-hﬂffl ~ 4m
! .
Sewage
Bld —— ;
° Ppg Sta
= L]
\ D\: > " >
m Parish Important Green Space S
Potential Important Green Space D !f\
/ = — = Suggested Amendment to I \}
- Existing Village Framework I." %
E:_:i Existing Village Framework s I el C\
I I
§ Scale 1:5000 @ A4 e / t‘ “"\\ r,;-.__w«it X
® Crown Copyright, Ordnance Survey / - s, ) %\ %) -
SCOC Licence 100022500 (2012) I S, \§ $ A=




s J. 1
(2102) 00522000} 89482r1 500S
fanng soueupig) yBuAdod uMCID @

vV @ 0008:} a|eds

2 iy ylomawel abej|iA Bulsixg H.“.J
[enusjod jusiidoj@aaq payiur

yum uondQ 8y BuisnoH H W

(p]
1]
o \
9 !
iy 75 _ =1
5 | N
S 9 3 =
oA S

—

) — ]
. ’ 2~ i 70 o ot L .m
=5 ] R % Do\t ﬂ = - =
R s [ D 2 NG e
IGiTaw b e I ey
== : (a1 yoregielEp
H 52 N _ . \ 3 - n.r__ W

57

Yieg = o
o o)
UHEd o
L
I
P
i
0
\
A
A
.
pin ki gy
Yoy |
aleIsy ﬁ %
|euisnpu| o
m 4 =T a i
ﬁ L%
a2
m THIAN
@ o
pu3g Auusg =
. =) ™~ W
qums_ =
= - =
0 K oo ..\m/.‘.hf p
avos 9 uLied AR AT
o map Buon oW X
.rl.“. A!/wﬂ..r ~
=i 1, T =
=)\ Wied _p;..?;m
=y = ueARIED ;/,..m.m_q_.mu.m T, e
= = VN peaiisBupy R e S e IO
T ‘ ilgai6e, . = -’a-.._l__.__.-lql_l
sl L] oy = e MG i
—-nﬁ_—m‘ 1 I ;___ @%__lgmﬂ ﬂ& ,..V.‘wVCV\\\\ i
£ '.l”l'l L f.fn‘vv ,_\
LR
o T w DMy /
) s \\fﬂﬂ... = \\:@% W\ -~ / \
Ve TN R ,J\
sjosueg ) e L Y ]
yoBeqIBIEM b \J g7 oo | de eBeiA yoeaqaaje
) 4 = £




\

T

&
(2102) 006220001 80U=011 5008
faning soueupig ybuddon umoin @
— —

E@aoaw"—a_muw
spomauwe 4 abe|ip Bunsixa | |

yomawel abe|jip Bunsixy = — l_
0} juswpuawy paysabbng _.._. —

" 1
\ i
= ruied

mw VAT
. Wi W% )
mU 8s0[)
& AemabBpiy
o
wie4
umoj
G
v
oA wJe4
P oBuBY B! Buuayoid
Buaug
'~ L \ L 409
0 Al
- aso|)
Ausy)
[ .ﬂ.__-.
B\ g UOPPEYAA €2
53 deyy abe|jip uoppeym




Page 169

Appendix 1: Proposal by Histon and Impington Parish Council

Station: a mixed use development in Histon and Impington

The following is a proposal to proactively design a special area in the Histon and
Impington settlement. The area is adjacent to and surrounds the former railway
station, now the Histon and Impington stop on the Cambridge Guided Busway (the
Busway). The proposal is to use this key area to make significant use of the Busway
in order to encourage sensitive development of this area and to stimulate commercial
activity and to encourage local employment which has recently declined.

We call the area for this proposal ‘Station’. It is ready for re-development. The wrong
type of development will remove the opportunity to underpin the sustainability of the
settlement and its rural centre status.

Station is the Histon station area including the Bishop's site, the station building and
the Clark Brothers’ yard to the west of Station Road and the businesses to its west on
both sides of the Guided Busway. It extends northwards along Station Road to include
the former EEDA building, eastwards to the boundary of the B1049 to include the
businesses behind the Station Stores, the Railway Vue pub and the recently restored
Crossing Keeper’s Hut and southwards to include the Bishop’s site. This is shown on
the accompanying map.

Station is the area first seen by persons getting off the guided bus in the settlement
and will be a gateway to the combined villages of Histon and Impington. Centred on
the Busway stop it will be a destination of choice for bus users and will be a popular
interchange for cyclists and bus users. By enhancing one of the intermediate stops
on the Busway as a destination (apart from those using the guided bus to commute to
employment on the Vision Park) it will enable higher utilisation of the Busway and
increase the return on its investment.

Station should be a mixed development of housing, private and public sector space
and community amenities. Our vision is that this area will have the following
characteristics:

e avibrant ‘gateway’ to the community;

e businesses offering goods and services to customers: each business gaining
by the footfall for others and in turn attracting its own footfall to benefit the
other businesses;

e several businesses will provide catering opportunities from simple cafes and
takeaways to more sophisticated restaurants and wine bars;

e businesses should be active at least from eight (morning) to eight (evening) for
many days with restaurants open until later;

e not only be a gateway but a destination for some requiring the specialist goods
and services (eg craft, organic foods, specialist advice);

e architecturally attractive, retaining the old Victorian buildings in a contemporary
context; and

e an open space with street art, the opportunity for community activities and for
businesses to extend their operations when weather permits.

Businesses which are based at Station will benefit from a substantial catchment of
local residents and from the many businesses on Vision Park and along Station Road.

The Histon and Impington Parish Council, with support from many residents and
businesses, believes that Station provides a special opportunity to make a significant

67



Page 170

improvement to a rural centre in order to maintain that status and at the same time
enhance the its sustainability.

The opportunity in this area for new housing will be limited but will be attractive
because of its proximity to the Busway and the convenience other local facilities. It will
typically be chosen by residents who choose to live sustainable lifestyles with minimal
car usage. The opening of the Chesterton Sidings station with Busway access will
increase this attractiveness. The Council notes that considerable new housing has
been recently brought forward already within walking distance of the Busway stop.

Private sector space will provide both employment and leisure opportunities. There
will be opportunities for craft workshops, professional services and restaurants. It is
imagined that there might also be a local government services 'hub' and/or that the
County Council might base its new archives centre there. The employment
opportunities should be more sustainable if there are sufficient to aid the mutual
attractiveness of the area. The Council would hope to see live/work premises included
in the scheme, both to provide such an opportunity which is sorely lacking in the
village but also to encourage the vibrancy of the area outside normal business hours.

As a result, these facilities will be a specialist and notable development, unmatched in
the area; they will attract visitors and encourage inward travel. This will significantly
assist the use of the Busway to an intermediate destination out of peak times (and
indeed some contra flow at peak commuting times).

Some open space (perhaps the area called ‘the Clark Space’) should be reserved as
a community amenity which will host a regular market and be a focus for evening
entertainment and other events. Already the environs of the rebuilt Crossing Keeper’s
Hut (a very small building located at the south east corner of the Coppice woodland)
has been used for community events and demonstrated the need.

Station will add to but be a part of Histon and Impington. It will complement facilities
offered elsewhere in the community and it will be easily accessible by local residents.
And this will provide the initial users whilst the marketing of the new facilities to a
wider catchment is undertaken. The community has good communication
mechanisms alerting residents to new developments.

It will be an exemplar of high quality 21st century design of an inclusive space. It will
be based on the highest standards of sustainability (with local and bus service access)
and will be a visually striking testament to local ambitions.

Specific policies to include:

e sites (marked with an ‘x’ on the plan) to be designated as suitable for
development as mixed use (commercial and retail, with some aligned
residential use);

e restrictions on the development for purposes other than those envisioned in
the vision for sites marked ‘y’ (The station building and the Railway Vue public
house) and in particular the former station building to be retained in its current
form and to be used only for purposes consistent with the development of this
important area;

e retention of the wall with the Chivers Clock on any development of the former
EEDA building;

¢ inclusion of a significant open space bounded by mixed use (housing and
commercial) buildings (the above mentioned Clark Space);

e high quality urban design enabling Victorian and latest 2012 architecture to co-

68



Page 171

exist in harmony and latest available sustainable technologies; and
e current green space will be preserved

We recommend that the above becomes a part of South Cambridgeshire District
Council’s development plan so that development in this area can be guided to the
longer term advantage both of those who invest in and the wider community of Histon
and Impington.

Histon and Impington Parish Council will welcome early approaches from developers

wishing to engage in the above development so that appropriate schemes can be
developed before plans are submitted.

69



N

w—=E)~E
“'53!.9 !

Page 172

" s n 2 s
Station", Histon & Impington
Vision : L :
Discovery Park Mast
House % % =:.
] 3 El
[0 ; %
Cfnffl 2 3 SS"'b Cambridge
[ o ® I = Lea Hospital
Endeavour [ 1
House 5
The
Endurance Spinney
House )
| g Kemedine
% % Pavilian
\‘,gs" Sub Sta &
& =
& =
dlé‘ Y
&
e Play
=% Area
50 ~
) .
o c 3
2
Compass House } ) =
% % Sy Tockholes
P - \"’\- — Bruin
e \ ard ~H e - ITIGEEAY
, 2 SRR\
Ed X g
o The
; a o Railway Vue
1 J {PH)
5 £ 2 %
/ x I ] ?:‘.‘
| - Y mpington )
£ % Mgy E
s "’??g,-o‘”’ g 05 Oy
@ Wy,
q\
: g
- @ v/ N
Kenc'z,
House
& o Anglia
& 2 Regercy Ken. ’
t{ 2% o BT S S
sy ]
& =47 NS ‘# e SN '
7 )| S

COUEGEIROAD

: HE 1 T .

—tHa
Target Area
—gr—

10

Scale 1:2000 @ A4

@ Crown Copyright, Ordnance Survey

SCDC Licence 100022500 (2012)
| Windmill

-
)
(%]




Page 173 Agenda ltem 4

SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

REPORT TO: Planning Policy & Localism Portfolio Holder 13 December 2012
Meeting
AUTHOR/S: Director of Planning & New Communities

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
ANNUAL MONITORING REPORT 2011-2012 (PART 1)

Purpose

To agree the Local Development Framework Annual Monitoring Report (Part 1) for
publication on the Council’'s website, including the housing trajectory.

2. This is not a key decision but raises matters relating to the district as a whole and is a
document the Council is required to prepare.

Recommendations

3. That the Planning Policy & Localism Portfolio Holder:

. AGREES the contents of the Annual Monitoring Report (Part 1) (included as
Appendix 2) for publication; and

o DELEGATES any further minor editing changes to the Annual Monitoring
Report (Part 1) to the Director of Planning and New Communities where they
are technical matters.

Reasons for Recommendations

Local planning authorities are required to publish information that monitors progress
on the implementation of their Local Development Scheme and planning policies
included in their development plan documents, and to do this at least on an annual
basis.

Background

Monitoring is essential to establish what has been happening in the district, what is
happening now, what may happen in the future and what needs to be done to
achieve policies and targets.

The Annual Monitoring Report reviews progress on the implementation of the Local
Development Scheme and also includes over 90 indicators to measure the
performance of the Council’s adopted planning policies and over 45 indicators to
measure the objectives set out in the Council’s Sustainability Appraisal Scoping
Report.

This is the eighth Annual Monitoring Report produced by the Council and covers the
period from 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2012.



10.

11.

12.

13.

Page 174

The Annual Monitoring Report being submitted for agreement is only partially
complete. Officers have been unable to complete the full Annual Monitoring Report,
as resources have been focussed on inputting the representations received through
the public consultation on the Local Plan Issues & Options and preparing the Local
Plan Issues & Options 2 documents (see the separate report to this Portfolio Holder
Meeting). Part 1 of the Annual Monitoring Report (included as Appendix 2) outlines
the Council’s progress against its adopted Local Development Scheme and reports
on the housing indicators. It also includes the Council’'s housing trajectory setting out
predicted housing supply to 2031 and its five year housing land supply. The
remainder of the Annual Monitoring Report will be completed and then submitted to
the Planning Policy & Localism Portfolio Holder in early 2013 for agreement to publish
it.

Considerations
Progress against the Local Development Scheme

The Local Development Scheme (LDS) applying during the monitoring period was
adopted by the Council in March 2011. The LDS set out the Council’s intention to
prepare a new South Cambridgeshire Local Plan that would incorporate a review of
the Core Strategy, Development Control Policies DPD and Site Specific Policies
DPD. Preparation of the new Local Plan has progressed largely in accordance with
the timetable and public consultation on issues and options for the district took place
between July and September 2012.

A second round of public consultation on issues and options, being undertaken jointly
with Cambridge City Council, is now planned for January — February 2013. This
second round of public consultation, and also the need to co-ordinate with Cambridge
City Council on producing the draft Local Plan, has had some implications on the
timetable for the later stages of preparing the Local Plan.

The LDS also set out the intention at that time to continue to separately prepare a
Gypsy & Traveller DPD. However, progress on the preparation of this plan has
slipped due to delayed progress and agreement on an updated Cambridgeshire
Gypsy & Traveller Accommodation Needs Assessment, which is a key evidence base
study for this plan. The slippage meant that there was no longer an advantage in
progressing this plan separately and therefore a revised LDS was adopted in January
2012 setting out the Council’s intention to include any policies and proposals for
Gypsy and Travellers within the new Local Plan.

Monitoring the Local Development Framework policies and Sustainability Appraisal
objectives

The Executive Summary outlines the headline results from the Annual Monitoring
Report (Part 1), and is attached as Appendix 1.

The Annual Monitoring Report incorporates the housing trajectory and approach to
demonstrating a five-year housing land supply. The Council has identified a total of
17,073 new dwellings that could be provided over the next 20 years (and beyond)



14.

15.

16.

Page 175

based on existing allocations and planning permissions, including 4,531 dwellings
that could be provided over the next five years. However, despite being able to
identify this level of deliverable housing land, the Council has a shortfall against its
five year housing land supply requirement. Against the Core Strategy, the Council
has 2.3 years of housing land supply; however against the ‘Medium’ housing target
option included in the Local Plan Issues & Options Report, the Council has 4.1 years
of supply. The Council has not made any decision on the appropriate target for the
new Local Plan, however, during the plan making process, additional housing
allocations will be identified to ensure that the new Local Plan identifies enough
housing land supply to meet the chosen target.

The analysis from the Annual Monitoring Report is being used to inform the
preparation of the new Local Plan. Issues and options relating to planning policies
that have been identified for review in recent Annual Monitoring Reports are being
explored through the preparation of the new Local Plan. However, the monitoring of
the performance of the Council’s planning policies has shown that development
granted planning permission in the district is generally in accordance, or moving
towards accordance, with the adopted planning policies. For some indicators, the
data shows a period of transition between the adopted planning policies included in
the Local Plan 2004 and those included in the Core Strategy and Development
Control Policies DPD, both adopted in 2007.

Options

It is a legal requirement that the Council publish its Annual Monitoring Report, and
that it monitors progress on the implementation of its Local Development Scheme
and the performance of the planning policies included in its development plan
documents.

Implications

Financial None arising from the Annual Monitoring Report.

Legal Local planning authorities are required to publish information
monitoring progress on the implementation of their Local
Development Scheme and planning policies included in their
development plan documents, and to do this at least on an
annual basis.

Staffing The Annual Monitoring Report has been prepared within
existing staff resources.

Risk Management It is a legal requirement to publish an Annual Monitoring Report.

Equality and The Annual Monitoring Report does not identify any implications

Diversity for equality and diversity.

Equality Impact No.

Assessment The Annual Monitoring Report is used to monitor the

completed implementation of the Council’s planning policies and provide
information on their impact, it is not a policy or project that can
be assessed.

Climate Change The effects of the Council’s planning policies on climate change
are assessed in the Annual Monitoring Report.




17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Page 176

Consultations

The housing trajectory included in the Annual Monitoring Report has been produced
in consultation with the various landowners, developers and agents responsible for
the sites included in it. Council officers and external organisations have provided
information and data for the indicators included in the Annual Monitoring Report
(Part 1).

Consultation with Children and Young People

None, the Annual Monitoring Report is a technical assessment of the Council’s
progress on preparing its planning policy documents and the performance of the
Council’'s adopted planning policies.

Effect on Strategic Aims

We will listen to and engage with residents, parishes and businesses to ensure
we deliver first class services and value for money. The Annual Monitoring
Report provides information on the Council’s performance against its planning
policies; these policies aim to provide successful, vibrant, healthy and sustainable
communities.

We will work with partners to create and sustain opportunities for employment,
enterprise, and world-leading innovation. The Annual Monitoring Report provides
detailed analysis on how the Council’'s adopted planning policies have performed,
and includes a number of indicators related to the Council’s planning policies on
employment and the wider effects of the LDF on the district including its economy.

We will make sure that South Cambridgeshire continues to offer outstanding
and sustainable quality of life for our residents. The LDF aims to satisfy the
development needs of the Cambridge Sub Region while preserving and enhancing its
rich built and natural heritage and distinctive character and providing quality places
where people are happy to live, work and play. The Annual Monitoring Report
provides detailed analysis on how the Council’'s adopted planning policies have
performed.

Conclusions / Summary

Preparation of the new Local Plan has progressed largely in accordance with the
timetable and public consultation on issues and options for the district took place
between July and September 2012. Due to slippage in preparing and agreeing the
evidence base for the Gypsy & Traveller DPD, a revised Local Development Scheme
was adopted in January 2012 setting out the Council’s intention to include any
policies and proposals for Gypsy and Travellers within the new Local Plan.

The monitoring of the performance of the Council’s planning policies has shown that
development granted planning permission in the district is generally in accordance, or
moving towards accordance, with the adopted planning policies. Issues and options



Page 177

relating to planning policies that have been identified for review in recent Annual
Monitoring Reports are being explored through the preparation of the new Local Plan.

Background Papers: the following background papers were used in the preparation of this
report:
South Cambridgeshire Local Development Framework: www.scambs.gov.uk/Idf

Contact Officer: Jenny Nuttycombe — Planning Policy Officer
Telephone: (01954) 713184

Caroline Hunt — Local Development Framework Team Leader
Telephone: (01954) 713196



Page 178

This page is left blank intentionally.



1.

Page 179

Executive Summary

(Note: Partial summary. Complete version to follow in Part 2.)

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

The Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) provides information on the progress the
Council is making in preparing its planning policy documents and how well it is doing
in terms of delivering the overall development strategy and implementing the policies
included in the Local Development Framework (LDF). The Executive Summary
highlights the headline results of this year's AMR.

Progress against the Local Development Scheme

The Local Development Scheme (LDS) adopted by the Council in March 2011 set
out the timetable that the Council was progressing during the monitoring year, and
the commentary set out in Chapter 3 (and summarised below) shows progress
against this timetable.

The LDS included the Council’s intention to prepare a new South Cambridgeshire
Local Plan, which would incorporate a review and update of the Core Strategy,
Development Control Policies DPD and Site Specific Policies DPD. Preparation of
the new Local Plan has progressed largely in accordance with the timetable and
public consultation on issues and options for the district took place between July and
September 2012.

Given the close functional relationship between Cambridge and South
Cambridgeshire, the Council is working collaboratively with Cambridge City Council
as part of the duty to co-operate. The need to coordinate with the City Council on
cross boundary issues has led to the Council revising its intended plan making
process to include a second public consultation on issues and options in January —
February 2013. This consultation will include two parts:

e Part 1 —joint consultation on the development strategy for the wider Cambridge
area, site options for development on the edge of Cambridge on land currently in
the Green Belt, and site options for a community stadium; and

e Part 2 — consultation on matters specific to each local authority, for South
Cambridgeshire this includes possible new site options for development and
possible changes to village frameworks and designations to protect village
character.

This additional round of public consultation has had some implications on the
timetable for later stages of preparing the South Cambridgeshire Local Plan.

The LDS also set out the intention at that time to continue to separately prepare a
Gypsy & Traveller DPD. However, progress on the preparation of the Gypsy &
Traveller DPD slipped due to delayed progress and agreement on an updated
Cambridgeshire Gypsy & Traveller Accommodation Needs Assessment, undertaken
by Cambridgeshire County Council on behalf of the Cambridgeshire local authorities,
which is a key evidence base study for this plan. The slippage meant that there was
no longer an advantage in progressing the two plans separately and therefore a

December 2012 Annual Monitoring Report (Part 1)



1.7.

1.8.

1.9.

Page 180

revised LDS was adopted in January 2012. This revised LDS set out the Council’s
intention to include any policies and proposals for Gypsy and Travellers within the
South Cambridgeshire Local Plan.

Monitoring the Local Development Framework policies and
Sustainability Appraisal objectives

The Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) includes over 90 core and local output
indicators to measure the performance of the Council’'s adopted planning policies,
and almost 50 significant effect indicators to measure change in the district against
the objectives set out in the Council’s Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report
(January 2006) and to look at the wider effects of the Local Development Framework
(LDF) on the district.

Housing

Housing completions and housing supply: The development strategy for South
Cambridgeshire is one of supporting the economic success of the Cambridge area
through continued jobs growth, with housing provision at a level, and of a quality, to
allow for the economic prospects to be met. To reduce the amount of commuting in
the longer term, the aim is also to achieve a better balance between jobs and homes
in and close to Cambridge.

In the last monitoring year, 696 net additional dwellings were completed in South
Cambridgeshire; this is 4 dwellings more than the number predicted in the housing
trajectory included in the Annual Monitoring Report 2010-2011 and is an increase in
the number of net additional dwellings completed compared to the previous 3 years
(610, 595 and 655 dwellings). It continues a pattern of housebuilders and landowners
predicting with some accuracy the number of completions which will be achieved
albeit not necessarily from the sites they anticipated. Completions at Cambourne
and Orchard Park have fallen in the last year compared to the previous year, but this
shortfall has been balanced by an uplift of housing completions on historic rural
allocations at Longstanton, Papworth Everard, Girton and Waterbeach, and on rural
exceptions sites.

The Council has made provision for a significant supply of housing land: extant
planning permissions could provide 3,070 dwellings (as at March 2012); sites where
the Council has resolved to grant planning permission could provide a further 221
dwellings; and sites allocated for housing will provide another 13,782 dwellings.
Together, land is identified in plans and planning permissions for a total of 17,073
dwellings.

The monitoring period for the AMR precedes the National Planning Policy Framework
and so the Planning Policy Statements were still in force. Government policy in
PPS3: Housing and the National Planning Policy Statement for 2011-2012 was
that Councils should have a rolling five-year supply of housing land. Despite having
sufficient deliverable land supply to provide 4,531 new homes over the next 5 years,
the Council has a shortfall in five-year housing land supply against the Core Strategy

Annual Monitoring Report (Part 1) December 2012



Page 181

target to 2016 (2.3 years supply), primarily because we are now close to the end of
the plan period of 2016 which compounds the impact of the shortfall. However,
against the 'Medium’ target option for the new Local Plan, the Council has 4.1 years
of housing land supply, based on existing housing allocations and planning
permissions. Additional housing allocations will be identified during the plan making
process to ensure that the Local Plan meets the chosen target.

Gypsy & Traveller pitches: 11 new permanent Gypsy & Traveller pitches were
completed in the last monitoring year and 1 new temporary Gypsy & Traveller pitch
was granted planning permission. A further 24 permanent pitches were under
construction at 31 March 2012 (and are now completed).

Housing completions on previously developed land (PDL): In the last monitoring
year, 29% of dwellings completed were on PDL and the cumulative percentage is still
below the target of at least 37% as required by Core Strategy Policy ST/3. It had
been anticipated that the percentage would increase when the major developments
at Northstowe and Cambridge East, which would involve the reuse of PDL, started
delivering towards the end of the plan period, however, this is now unlikely to happen
in the near future as progress on the major developments has been delayed. In the
last monitoring year, completions at Cambourne, Orchard Park, historic rural
allocations at Papworth Everard and Longstanton, and on affordable housing
exception sites at Barrington, Hauxton and Willingham, have contributed to the
significant proportion of completions on ‘greenfield’ sites.

Housing density: Over the last 13 years, the average net density of dwellings
completed on sites of 9 or more dwellings has fluctuated, although there is a general
upward trend. It is expected that the average net density of new housing
developments will increase in future monitoring years as the major developments on
the edge of Cambridge and Northstowe are implemented with higher housing
densities reflecting their urban character. Orchard Park has achieved net densities of
over 50 dph on a significant number of completed parcels. Over the last 13 years, the
completed parcels at Cambourne have achieved an average net density of 30.0 dph.
In general, lower densities have been achieved at Lower Cambourne (an early phase
in the construction of the settlement), and higher densities have been achieved at
Upper Cambourne (a more recent phase that is still being completed). Great
Cambourne includes a mixture of densities, with higher densities achieved on parcels
located in and around the village centre, where there is good access to services and
facilities.

Affordable housing: The availability of housing that is affordable to local people is a
major issue in the district, especially as median house prices in the district have risen
from 4.9 times median earnings to 7.9 times median earnings in the last 12 years. In
the last monitoring year, 192 new affordable dwellings were completed; this amounts
to 25% of all new dwellings completed. This is a fall compared to the high of 41%
achieved in 2009-2010 and is a reflection of the changing housing market conditions
and availability of funding for affordable housing developments.

In the last monitoring year social rented affordable housing has been the majority
tenure of affordable dwellings completed, although on individual schemes the mix of

December 2012 Annual Monitoring Report (Part 1)



1.20.

Page 182

affordable tenures is determined by local circumstances. Affordable housing
exception sites provided 90 new affordable dwellings in the last monitoring year to
meet identified local need in Barrington, Hauxton, Landbeach, Whaddon and
Willingham.

In the last two monitoring years, 40% of dwellings permitted on sites of two or more
dwellings, where Development Control Policy HG/3 was applicable, were
affordable. This meets the target of 40% set by the policy. The affordable dwellings
secured were a mixture of onsite provision and financial contributions that have been
converted into notional units that will be provided offsite.

Housing development by settlement category: The development strategy for the
district was changed by the adoption of the Core Strategy, which focuses the
development proposed in a few major developments on the edge of Cambridge and
the new town of Northstowe, and provided for more development within the village
frameworks of the largest villages. Between 2006 and 2011, this change in
development strategy could be seen to be gradually taking effect with an increase in
the proportion of completions on the edge of Cambridge and at the Rural Centres,
which includes the new settlement of Cambourne, and a decrease in the proportion
of completions in the smaller and less sustainable villages. This trend has not
continued in the last monitoring year, due to the completion of 76 close care flats at
Girton and the completion of the first 62 dwellings on phase 3 of a large development
at Longstanton which delivered a bypass for the village. Completions at Orchard Park
and Cambourne have also fallen compared to previous years.

Housing quality: All new development has an impact on its surroundings and the
predominantly rural character of the district makes it particularly important that new
development is sensitively located and designed to a high quality. The Council has
assessed 42 developments completed in the last three monitoring years against the
original Building for Life standard. Of the 18 schemes that were completed in the last
monitoring year, three developments have achieved ‘Gold’ standard by scoring well
on a variety of aspects, including their design, character and layout, and integration
of public spaces, pedestrian routes and car parking. Five have been assessed at a
‘Silver’ standard. Nine schemes have been assessed as ‘Average’ tending to score
weakly on aspects such as their character and treatment of streets and parking. One
scheme has been reported as ‘Poor’ due to low levels of connectivity, character, and
design. All 42 developments have performed poorly in the use of advanced
construction techniques and technologies and environmental performance, and many
did not do well in terms of their future adaptability.

The Building for Life scheme is a useful tool for gaining an indication of the quality of
new developments. However, it has certain limitations that may not give a true
impression of the quality of a scheme. The scoring system is not a sophisticated tool
and can potentially score schemes down where evidence is not available at the time
of assessment. In the case of a number of the schemes scoring as ‘Average’ this
monitoring year, there has not been documentary evidence available to demonstrate
a positive performance against a criteria and therefore they have been scored down.
However, the Council is not complacent about development quality and is taking
measures to improve performance.

Annual Monitoring Report (Part 1) December 2012



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	3 South Cambs Local Plan:  Issues and Options 2 for Consultation
	App A - I&O2 Part 1 with maps FINAL
	Appendix H - I&O2 Part 2

	4 Local Development Framework Annual Monitoring Report 2011-12
	Appendix 1 - Executive Summary


